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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE
“STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which
a higher investment risk may be attached than other
companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of
investing in such companies and should make the decision
to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally
small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that
securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to
high market volatility than securities traded on the Main
Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid
market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness
and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss
howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any
part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Sino-
Life Group Limited (the “Company”) collectively and individually
accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance
with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of
the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose
of giving information with regard to the Company.

The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm
that, to the best of their knowledge and belief the information
contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material
respects and not misleading, and there are no other matters
the omission of which would make any statement herein or in
this report misleading.
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Corporate information of the Company as at the date of this

report is as follows:
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Executive Directors

Mr. Xu Jianchun (Chairman)

Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai (Chief executive officer)

Dr. Xu Qiang (Chief executive officer)
(Redesignated on 22 January 2021)

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Chai Chung Wai

Mr. Sun Fei

Mr. Wang Jun

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Chu Kin Ming CPA, FCCA, ACIS, ACMA
AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai
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COMPLIANCE OFFICER
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Mr. Sun Fei (Chairman)
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Mr. Wang Jun
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PRINCIPAL BANKER

Bank SinoPac

First Commercial Bank

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
China Merchants Bank

REGISTERED OFFICE

The Grand Pavilion Commercial Centre
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Suite 3204, Unit 2A, Block 3, Building D
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Chairman’s

| am pleased to present the results of Sino-Life Group Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2020 (“the Year”) on behalf of the board
(the "Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of the Company.

In 2020, the sudden coronavirus disease (“COVID-19")
pandemic has a serious negative impact on the global economy,
causing the already fragile world economy to fall into recession.
According to the “World Economic Situation and Outlook
2020" released by the United Nations, the global economy will
shrink by 4.3% in 2020. The timely and effective prevention
and control measures taken by the Chinese government that
successfully contained the further spread of the pandemic and
has provided guarantees for the resumption of production
and operation of enterprises. The Chinese government has
also introduced a series of policies and measures to support
accelerated economic recovery, and that the results have been
achieved in coordinating epidemic prevention and control and
the economy and social development which makes China
become the only economy in the world that achieves positive
growth in 2020. Therefore, the Group’s business operations
in China have remained relatively stable compared to the
corresponding period in 2019.

In the 21st century, under the background of higher income
of residents, enhanced health awareness of citizens, ageing
population and industrial policy support, the biotechnology
industry has ushered in vigorous development. In recent
years, the development has been particularly rapid, and it
has entered a golden period of rapid development. In order
to comply with the national industrial development trend
and grasp the dividends of the rapid development of the
biotechnology industry in the future, the Group implemented
a diversified development strategy in early 2019. According to
the development scheme of the Group, the Group prioritizes
the pilot stem cell business and develops stem cell, cultivation,
machineries and other related businesses. After two years
of initial development, with the management’s efforts, this
business has made substantial progress. The project has
been promoted in China under the Sales of Stem Cells and
Immunocytes Agency Agreement signed in 2019, as well as
sales of biotechnical machineries and other electronics products
in Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (“Hong Kong”),
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

Statement
FEMmE
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

However, during the COVID-19 pandemic, in order to strictly
implement the prevention and control requirements of
personnel isolation, and for sale of the health and safety of
customers, the Group’s provision of advisory service on stem
cell and immunocytes business experienced temporarily shut-
down during the Year, causing a drop in revenue from such
business segment.

Meanwhile, in Hong Kong, despite of the control measures
including business shutdown, traffic control and personnel
isolation and mandated closures implemented by governments
in Hong Kong during the Year, as the pandemic prevention
and control has achieved remarkable results, certain measures
have been relaxed in the third quarter, allowing the Group
to gradually resume its operations. The Group’s sales of
biotechnical machineries and other electronics products
business contributed approximately RMB4,298,000 to the
Group’s revenue during the Year, as compared with that
of approximately RMB3,263,000 during the year ended 31
December 2019 (“the Prior Year”).

The COVID-19 pandemic had almost no adverse effect on the
provision of funeral, cremation and cemetery services segment
due to its business nature and recorded an approximately
4.6% year-on-year increase in the PRC. As a result, the
Group’s revenue increased by approximately 2.6% vyear on
year, reflecting the successful diversification of the Group's
businesses in enhancing risk-tolerant capability.

Up to the date of this report, COVID-19 pandemic has not
caused material financial difficulties to the Group. Depending on
the development and spread of COVID-19 pandemic subsequent
to the date of this report, further changes in economic
conditions for the Group arising thereof may have impact on
the financial results of the Group, the extent of which could not
be estimated as at the date of this report. The Group will keep
continuous attention on the situation of COVID-19 pandemic
and react actively to its impact on the financial position and
operating results of the Group.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2020
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Chairman’s

Looking forward, while consolidating the traditional funeral
service business, the Group will focus more resources on
the development of emerging industries in biotechnology.
The biotechnology industry is a multi-disciplinary industry.
In the future, it will be integrated and developed with new
technologies such as artificial intelligence, big data, new
materials, and the Internet, such as medical robots and desktop
electron microscopes. Therefore, the Group will accurately grasp
the future development trends of technological innovation
and application scenarios in the biotechnology industry, and
strengthen external cooperation through business licensing
(authorization), equity investment, investment and mergers,
and at the same time, it will formulate incentive measures
that combine multiple methods to attract and retain cutting-
edge talents, management talents and relevant people who
have contributed to the development of the Group, This would
improve the Group’s operating conditions, optimise business
structure, improve earning capability, and drive sustainable and
quality development of the Group’s business.

Finally, I would again like to acknowledge and thank the health
and emergency personnel who have worked so hard to ensure
the safety of the nation. | would also like to thank the Group's
entire management and staff for their efforts and contributions.
| would also like to take this opportunity to express heartfelt
thanks to the Company’s shareholders and business partners
for their longtime support and trust.

Chairman
Xu Jianchun

16 April 2021
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I\/Ianagement Discussion and Analysis

B2 E R R AT

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year ended 31 December 2020 (the “Year”), despite
the growth of the mainland China’s economy continued to slow
down as the result of the coronavirus disease (“COVID-19")
pandemic, the revenue from the operation of Sino-Life Group
Limited (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
in People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) remained relatively
steady as compared with the corresponding year in 2019
(the "Prior Year”), while performance in Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region, the PRC (“Hong Kong”) and Taiwan also
recorded has been sluggish. The operations in Socialist Republic
of Vietnam (“Vietnam”) also remained steady over the Year.

During the Year and the Prior Year, the amount and percentage

5 E
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FED) BEPREAELBEEERAFTET
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BREELR-_ZE-—NFRF(BEFE]
REFBEHET MAPREEFIITHE
(BB REENRBENTE - RAFE
Mt EREEXME (M) &E TR
BFEE °

RAFERBEFE - KREBEBED A

of the revenue derived from respective geographical segments ZWZm SR BED LT :
were as follow:
2020 2019
) e 33 —E-NEF
RMB’000 % RMB'000 %
ARETR Bolkk AREBTT A7t
The PRC s 61,317 89.8 59,868 89.9
Taiwan aE 1,802 2.6 2,258 3.4
Hong Kong BB 4,786 7.0 4,063 6.1
Vietnam 2 435 0.6 421 0.6
68,340 100.0 66,610 100.0
The PRC Y

Business in the PRC continues to be the major source of income
of the operations of the Group during the Year. The Group's
revenue derived from the PRC market was relatively stable
and contributed approximately RMB61,317,000 of revenue to
the Group for the Year, as compared with that of the Prior
Year of approximately RMB59,868,000. In the PRC, the Group
is principally engaged in provision of funeral, cremation and
cemetery services in funeral parlours and funeral service centres
under the Group’s management in Chongging. The Group also
carried out the advisory service on stem cells and immunocytes
under an agency agreement in Guangzhou city, Guangdong
province.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2020
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EIEE

The provision of funeral, cremation and cemetery services
business and advisory service on stem cells and immunocytes
contributed approximately RMB60,961,000 (The Prior
Year: RMB58,277,000) and RMB356,000 (The Prior Year:
RMB1,591,000), respectively, of the revenue in the PRC during
the Year.

In response to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Chinese
government has adopted control measures including business
shutdown, traffic control and personnel isolation, the Group's
advisory service on stem cells and immunocytes experienced
temporarily shut-down during the Year, causing a drop in
revenue from such business segment. On the other hand,
in light of the business nature of the provision of funeral,
cremation and cemetery services segment, the COVID-19
pandemic’s impact was less severe than expected and recorded
an approximately 4.6% year-on-year increase.

Taiwan and Hong Kong

In Taiwan and Hong Kong, the Group is principally engaged in
the sales of funeral services deeds, which was accounted for
by the Group as contract liabilities, and provision of funeral
arrangement services to the deed holders and non-funeral
services deed holders, which are accounted for by the Group
as revenue. The Group also carries out sales of biotechnical
machineries and other electronics products in Hong Kong
during the Year.

Revenue derived from the Taiwan market was approximately
RMB1,802,000 for the Year (The Prior Year: RMB2,258,000),
representing a decrease of approximately 20.2% from the
Prior Year. Revenue derived from the Hong Kong market was
approximately RMB4,786,000 for the Year (The Prior Year:
RMB4,063,000), representing an increase of approximately
17.8% from the Prior Year.

Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the government of Taiwan
declared mandated closures and travel restrictions during
the Year. As the demand of the Group’s business in Taiwan
mainly derived locally, the travel restrictions did not have
much significantly disruption to the business but the mandated
closures inevitably had an adverse impact on the operation of
the business locally, and resulted in an approximately 20.2%,
decrease in the revenue as compared with the Prior Year.

K o3 A
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I\/Ianagement Discussion and Analysis

B2 E R R AT

On the other hand, despite of the control measures including
business shutdown, traffic control and personnel isolation
and mandated closures implemented by governments in Hong
Kong during the Year, certain measures have been relaxed in
the third quarter, allowing the Group to gradually resume its
operations. The Group's sales of biotechnical machineries and
other electronic products segments contributed approximately
RMB4,298,000 to the Group’s revenue during the Year, as
compared with that of approximately RMB3,263,000 during the
Prior Year.

Vietnam

The Group's revenue derived from the sales of burial plots in
Vietnam was approximately RMB435,000 for the Year (The Prior
Year: RMB421,000), representing an increase of approximately
3.3% from the Prior Year.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

A—AH BERAFERFERFERE
BRAXET RBEHMABSREEINA NS
HHMEEEER ETEBRERFE=F
ERE ERAKEZTMELER - ©
AEE AEEEMRRESREBET
EnHEIHBASAEEEMKREO/A
R#4,298,0007T - MBEFEHNR/RARE
3,263,0007T °

e

AFEE AEBERERUEEEMBEEZR
LB ANREEA35,000T CBEEE - AR
421,0007T) * RBEFEILIMNAI3.3% ©

B4 %5 [0 BA

Revenue e =
2020 2019
—g-%s e N
Gross Gross Gross Gross
Revenue profit/(loss) profit margin Revenue profit/(loss)  profit margin
£/ 5/
Wy 25 (B548) EHE e 2 (E#8) A=
RMB'000 RMB'000 % RMB'000 RMB'000 %
ARETR ARETR B ARBTRT ARETR X
Funeral services BERY 63,686 28,849 45.3% 61,756 30914 50.1%
Provision of advisory service on stem 2 {t# 408 I &% 4 E
cells and immunocytes AR 356 356 100.0% 1,591 1,029 64.7%
Sales of biotechnical machineries and £ # &I E =R H it
other electronic products ETERBEE 4,298 (38) (0.9%) 3,263 99 3.0%
68,340 29,167 42.7% 66,610 32,042 48.1%

The Group generated its revenue from its:

(i) funeral services, which manly involve provision of funeral
related service, including arrangement services and related
consultancy services, provision of funeral and cremation
services and sale of burial plots and tombstones;

(i)  provision of advisory service on stem cells and

immunocytes; and

(iii) sales of biotechnical machineries and other electronic
products.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2020

AEBBGELEE:

iy AEERS  Z2SREHRBEEERR
% (B 1 & PR %5 R A R v s IR 75
RHAEE R MERF A REEE M
NE#)

(i)  REBANR R RZ A MRS &

(i) EPHERERLEMETEMHEE °



Management Discussion and Analysis
ERE R A

For the Year, the Group’s revenue was approximately
RMB68,340,000 (The Prior Year: RMB66,610,000), representing
an increase of approximately 2.6% for the Prior Year. The
increase was mainly contributed by the funeral services business
in the PRC.

Cost of sales

For the Group’s funeral services, the cost of sales primarily
consists of costs directly attributable to the provision of its
services, which mainly include: (i) direct labour and staff cost for
the funeral services provided by individuals during the funeral
ceremony held in a funeral parlour or a funeral service centre
managed by the Group; (ii) subcontracting charges for services
provided by the subcontractors in Taiwan; (iii) commission
expenses from the recognition of commission paid to sales
agents for funeral services deeds at the point when the services
of the funeral services deeds are provided; (iv) the management
fee and operating lease charges for hire of funeral parlours
and funeral service centres; and (v) materials used for funeral
ceremonies and cremation services such as fresh flowers, fuel
for the cremation furnace and cost of the goods sold in the
funeral parlour and funeral service centres under the Group's
management in the PRC.

On the other hand, the Group’s business in provision of
advisory services on stem cells and immunocytes and sales of
biotechnical machineries and other electronic products, the cost
of sales primarily consists of the costs of advisory services on
stem cells and immunocytes and biotechnical machineries and
other electronic products.

Gross profit

Gross profit for the Year was approximately RMB29,167,000
(The Prior Year: RMB32,042,000), and gross profit margin
decreased by approximately 5.4% to approximately 42.7% (The
Prior Year: 48.1%). The decrease in the gross profit margin was
mainly because of (i) the additional costs incurred in funeral
services in responding to the COVID-19 pandemic; and (ii)
decrease in the revenue from the provision of advisory service
on stem cells and immunocytes, which has higher gross profit
margin as compared with the funeral services segment.

Other income and other net (loss)/gain

Other income and other net (loss)/gain of approximately
RMB2,314,000 during the Year, representing a year on year
increase of 94.8% as compared with RMB1,188,000 for the
Prior Year.
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Selling and administrative expenses

Compared with the Prior Year, selling expenses for the
Year decreased by approximately 55.7% to approximately
RMB3,175,000 as the result of the reduction of sales activities
after the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic. Administrative
expenses, which accounted for approximately 36.5% (The Prior
Year: 42.4%) of revenue, decreased by approximately 11.9% to
approximately RMB24,922,000 (The Prior Year: RMB28,273,000)
due to the general decrease in the salary level across different
geographical segments during the Year.

Other operating expenses and finance costs

Other operating expenses of approximately RMB679,000 was
recorded during the Year, as compared with other operating
expenses of approximately RMB36,000 for the Prior Year.

Finance costs of the Group manly consisted of the interest
expenses on the bank borrowings and the interest expenses on
the lease liabilities under HKFRS 16. The finance costs remained
relatively stable at approximately RMB2,521,000, as compared
to that of the Prior Year of approximately RMB2,791,000.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense was mainly incurred by operations in
the PRC, which was approximately RMB3,421,000 (The Prior
Year: RMB1,236,000) for the Year, representing an increase
of approximately RMB2,185,000 or approximately 176.8%
as compared with the Prior Year. The increase was mainly
attributable to withholding tax arising from the dividend
received from the Group's subsidiaries located in the PRC.

Loss for the Year

As the result of the cumulative effect from the above-
mentioned factors, the loss attributable to the owners of the
Company for the Year was approximately RMB2,974,000, as
compared with the Prior Year of approximately RMB3,804,000.
Loss per share was approximately RMB0.40 cents (The Prior
Year: RMBO.51 cents).
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group maintains a stable financial position. As
at 31 December 2020, the Group had cash and bank
balances of approximately RMB123,674,000 (The Prior
Year: RMB119,216,000), while current and non-current
bank borrowings were approximately RMB1,138,000 and
approximately RMB5,826,000 respectively (The Prior Year:
RMB1,154,000 and approximately RMB7,235,000 respectively).
All bank loans were denominated in New Taiwan Dollars
("NTD"), at prevailing market interest rate. During the Year,
the Group did not use any financial instruments for hedging
purposes.

It is the Group’s policy to adopt a prudent financial
management strategy and maintain a suitable level of liquidity
facilities to meet operation requirements and acquisition
opportunities. As at 31 December 2020, the gearing ratio
representing the ratio of total borrowing to the total assets of
the Group was approximately 2.5% (The Prior Year: 2.9%).

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group had
commitment for the capital injections in associates and a joint
venture, in aggregate, amounted to RMB15,200,000.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no other material
capital commitments, material contracts, contingent liabilities or
significant investment plans.

Since January 2020, the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic had
impact on the global business environment. Up to the date
of this report, COVID-19 pandemic has not caused material
financial difficulties to the Group. The Group remained in a
healthy and sound liquidity position as at 31 December 2020.

Depending on the development and spread of COVID-19
pandemic, subsequent to the date of this report, further
changes in economic conditions for the Group arising thereof
may have impact on the financial results for the year ending 31
December 2021 of the Group, the extent of which could not
be estimated as at the date of this report. The Group will keep
continuous attention on the situation of COVID-19 pandemic
and react actively to its impact on the financial position and
operating results of the Group.
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EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATION IN EXCHANGE
RATES

The Group’s operations are geographically based in the PRC,
Taiwan, Hong Kong and Vietnam.

These consolidated financial statements of the Group are
presented in RMB, except for certain incomes and expenses
which are denominated in United States Dollars (“USD"), NTD,
Hong Kong Dollars (“HKD") and Vietnamese Dong (“VTD").

It is possible that the value of RMB may fluctuate against that
of USD, NTD, HKD and VTD. The Group’s operating results and
financial condition may be affected by changes in the exchange
rates of RMB against USD, NTD, HKD and VTD in which the
Group's revenue and expenses are denominated.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any
borrowings, foreign exchange contracts, interest or currency
swaps or other financial derivatives for hedging purpose.
Therefore, the Group is not exposed to any material interest
and exchange risks.

SIGNIFICANT ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSAL
OF INVESTMENTS

The Group did not have any significant acquisitions and disposal
of investments during the Year.

THE NUMBER AND REMUNERATION OF
EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group employed approximately
179 employees (The Prior Year: 188 employees). The Group
determines staff remuneration in accordance with prevailing
market salary scales, individual qualifications and performance.
Remuneration packages including performance bonuses and
entitlements to share options are reviewed on regular basis.

CHARGE ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of property,
plant and equipment pledged as security for the Group’s bank
borrowings was approximately RMB20,394,000 (The Prior Year:
RMB19,932,000).
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2020 and 20719.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

For the Year, capital expenditure of the Group for property,
plant and equipment amounted to approximately RMB3,713,000
(The Prior Year: RMB754,000).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group had
commitment for the capital injections in associates and a joint
venture, in aggregate, amounted to RMB15,200,000.

Saved as disclosed above, the Group had no other material
capital commitments, material contracts or significant
investment plans.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group's financial condition, results of operations, businesses
and prospects would be affected by a number of risks and
uncertainties including business risks and operational risks.

The key business and operations risk exposure by the Group
are summarised as follows:

(i)  Slowing down of the economy and customer spending;
(i)  Deterioration of market competition;

(iii)  Increasing life expectancy and decline in the number of
deceased persons;

(ivy  Non-compliance with any relevant rules and regulations
in the PRC by the owners of funeral parlour and funeral
service centres in the PRC; and

(v)  Reliance on qualified and skilled employees as the
business operations of the Group are service-oriented.
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The Group is also exposed to certain financial risk, including
market risk (including foreign exchange risk and interest rate
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. Details of financial risks are
set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, there may be other risks and
uncertainties in addition to those mentioned above which are
not known to the Group or which may not be material now
but could turn out to be material in the future.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND

PERFORMANCE

The Group emphasises on environmental conservation.
Although the Group does not establish a formal environmental
policy, various measures have been implemented to encourage
compliance with environmental legislation and promote
awareness towards environmental protection to the employees.
It implements green office practices such as double-sided
printing and copying, promoting using recycled paper and
reducing energy consumption by switching off idle lightings
and electrical appliances. To conserve the environment, the
Company encourages staff to maintain electronic records in
order to reduce paper consumption. The Group will review
its environmental practices periodically and will consider
implementing further eco-friendly measures and practices in the
operation of the Group’s businesses.

In accordance with Rule 17.103 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “"GEM
Listing Rules”), the Company will publish an environmental,
social and governance (“ESG") report within three months after
the publication of this annual report in compliance with the
provisions set out in the ESG Reporting Guide in Appendix 20
of the GEM Listing Rules.
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LAWS AND REGULATIONS OF OUR BUSINESS

As far as the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Director(s)”)
of the Company and management are aware, the Group
has complied in material respects with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the business and
operation of the Group. During the Year, there was no material
breach of or non-compliance with the applicable laws and
regulations by the Group.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group establishes good working relationship with
employees. The quality of the employer-employee relationship
affects each employee’s morale, productivity and ultimately,
the Company’s profitability. Each employee’s ideal
environment varies and the expectations include a relationship
that is mutually respect, encourages open communication and
is free of hostile working conditions. Certain employees have
worked for the Group for over 15 years.

work

The Group has built a solid track record for providing reliable
and cost competitive funeral services and has a good reputation
with the customers. The Group has also conducted survey of
customers’ opinion on its services with regard to the types of
services which had been provided to the customers and their
comments on the quality of the services provided.

The Group puts strong emphasis on the reliability of suppliers
to meet the needs of our customers. The Group's practice to
make prompt payment to suppliers benefited the Group from
negotiating a better price and maintaining long-term relation
with the suppliers.

During the Year, there were no material and significant dispute
between the Group and its employees, suppliers and/or
customers.
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PROSPECTS

The Board believes that the Group’s business is rather stable as
our business is currently focused on mainland China. Despite
of the impact from the sudden COVID-19 pandemic in 2020,
the Chinese government has adopted comprehensive prevention
and control measures to provide guarantees for the resumption
of work and production, and launched a series of policy
measures to support the accelerated recovery of the economy.
On the one hand, due to our business nature, the COVID-19
pandemic has almost no adverse effect on the provision of
funeral services, cremation and cemetery services, and the
Group recorded positive year-on-year growth in China. On the
other hand, the Group implemented a diversified development
strategy in early 2019, prioritizing the pilot stem cell business,
and developing stem cells, culture media, equipment and other
related businesses. After two years of initial development, this
business has made substantial progress with the efforts of the
management.

Up to the date of this report, the COVID-19 pandemic has not
caused material financial difficulties to the Group. The Group
will continue to pay attention to the updates on COVID-19
pandemic and actively respond to its impact on the Group’s
financial condition and results of operation.

Looking forward to the future, the Group will consolidate
its traditional funeral service business while allocating more
resources on the development of emerging industries in
biotechnology. The biotechnology industry is a multi-disciplinary
industry. In the future, it will be integrated and developed with
new technologies such as artificial intelligence, big data, new
materials, and the Internet, such as medical robots and desktop
electron microscopes. Therefore, the Group will accurately grasp
the future development trends of technological innovation
and application scenarios in the biotechnology industry, and
strengthen external cooperation through business licensing
(authorization), equity investment, investment and mergers and
acquisitions, and meanwhile, it will formulate a combination
of incentive measures to attract and retain cutting-edge
talents, management talents and relevant persons who have
contributed to the development of the Group, so as to improve
the current operating conditions of the Group, optimize the
business structure, increase profitability, and promote the long-
term sustainable and high-quality development of the Group'’s
business.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The corporate governance practices of Sino-Life Group Limited
(the “Company”) are based on the principles and the code
provisions as set out in the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 15 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock
Exchange (the "GEM Listing Rules”). The principles adopted
by the Company emphasis a quality board, transparency and
accountability to shareholders. In the opinion of the board
(the “Board”) of directors (the “Director(s)”) of the Company,
the Company has complied with the Code for the year ended
31 December 2020 (the “Year”), with the exception for the
following deviation:

Under the code provision A.6.7 of the Code, independent non-
executive directors and other non-executive directors should
attend general meetings and develop a balanced understanding
of the views of shareholders. In addition, under the code
provision E.1.2 of the Code, the chairman of the board should
attend the annual general meeting and he should also invite
the chairmen of the audit, remuneration, nomination and any
other committees (as appropriate) to attend. Certain independent
non-executive Directors, for the time when the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 10 August 2020 (“2020
AGM"), had other business engagements and thus, were not
able to attend the 2020 AGM. In this regard, the compliance
officer (the “Compliance Officer”) and company secretary (the
“Company Secretary”) of the Company had reminded the
relevant independent non-executive Directors as well as other
current independent non-executive Directors and non-executive
Director to attend general meetings of the Company in future
for compliance of code provision A.6.7 as set out in the Code.

The Company will continue to enhance its corporate governance
practices appropriate to the conduct and growth of its business
and to review its corporate governance practices from time to
time to ensure they comply with the statutory requirements and
the Code and align with the latest developments.
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NON-COMPLIANCE WITH FINANCIAL
REPORTING PROVISIONS OF THE GEM
LISTING RULES

Due to the travel restriction in force in Taiwan and Vietnam
to combat the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic, the audit of
the financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2019 has been affected. The Company was unable
to publish and despatch the audited annual results for the
financial year ended 31 December 2019 (the “2019 Annual
Results”) and the related annual report for the year ended 31
December 2019 (the “2019 Annual Report”) on or before 31
March 2020 as required by the GEM Listing Rules. Such delay
has constituted non-compliance with Rules 18.03 and 18.49
of the GEM Listing Rules. However, in accordance with the
FURTHER GUIDANCE ON THE JOINT STATEMENT IN RELATION
TO RESULTS ANNOUNCEMENTS IN LIGHT OF THE COVID-19
PANDEMIC released on 16 March 2020 (“Further Guidance”) by
The Securities and Futures Commission and the Stock Exchange,
an issuer may defer the publication of the annual report initially
for up to 60 days from the date of the Further Guidance if,
among other things, on or before 15 May 2020. The Company
has published its preliminary 2019 Annual Results without its
auditors’ agreement pursuant to the Further Guidance on 31
March 2020. The supplemental announcements on the 2019
Annual Results have been published on 22 June 2020 and 8
July 2020 respectively and the 2019 Annual Report has been
published and delivered on 30 June 2020.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting than
the required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67
of the GEM Listing Rules. Specific enquiry has been made of all
the Directors and the Directors have confirmed that they have
complied with such code of conduct throughout the Year.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

A)

Board Composition
For the Year and until the date of this report, the Board
comprises members as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Xu Jianchun (Chairman)

Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai (Chief executive officer)

Dr. Xu Qiang (Chief executive officer)
(Redesignated on 22 January 2021)

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Chai Chung Wai

Mr. Sun Fei

Mr. Wang Jun

The composition of the Board is well balanced with each
Director having sound industry knowledge, extensive
corporate and strategic planning experience and/or
expertise relevant to the business of the Group. Pursuant
to the Code, the Board adopted a board diversity policy
(the “Board Diversity Policy”, and further elaborate
below). The Company recognises and embraces the
benefits of diversity of Board members. While all Board's
appointments will continue to be made on a merit
basis, the Company will ensure that the Board has a
balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the needs of the Company’s business.
Selection of candidates will be based on a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, experience
(professional or otherwise), skills and knowledge. There
was change in members of the Board during the Year
and up to the date of this annual report as below:

- Dr. XU Qiang has been redesignated from a non-
executive Director to an executive Director with
effect from 22 January 2021.

The biographical details of the Directors and the
relationship among the members of the Board, if any,
are set out in the “Biographical Details of the Directors
and Senior Management” on pages from 41 to 44 of this
annual report.
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Role and Function

The Board is responsible for formulating the strategic
business development, reviewing and monitoring the
business performance of the Group, as well as preparing
and approving the consolidated financial statements of
the Company. The Directors, collectively and individually,
are aware of their responsibilities to the shareholders
of the Company (the “Shareholder(s)”), for the manner
in which the affairs of the Group are managed and
operated. As and when necessary, the Directors can
access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary, and in the appropriate circumstances, seeking
of independent professional advice at the Group's
expense to ensure that the Board’'s procedures, and all
applicable rules and regulations are followed.

The Board gives clear directions as to the powers
delegated to the management for the day-to-day
management and administration functions of the
Group, in particular, with respect to the circumstances
where management should report back and obtain
prior approval from the Board before making decisions
or entering into any commitments on behalf of the
Group. The Board fully supports the senior management
to discharge its duties and responsibilities in all
circumstances. The Board will review those arrangements
on a periodic basis to ensure that they remain appropriate
to the needs of the Group.

The independent non-executive Directors have brought
in a wide range of business and financial expertise,
experiences and independent judgment to the Board.
Through active participation in the Board meetings and
serving on various Board committees, all independent
non-executive Directors will make various contributions to
the Company.
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The Board normally should schedule four meetings
a year at quarterly intervals and meets as and when
required to discuss the overall business, development
strategy, operations and financial reporting of the
Company. For the Year, the Board held 6 meetings. The
Directors can attend meetings in person or through
other means of electronic communication in accordance
with the Company’s articles of association (the “Articles
of Association”). The Directors will receive agenda and
details of items for decision in advance of each board
meeting. The following table shows the attendance of
individual Directors at the Board meetings and general
meetings held during the Year:
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Board meeting 2020 AGM
=t =+ 1
EEEgEs RFEBEXE

Executive Directors BITESE
Mr. Xu Jianchun (Chairman) TRELRE(EFE)
Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai N s

(Chief executive officer) (7T A8 #)
Non-executive Director EBRTEE
Dr. Xu Qiang* R AELx

Independent non-executive BIAKBITESE

Directors
Mr. Chai Chung Wai BERELEE
Mr. Sun Fei ‘R OmEAE
Mr. Wang Jun T HE&E

* Dr. Xu has been redesignated from a non-executive Director
to an executive Director on 22 January 2021.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Pursuant to the code provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of
chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”) and chief executive
officer (the “CEQ") of the Company should be segregated and
should not be performed by the same individual. The division
of responsibilities between the Chairman and CEO should be
clearly established and set out in writing.

6/6 0/1
6/6 0/1
5/6 0/1
6/6 11
6/6 0n
5/6 0/1

* pEmEtIa T —F—A=+=H
HIERTEFTHIRNUTES -
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FE (X8 BTRAR(TRAE)
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The positions of Chairman and CEO of the Company for the
Year are held separately by Mr. Xu Jianchun and Mr. Liu Tien-
Tsai, respectively. The Chairman is responsible for the Group's
strategic planning and the management of the operations
of the Board, while the CEO takes the lead in the Group's
operations and business development. There is a clear division
of responsibilities between the Chairman and CEO of the
Company which provides a balance of power and authority.

Subsequent to the Year, Dr. Xu Qiang was appointed as a CEO
on 22 January 2021.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

During the Year, the Board complies at all times with
the requirement of the GEM Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least 3 independent non-executive Directors
presenting at least one-third of the Board with at least one of
them has appropriate professional qualifications of accounting
or related financial management expertise. The Company has
received from each independent non-executive Director an
annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 5.09
of the GEM Listing Rules and the Company considers all the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent for the
Year.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the Code, all Directors
should participate in a programme of continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills
to ensure that their contribution to the board remains informed
and relevant. The Company should be responsible for arranging
and funding training, placing an appropriate emphasis on the
roles, functions and duties of the Directors.

During the Year and up to the date of this report, all Directors
have confirmed that they have participated in continuous
professional development by attending training course or
reading relevant materials on the topics related to roles,
functions and duties of a director of a listed company. All
newly appointed Directors before their appointment will be
given relevant guideline materials regarding the duties and
responsibilities of being a Director, the relevant laws and
regulations applicable to the Directors, duty of disclosure of
interest and business of the Group. All Directors have been
updated on the latest developments regarding the GEM Listing
Rules and other applicable regulatory requirement to ensure
compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has also established the following committees with
defined terms of reference:

Audit Committee

Remuneration Committee

Nomination Committee

Each Board committee makes decisions on matters within its
terms of reference and applicable limits of authority. The terms
of reference as well as the structure and membership of each
committee will be reviewed from time to time.

A)

Audit Committee

The Company has established an audit committee (the
"Audit Committee”) with written terms of reference in
compliance with Rules 5.28 to 5.33 of the GEM Listing
Rules which consists of three independent non-executive
Directors. The terms of reference setting out the Audit
Committee’s authority, duties and responsibilities are
available on both the GEM website and the Company’s
website.

Composition and Meeting Record of the Audit
Committee

For the Year, 6 meetings were held. The following table
shows the attendance of individual Directors at the
meetings held during the Year:

Mr. Sun Fei (Chairman) 6/6
Mr. Chai Chung Wai 6/6
Mr. Wang Jun 5/6

Role and Function
The major responsibilities of the Audit Committee include,
among others, the followings:

making recommendation to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of
external auditor of the Company (the “External
Auditor”);
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ii. reviewing and monitoring the External Auditor’s
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness
of the audit process in accordance with applicable
accounting standard;

iii.  monitoring the integrity of the Group’s consolidated
financial statements, annual reports and accounts,
half-yearly reports and quarterly reports;

iv.  liaising with the Board and the senior management
and to meet with the External Auditor;

V. overviewing the Group’s financial controls, internal
control and risk management systems; and

vi.  reviewing the financial and accounting policies and
practices of the Group.

During the Year, the Audit Committee has reviewed the
quarterly reports, half-yearly report and annual report
before submission to the Board. The Audit Committee has
made recommendation to the Board on the appointment
of new External Auditor. The Audit Committee focused
not only on the impact of the changes in accounting
policies and practices but also on the compliance with
accounting standards, the GEM Listing Rules and the
legal requirements in the review of the Group’s quarterly
reports, half-yearly report and annual report. The Audit
Committee has also reviewed the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems, considered
the re-election of External Auditor, discussed with the
External Auditor about the audit plan and reviewed the
continuing connected transactions of the Company.

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established a remuneration committee
(the “Remuneration Committee”) according to the
relevant provision of the GEM Listing Rules with written
terms of reference which consists of three independent
non-executive Directors. The terms of reference setting
out the Remuneration Committee’s authority, duties and
responsibilities are available on both the GEM website and
the Company’s website. The Remuneration Committee
has adopted the operation model where it performs an
advisory role to the Board, with the Board retaining the
final authority to approve the remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and senior management.
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Composition and Meeting Record of the
Remuneration Committee
For the Year, 1 meeting was held. The following table
shows the attendance of individual Directors at the
meetings held during the Year:

Mr. Chai Chung Wai (Chairman) il
Mr. Sun Fei i
Mr. Wang Jun 1Al

Role and Function
The major responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
include, among others, the followings:

making recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all remuneration
of Directors and senior management;

ii. determining the specific remuneration packages of
all executive Directors and senior management;

iii. reviewing and approving performance-based
remuneration by reference to corporate goals and
objectives resolved by the Board from time to time;
and

iv.  reviewing and approving the compensation payable
to executive Directors and senior management
in connection with any loss or termination of
their office or appointment to ensure that such
compensation is determined in accordance
with relevant contractual terms and that such
compensation is otherwise fair and not excessive
for the Company.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee has
reviewed the remuneration package of the Board
members and the senior management of the Company.
No Director was involved in deciding his/her own
remuneration.

Particulars of the Directors’ emoluments for the Year are
set out in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Remuneration of Senior Management by Band
Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 the Code, details of
the annual remuneration of the members of the senior
management by band for the Year were as follows:

REEBONSREEEFH
RIBESTRIEBISIRTRMRX - SAE
BEEKRERAFENFEHMFIBR
SEFHINOT

Number of
employee(s)

EE#HE

Nil to HK$1,000,000

£ 1,000,000 7T

3

Nomination Committee

The Company has established a nomination committee
(the “Nomination Committee”) with written terms of
reference in accordance with requirements of the Stock
Exchange which consists of three independent non-
executive Directors. The terms of reference setting
out the Nomination Committee’s authority, duties and
responsibilities are available on both the GEM website and
the Company’s website.

Composition and Meeting Record of the
Nomination Committee

For the Year, 1 meeting was held. The following table
shows the attendance of individual Directors at the
meetings held during the Year:

Mr. Wang Jun (Chairman) I7Al
Mr. Chai Chung Wai 11
Mr. Sun Fei 171

Role and Function
The major responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
include, among others, the followings:

i reviewing the structure, size, composition and
diversify for consistency (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board on a
regular basis and making recommendations to the
Board regarding any proposed changes,

i identifying individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members and making recommendations to
the Board on the selection of individuals nominated
for directorships;

iii.  assessing the independence of independent non-
executive Directors;
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making recommendations to the Board on relevant
matters relating to the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning
for Directors, in particular the Chairman and the
CEO;

making recommendations to the Board on the
policy concerning the diversity of Board members;
and

reviewing and giving full consideration to the Board
Diversity Policy adopted from time to time.

The summary of work performed by the Nomination
Committee during the Year is as follows:

To review the existing Board’s structure, size,
composition and diversity;

To review the Board Diversity Policy;
To review the nomination policy of the Board
("Board Nomination Policy” and further elaborate

below);

To review and assess the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors; and

To make recommendations on the retiring Directors
at the 2020 AGM of the Company.
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Board Nomination Policy

The Company adopted the Board Nomination Policy,
which establishes written guidelines to the Nomination
Committee to identify individuals suitably qualified to
become Board members and make recommendations to
the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships with reference to the formulated criteria.
The Board is ultimately responsible for selection and
appointment of new Directors.

#&m

The Board, through the delegation of its authority to
the Nomination Committee, has used its best efforts to
ensure that Directors appointed to the Board possess
the relevant background, experience and knowledge in
business, finance and management skills critical to the
Group’s business to enable the Board to make sound
and well considered decisions. Collectively, they have
competencies in areas which are relevant and valuable to
the Group.

Nomination Process

The Nomination Committee shall assess whether any
vacancy on the Board has been created or is expected
on a regular basis or as required.

The Nomination Committee utilises various methods
for identifying candidates, including recommendations
from Board members, management, and professional
search firms. All candidates, including incumbents and
candidates nominated by Shareholders are evaluated by
the Nomination Committee based upon the Director’s
qualifications. While candidates will be evaluated on
the same criteria through review of resume, personal
interview and performance of background checks. The
Nomination Committee retains the discretion to establish
the relative weighting of such criteria, which may vary
based on the composition, skill sets, age, gender and
experiences of the collective Board rather than on
the individual candidate for the purpose of diversity
perspectives appropriate to the requirement of the
Company’s businesses.
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Selection Criteria

The Nomination Committee will take into account a
variety of factors including without limitation to whether
a candidate has the qualifications, skills, experience and
gender diversity that add to and complement the range
of skills, experience and background of existing Directors
by considering the highest personal and professional
ethics and integrity of the candidates, proven achievement
and competence in the nominee’s field and the ability
to exercise sound business judgment, skills that are
complementary to those of the existing Board, the ability
to assist and support management and make significant
contributions to the Company’s success and such other
factors as it may deem are in the best interests of the
Company and the Shareholders.

During the Year, no new Director was appointed.

The Company shall review and reassess the Board
Nomination Policy and its effectiveness on a regular basis
or as required.

Board Diversity Policy

The composition of the Board is reviewed on an annual
basis by the Nomination Committee to ensure that
the Board has the appropriate mix of expertise and
experience, and collectively possesses the necessary core
competence for informed decision-making and effective
functioning. The Company adopted the Board Diversity
Policy and recognises the benefits of having diversity in
the composition of the Board.

Measurable Objectives

The Company noted that people from different
background and with different professional and life
experience are likely to approach problems in different
ways and accordingly, members of the Board with
diverse background will bring different concerns and
guestions to the table, and allow the Board to consider a
wider range of options and solutions when deciding on
corporate issues and formulating policies for the Group.
In determining the Board’s composition and selection
of candidates to the Board, the Nomination Committee
will consider factors including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, industry knowledge and
length of service.
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All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy,
and candidates will be considered against the selection
criteria, having regard for the benefits of diversity on
the Board, the business model and specific needs of the
Group. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.

#&m

Composition of the Diversified Board

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises
six Directors. The following table further illustrate the
composition and diversity of the Board in terms of age,
length of service with the Group, educational background
and professional experience as of the date of this annual
report:

FMBEEEEZABERAAEST R
A WIRHRIZEERFREA - EF
CEBEEEKNEZ LB A&
ExBEARABER - &KRRTE
BETETBREAZESYREAE
EEHRNERME

AEZntRECESES AN
RAFHAY  EFghA UESA
e TRE-THARAFHREH
EXESHEFR NAKEZREF
H - BFEEILREXLRITEZAE
REREBZITIERE:

Age Group Length of Service Educational Background Professional Experience
FRE B 75 4 4 FEER EE3d
less than  more than Accounting

Name of Directors 35 to 50 over 50 5 years 5 years Science  Accountancy  Others Science  and Finance Management
EEfE 3SHRES06 S0RMLE SEZUT  SEML Bg Hfh BE  EiRem  EE
Mr. Xu Jianchun 4 v/ v v/ 4
FREAE
Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai 4 4 4 4
£ P
Dr. Xu Qiang et v/ v/ v/ v/ v/
# wELe®
Mr. Chai Chung Wai 4 4 v/ 4
BERELE
Mr. Sun Fei 4 4 v/ 4
7 OREE
Mr. Wang Jun 4 v v 4
T HE4E

Note: Dr. Xu Qiang was redesignated from a non-executive
Director to an executive Director on 22 January 2021.

The Nomination Committee believes that the current
composition of the Board demonstrates a thorough
consideration of the measurable objectives for achieving
board diversity.

The Board will take opportunities to increase the
proportion of female members over time when selecting
and making recommendation on suitable candidates
for Board appointments. The Board would ensure that
appropriate balance of gender diversity is achieved with
reference to stakeholders’ expectation and international
and local recommended best practices, with the ultimate
goal of bringing the Board to gender parity.
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APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL
OF DIRECTORS

Under code provision A.4.1 of the Code, all the non-executive
Directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-
election. At present, each of Mr. Chai Chung Wai, Mr. Sun Fei
and Mr. Wang Jun, the independent non-executive Directors,
have been appointed for a specific term of three years.

According to the requirements of article 16.18 of the Articles
of Association, one-third of the Directors are required to retire
from office at each annual general meeting, provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
in every three years. The Directors to retire every year shall
be those appointed by the Board during the year and those
who have been longest in office since their last re-election.
Where a retiring Director, being eligible, offers himself for re-
election, the Board shall consider and, if consider appropriate,
recommend such retiring Director to stand for re-election at a
general meeting. A circular containing the requisite information
on such retiring Director will be sent to Shareholders prior to
a general meeting in accordance with the GEM Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

All members of the Board are responsible for performing
the corporate governance functions set out in code provision
D.3.1 of the Code, which include developing and reviewing
the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance
(including those on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements), monitoring the Company’s compliance with
the Code and reviewing the disclosures in the Corporate
Governance Report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited was appointed as the External Auditor
of the Company. The External Auditor is primarily responsible
for providing audit services in connection with the annual
consolidated financial statements. During the Year, the total
remuneration in respect of services provided by Crowe (HK)
CPA Limited amounted to approximately RMB711,000, of which
approximately RMB711,000 was incurred for statutory audit and
nil was incurred for non-audit services which mainly included
the review of the preliminary result announcement of the Group
and other professional services.
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DIRECTORS" AND AUDITOR'S
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

#&m

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements for each financial period
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group and of the results and cash flows for the period. In
preparing the consolidated financial statements for the Year,
the Directors have selected appropriate accounting policies and
applied them consistently, made judgements and estimates
that are prudent, fair and reasonable and on a going concern
basis. The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for
preparing the consolidated financial statements of the Group.
Having made appropriate enquiries, the Board is not aware any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions which
may cast significant doubt over the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. It is the External Auditor’s responsibility
to form an independent opinion, based on their audit, on
those consolidated financial statements and to report their
opinion solely to the Shareholders, as a body, and for no other
purpose. They do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of the independent
auditor’s report. The statement of the External Auditor about
their reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial
statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on
pages 63 to 70 of this annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chu Kin Ming (“Mr. Chu”) was appointed as the Company
Secretary on 11 June 2019. Mr. Chu has taken no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training during the Year.

Biographical detail of Mr. Chu is set out in the section headed
“Biographical Details of the Directors and Senior Management”
in this annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Company has established the framework of risk
management and internal control below with a view to
adopting the Code as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing
Rules:

(@  The process used to identify, evaluate and manage
significant risks

The processes used to identify, evaluate and manage
significant risks by the Group are summarised as follows:

Risk Identification — Identifies risks that may potentially
affect the Group’s business and operations.

Risk Assessment — (i) Assesses the risks identified by using
the assessment criteria developed by the management;
and (i) Considers the impacts and consequences on the
business and the likelihood of their occurrence.

Risk Response — (i) Prioritises the risks by comparing the
results of the risk assessment; and (ii) Determines the risk
management strategies and internal control processes to
prevent, avoid or mitigate the risks.

Risk Monitoring and Reporting — (i) Performs ongoing
and periodic monitoring of the risk and ensures that
appropriate internal control processes are in place; (ii)
Revises the risk management strategies and internal
control processes in case of any significant change of
situation; and (iii) Reports the results of risk monitoring
to the management and the Board regularly.

(b)  The main features of the risk management and internal
control systems

Control procedures have been designed to: (i) safequard
assets against misappropriation and disposition; (i) ensure
compliance with relevant laws, rules and regulations; (iii)
ensure proper maintenance of accounting records for
provision of reliable financial information used within the
business or for publication; and (iv) to provide reasonable
assurance against material misstatement, loss or fraud.
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An acknowledgement by the Board that it is responsible
for the risk management and internal control systems
and reviewing their effectiveness. It should also explain
that such systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatements or losses

The Board is responsible for establishing and maintaining
the sound risk management and internal control systems
of the Company on an ongoing basis, as well as reviewing
and evaluating their design and effectiveness at least
annually. The Board oversees the overall risk management
of the Group, endeavours to identify respective risks
of major business segments, analyse control impact
of the identified risks and facilitate implementation of
coordinated mitigating measures. The risk management
and internal control systems of the Company are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failures
to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatements or losses.

The process used to review the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems and to resolve
material internal control defects

The Company has engaged Crowe (HK) Risk Advisory
Limited as its risk management and internal control
review adviser (the “Adviser”) with a view to facilitate the
Company in maintaining an internal audit function. The
Company has also formulated an internal audit charter
to define the scope, duties, responsibilities and reporting
protocol of the internal audit function. The Adviser
has assisted the Company in conducting an annual risk
assessment to identify significant risks by strategic risks,
operational risks, financial risks and compliance risks of
its major business segments. A three-year internal audit
plan was determined based upon the results of risk
assessment under the risk-based audit approach. The
Advisor also assisted the Board and the Audit Committee
in performing an independent annual review of the
effectiveness and adequacy of the risk management
and internal control systems for the Year. Such review is
conducted annually according to the three-year internal
audit plan approved by the Audit Committee. The Adviser
has reported findings and areas for improvement to the
Audit Committee and management. The Board and the
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Audit Committee are of the view that there were no
material internal control defeats noted for the Year. All
recommendations from the Adviser would be properly
followed up by the Group to ensure that they would be
implemented within a reasonable period of time. The
Board therefore considered that the risk management and
internal control systems are effective and adequate for
the Year.

(e)  The procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information

An information disclosure policy is in place to ensure
potential inside information being captured and
confidentiality of such information being maintained until
consistent and timely disclosure are made in accordance
with the GEM Listing Rules. The policy regulates the
handling and dissemination of inside information, which
includes: (i) designated reporting channels from different
operations informing any potential inside information
to designated departments; (i) designated persons
and departments to determine further escalation and
disclosure as required; and (iii) designated persons
authorised to act as spokespersons and respond to
external enquiries.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting

Pursuant to article 12.3 of the Articles of Association,
extraordinary general meetings of the Company (the “EGM(s)")
shall also be convened on the requisition of two or more
Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition,
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
having the right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition
shall be made in writing to the Directors or the Company
Secretary for the purpose of requiring an EGM to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition. If within twenty-one days of such deposit
the Directors fail to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) representing more than
one-half of the total voting rights of all of them may do so
in the same manner, provided that such meeting shall be held
within three months after the deposit of such requisition, and
all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s), as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Procedures for Shareholders to nominate a person
for election as a Director

Pursuant to article 16.4 of the Articles of Association, no person
shall, unless recommended by the Board, be eligible for election
to the office of Director at any general meeting unless during
the period, which shall be at least seven days, commencing
no earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice of
the meeting appointed for such election and ending no later
than seven days prior to the date of such meeting, there has
been given to the Company Secretary notice in writing by a
Shareholder (not being the person to be proposed), entitled to
attend and vote at the meeting for which such notice is given,
of his intention to propose such person for election and also
notice in writing signed by the person to be proposed of his
willingness to be elected.

#&m

The details of the Company’s procedures for Shareholders to
propose a person for election as a Director are set out in the
“Procedures for shareholders to nominate a person for election
as a Director” which is available on the Company’s website at
www.sinolifegroup.com.

Procedures for Shareholders to put enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders may at any time make a request for the Company’s
information to the extent such information is publicly available.
Any such questions shall be first directed to the Company
Secretary at the Company’s head office and principal place of
business in Hong Kong or the Company’s Hong Kong branch
share registrar and transfer office.

Shareholders or investors can raise questions or provide
comments and suggestions to the Company through the
following means:

By post: Unit 601, 6/F., Ovest
77 Wing Lok Street
Sheung Wan
Hong Kong

By email: ir@sinolifegroup.com
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Procedures for Shareholders to put forward
proposals at Shareholders’ meeting

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to make
proposals or move resolutions at the general meetings
under the memorandum of the Company and the Articles
of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands. However,
Shareholders are welcomed to put forward proposals relating
to the operations and management of the Group to be
discussed at Shareholders’ meetings. The proposals shall be
sent to the Company Secretary at the contact details as set
out in the paragraph headed “Procedures for Shareholders to
put enquiries to the Board” above by a written requisition.
Shareholders who wish to put forward a proposal should
convene an EGM by following the procedures set out in the
paragraphs headed “Procedures for Shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting” above.

DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS INSURANCE

Appropriate insurance covers on Directors’ and officers’
liabilities have been in force to protect the Directors and officers
of the Group from their risk exposure arising from the business
of the Group.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There is no change in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the Year.

VOTING BY POLL

Pursuant to Rule 17.47(4) of the GEM Listing Rules, any vote
of shareholders at a general meeting must be taken by poll
except where the Chairman, in good faith, decides to allow a
resolution which relates purely to a procedural or administrative
matter to be voted on by a show of hands.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION
WITH SHAREHOLDERS

To ensure effective communication between the Board and
the Shareholders, the Company has adopted a Shareholders’
communication policy (the “Communication Policy”). Under
the Communication Policy, the Company’s information shall
be communicated to the Shareholders mainly through general
meetings, including annual general meetings, the Group’s
financial reports (quarterly reports, half-yearly report and
annual report), its corporate communications and other
corporate publications on the Company’s website and the Stock
Exchange’s website and meetings with investors and analysts.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

#&r:

The Company adopted a policy on payment of dividends
(the “Dividend Policy”) in March 2019, which establishes an
appropriate procedure on declaring and recommending the
dividend payment of the Company.

The Company will declare and/or recommend the payment of
dividends to the Shareholders after considering the Company’s
ability to pay dividends, which will depend on a number of
factors, including but not limited to:

(i)  the Group's actual and expected financial performance;

(i)  the Group’s expected working capital requirements,
capital expenditure requirements and future expansion
plans;

(iii)  retained earnings and distributable reserves of the
Company and each of the members of the Group;

(iv)  the Group's liquidity position;

(v)  the general economic conditions and other internal or
external factors that may have an impact on the business
or financial performance and position of the Group; and

(vi)  any other factors that the Board deems relevant.

The Board has complete discretion on whether to pay a
dividend, subject to Shareholders’ approval, where applicable.
Even if the Board decides to recommend and pay dividends, the
form, frequency and amount will depend upon the operations
and earnings, capital requirements and surplus, general financial
condition, contractual restrictions and other factors of and
affecting the Group. The Board may also consider declaring
interim dividends from time to time.

The Company shall review and reassess the Dividend Policy and
its effectiveness on a regular basis or as required.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2020
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Biographical Details of the Directors and Senior Management
EENESREBEYER
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As the date of this annual report, the biographical information
of the Group’s Directors and senior management are as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Xu Jianchun (§¥# %), aged 42, was appointed on 22
December 2017 as the Chairman of the Board. Mr. Xu holds
a doctorate degree in economics from Renmin University of
China. Mr. Xu has many years of investment experience in
the biotechnology sector. He has extensive experience in the
biotechnology investment and operation field.

Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai (21 Bf), aged 63, was appointed on 24
February 2005. Mr. Liu is responsible for the overall corporate
strategies, planning, overall operational management and
business development of the Group. Mr. Liu is a director
of all subsidiaries of the Group (including Bau Shan Life
Science Technology Co., Ltd (Zl4AmBIREMHERQR)
("Bau Shan”). Mr. Liu founded Bau Shan and became its
controlling shareholder in 1998, and has since then been
continuously expanding its management team. Mr. Liu is also
the team head of the funeral services deed team. Since the
Group's establishment, Mr. Liu has played an active role in
training its team. Mr. Liu obtained certificates in Non-Profit
Making Organisation Management and Mortuary Science and
Funeral Service Management from Nanhua University (FJ X
E) in 2000 and 2001 respectively. Having over 10 years of
managerial, corporate and business experience, Mr. Liu began
his career in funeral business since 1998. Mr. Liu has been a
member of Japan Environmental Zhai Yuan Association (H 78
IRIEI 581 @), the National Funeral Director Association of
the United States and the FIAT-IFTA of Holland, and a council
member of Society of Chinese Funeral Education (# % R B &
ZEHFEE) and Chinese Society of Life and Death Studies (&
FEASLEE) Mr. Liu had also been a lecturer holding seminars
on the skills of being a ceremonial master and cosmetology at
the Continuing Education Centre, Ling Tung College (%85 £k i
BB EZH B R D) in Taiwan. Mr. Liu is currently an
honorary member of the China Funeral Association (4 [E7& &
# &) in the PRC.
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Dr. Xu Qiang (#&3%), aged 43, was appointed on 1 March
2019 as a non-executive Director and was redesignated from
a non-executive Director to an executive Director on 22
January 2021. Dr. Xu obtained his master’s degree in Materials
Physics and Chemistry from Tsinghua University in 2003. In
2008, he has obtained a doctorate’s degree in Quantitative
Electron Diffraction from Delft University of Technology in
the Netherlands. Since 2012, Dr. Xu has served successively
as Product Manager, Director of Application and is now the
Vice President of Business Development in a nanotechnology
company, focusing on the development of electron microscope
related products, in the Netherlands.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chai Chung Wai (2 £ {&), aged 54, was appointed on
16 February 2009. Mr. Chai obtained his master degree of
Accounting from Jinan University on 6 January 2004 and of
business administration from the University of Manchester in
December 2006. Mr. Chai is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants, a fellow of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, an associate of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and
a Fellow of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. Chai has
extensive experience of over 20 years in the accounting and
financial field. Mr. Chai has been the company secretary of
Ping Shan Tea Group Limited. He is currently independent non-
executive director of Sino Energy International Holdings Group
Limited (a company listed in Hong Kong, stock code: 1096). Mr.
Chai was an independent non-executive director of Asia Coal
Limited (@ company formerly listed in Hong Kong, stock code:
835, and cancelled listing on 18 June 2019) from September
2018 to June 2019.
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Biographical Detals of the Directors and Senior Management
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Mr. Sun Fei (), aged 41, was appointed on 23 January
2018. Mr. Sun obtained a Bachelor of Science degree in
biophysics from the Department for Intensive Instruction of
Science and Arts of Nanjing University in 2001, and obtained
a doctorate degree in biophysics from the School of Medicine,
Tsinghua University in 2006. Since 2006, he has been a
researcher at the Institute of Biophysics of the Chinese Academy
of Sciences, conducting an independent research on biophysics
and structural biology. Since 2012, he has served as the
director of the Center for Biological Imaging of the Institute
of Biophysics of the Chinese Academy of Sciences, leading the
establishment and operation of the international-class Center
for Biological Imaging. Since 2015, he has been appointed as
professor at the University of Chinese Academy of Sciences,
teaching graduate and undergraduate students. He has
extensive research experience in biophysical technology, cryo-
electron microscopy, biological macromolecular structure and
biological imaging, and has extensive management experience
in the operation and maintenance of research platforms.
In 2009, Mr. Sun was awarded the Shizhang Bei Prize in
Biophysics. In 2013, he was chosen to participate as a teenage
talent in the National Special Support Program for High-Level
Talents, the “Ten Thousand Talent Program”. In 2017, Mr. Sun
was awarded the Outstanding Contribution Award for his
contributions to cryo-electron microscopy in China. In 2017, he
was elected as the managing director of the Biophysical Society
of China and the vice-chairman of the Cryo-electron Microscopy
Branch of the Biophysical Society of China.
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Mr. Wang Jun (E1J), aged 49, was appointed on 17 April
2018. He received his Bachelor of Science in Chemistry and Cell
Biology in 1993 and a Doctor in Polymer Chemistry and Physics
in 1999 from College of Chemistry and Molecular Sciences,
Wuhan University. From 1999 to 2004, he has worked as a
postdoctoral fellow at Johns Hopkins Singapore Pte Ltd (%%
ET S ML ABBR2QA*) and the School of Medicine
at Johns Hopkins University. From 2004 to 2016, he has been
a professor and a doctoral tutor at the University of Science
and Technology of China. Since 2016, he has been a professor
and a doctoral tutor of School of Medicine, Institutes for Life
Sciences, South China University of Technology. He has excellent
research experiences in biomedical polymers, nanobiomaterials
and nanomedicine. He was awarded the “Hundred Talents
Program” by the Chinese Academy of Sciences in 2005, and
was granted the National Science Fund for Distinguished Young
Scholars in 2011. He was selected as a member of “Young and
Middle — Aged Industrial Leaders of Science and Technology”
by Ministry of Science and Technology of the People’s Republic
of China in 2014, and was selected as one of the scientific and
technological innovation leaders in “The Plan for Ten Thousand
Talents” (8 A&t2l), the National Plan for the Special Support
of High-level Talents in 2016. In 2016, he was selected as a
fellow of the Royal Society of Chemistry. Currently, he serves
as a fellow of the council of Chinese Society for Biomaterials.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chu Kin Ming, aged 40, was appointed as the company
secretary of the Company on 1 June 2019. He is a fellow
member of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
He is also a member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries. Mr. Chu holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in
Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University and
he has extensive experiences in the field of accounting and
financial management.

* for identification purposes only

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2020

ographical Details of the Directors and Senior Management

ERERERBLRE

FHRE 495 R N\FEA+L
HEZE - BHOBMR—NAN=ZFEREX
BlhEmEy)FRESREE  BLEHXE
MAREMBEEBBLBNRER AN
NEEECBES FRBEREEX  Be5H
FEBAYBEEFELEN - —ALANF
ETTNFRAGENBEL 2N
L AB R A B* (Johns Hopkins Singapore
Pte Ltd) B EL ST ABEBERKE
BTRARIE: —STEUFE_T—X
FHERAPENBEMASBHER FLAEE
- A FRETEFEIASEE
e - £ B Z2MARBE RIETEZAM -
EEMBREDF - HOKEYM R E KK
BREZEHABLYENMRALH - RN=2F
TRFRARRERERIAAE]: =
T FREGERGLSFREES
T -FERAEBREARAFMBERN B
MBASFERRKBIFEEAL] —F—
NEBRABBERSERIAT R E
[BAGTERIHAFEEAS ZF— N
FRAEZEEHERICZELE* (The Royal
Society of Chemistry) &X &+  BAIMEH
BAEMMHEGRE -

BREERE

KEHASKE 4058 R=F - NFRA—
FEZERARAZAAIME - WAKET
NRAEFMAGERER  TRATAESH
g REBAMERITHRAEREIN
REEFAMELRGNE - REERKER
BRIRBEFAXNBLEMN  WREFHR
MBEE T HAREERR -

* EHEE



The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Director(s)”) of
Sino-Life Group Limited (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries as the “Group”) is here to present the annual report
and the audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2020 (the “Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS
REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding
and the activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 39 to
the consolidated financial statements. There were no significant
changes in nature of Group’s principal activities during the Year.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by
Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including
a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing
the Group and an indication of likely future developments
in the group’s business, can be found in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” set out on pages 8
to 18 of this annual report. This discussion forms part of this
report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The Group's loss for the Year is set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
on pages 71 and 72 and the state of affairs of the Group at
that date are set out in the consolidated statement of financial
position on pages 73 and 74.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend
for the Year (2019: Nil).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Since the Group is principally engaged in the provision of
funeral services, none of its customers accounted for more than
10% of its total turnover during the Year. Purchases from the
Group's five largest suppliers accounted for 72% of the total
purchases for the Year and purchases from the largest supplier
included therein amounted to 35%.

At no time during the Year, none of the Directors of the
Company or any of their associates or any shareholders (which,
to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of
the Company’s issued share capital) had any material beneficial
interest in the Group's five largest customers and suppliers.
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SEGMENT REPORTING

Details of segment reporting for the Year are set out in note
4 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the Year are set out in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in investment properties of the Group
during the Year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

There are no movements in either the Company’s authorised
or issued share capital during the Year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and
of the Group during the Year are set out in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 75, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2020, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution to owners comprising share premium
account less accumulated losses, amounted to approximately
RMB17,828,000.

DONATIONS

No charitable donations was made by the Group during the
Year (2019: Nil).
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report
were;

Executive Directors

Mr. Xu Jianchun

Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai

Dr. Xu Qiang (redesignated from non-executive Director to
executive Director on 22 January 2021)

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Chai Chung Wai

Mr. Sun Fei

Mr. Wang Jun

According to the requirements of article 16.2 of the articles of
association of the Company (the “Articles of Association”), the
Board shall have power from time to time and at any time to
appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy
or as an addition to the Board. Any Director so appointed shall
hold office only until the next following annual general meeting
of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at that
meeting. Dr. Xu Qiang will retire in accordance with article 16.2
of the Articles of Association, and, being eligible, offer himself
for re-election in the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company (the "AGM").

According to the requirements of article 16.18 of the Articles of
Association, at each annual general meeting, one-third of the
Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple
of three, the number nearest to but not less than one-third)
shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director
shall be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at
least once every three years. Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai and Mr. Wang
Jun will retire by rotation in accordance with article 16.18 of
the Article of Association, and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election in the forthcoming AGM.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

As at the date of this report, biographical details of the
Directors and senior management of the Group are set out on
pages from 41 to 44 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE AGREEMENT

Mr. Xu Jianchun (“Mr. Xu"), an executive Director, has entered
into a service agreement with the Company for a term of three
years commencing from 22 December 2017, which continues
thereafter until terminated by either party giving not less than
two months’ notice in writing to the other party.

Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai, an executive Director, has entered into a
service agreement with the Company for a term of three
years commencing from 9 September 2009, which continues
thereafter until terminated by either party giving not less than
three months’ notice in writing to the other party.

Dr. Xu Qiang, an executive Director, has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 22 January 2021, which continues thereafter
until terminated by either party giving not less than two month'’s
notice in writing to the other party.

Mr. Chai Chung Wai, an independent non-executive Director,
has renewed his letter of appointment with the Company for
a term of three years commencing from 9 September 2018,
which can be terminated by either party giving not less than
one month’s notice in writing to the other party.

Mr. Sun Fei, an independent non-executive Director, has
renewed his letter of appointment with the Company for a term
of three years from 23 January 2021, which can be terminated
by either party giving not less than one month’s notice in
writing to the other party.

Mr. Wang Jun, an independent non-executive Director, has
renewed his letter of appointment with the Company for a term
of three years from 17 April 2021, which can be terminated by
either party giving not less than one month’s notice in writing
to the other party.
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None of the Directors, including those to be re-elected at
the forthcoming AGM, has a service agreement which is
not determinable by the Group within one year without the
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

EMOLUMENT POLICY

A remuneration committee is set up for reviewing the Group's
emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the
Directors and senior management of the Group, having regard
to the Group’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market practices.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) as incentive to directors and eligible
employees and the Share Option Scheme was expired and all of
the options under the Share Option Scheme were lapsed during
the Year. The Company has proposed to adopt a new share
option scheme (the “New Share Option Scheme”) to attract
and retain the best available personnel, to provide additional
incentive to employees (full-time and part-time), directors,
advisors, consultants, service providers, agents, customers,
partners or joint-venture partners of the of the Group and to
promote the success of the business of the Group. Up to the
date of this report, the New Share Option Scheme has not yet
been approved by the shareholders of the Company.

For details of the Share Option Scheme, please refer to the
section headed “Share Option Scheme” below. For details of
the New Share Option Scheme, please refer to the circular of
the Company dated 29 March 2021.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five individuals
with highest emoluments for the Year are set out in note 8
and note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2020, none of the Directors or chief
executives of the Company had any interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571
under the Laws of Hong Kong (“SFO")), which were notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including any interests and short
positions which they have taken or deemed to have taken under
such provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein, or which were required, pursuant to the Rules 5.46 to
5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

Aggregate long positions in the Shares
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Approximate percentage

Number of of the issued share

Name of Shareholder Nature of interest Shares held capital of the Company
EEATNERHTRE

B 3R & 18 N Fit % i 4 8 B B HE DL
Hong Kong Gaogi Biological Beneficial Owner 220,475,000 29.69%

Technology Company Limited
EESRENHEERAF BEmEARAA
Note: The Company’s Director Mr. Xu is also a director of Hong Kong
Gaogqi Biological Technology Company Limited in which he

holds 25% equity interest.

Save as disclosed above and the Directors’ interests as
disclosed in “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
of the Company or its Associated Corporations”, no person
had interests in shares or short positions in the shares of
the Company or underlying shares which are required to be
recorded in the register to be kept by the Company pursuant
to section 336 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance as at
31 December 2020.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as the transactions disclosed in note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements, no transaction, arrangement or contract that
is significant in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or parent
company was a party and in which a Director or his connected
entity had, directly or indirectly, a material interest subsisted at
the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Apart from the details as disclosed under the heading
“Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short Positions
in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company
or its Associated Corporation” above, at no time during the
Year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries, or any of its
fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors or chief executives of the Company or their respective
associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) to have any
right to subscribe for securities of the Company or any of its
associated corporations as defined in the SFO or to acquire
benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Agency Agreement

On 31 January 2019, Zhongke Guangju Cell Therapy
(Guangdong) Co., Lid* (R EIERMAREZR(ER)BR A
("Zhongke Guangju”), a company indirectly held as to 30%
equity interest by Mr. XU Jianchun (“Mr. Xu"”) and his Associates
through a controlled company, entered into an agency
agreement (the "Agency Agreement”) with Zhongke Zhenqi
Biotechnology (Guangdong) Co., Ltd.* (PRI ZBEHEEYEIE (&
R)ABMR AT (“Zhongke Zhengi”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company. Pursuant to the Agency Agreement, Zhongke
Guangju has agreed to engage Zhongke Zhengi as a distribution
agent to market development and market promotion of stem
cells and immunocytes in the PRC, Hong Kong and Macau and
also providing market feedback to Zhongke Guangju for three
years commencing from 31 January 2019.

Mr. XU, the chairman of the Board and executive Director of
the Company, and his Associates indirectly hold through a
controlled company 30% of the shares in Zhongke Guangju.
Accordingly, the transactions contemplated under the Agency
Agreement constitutes a connected transaction of the Company
under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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The Directors estimate that for the period from the effective
date of the Agency Agreement to 31 December 2019, the
year ended 31 December 2020 and the year ending 31
December 2021, the aggregate value of the products and/
or services provided to Zhongke Zhengi under the Agency
Agreement by Zhongke Guangju will not exceed RMB8,000,000
(approximately HK$9,290,000), RMB8,500,000 (approximately
HK$9,871,000) and RMB8,500,000 (approximately
HK$9,871,000) respectively.

The annual cap of the aggregate value of the products and/
or services provided to Zhongke Zhengi under the Agency
Agreement by Zhongke Guangju set by the Board for the
period from 31 January 2020 to 31 December 2020 is
RMB8,500,000 (approximately HK$9,871,000). During the
year ended 31 December 2020, the total amount incurred by
Zhongke Guangju to Zhongke Zhengi pursuant to the Agency
Agreement was approximately RMB356,000. Further details
of this continuing connected transaction are set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 31 January 2019 and 1
February 2019.

The Company has adopted the following internal control
measures to ensure that the continuing connected transaction
is conducted in accordance with the pricing policy and terms
of the Agency Agreement as well as the GEM Listing Rules:

(i) The Company’s finance department will from time to
time obtain proof of market prices of products and/or
services provided by Zhongke Guangju. All quotations
and/ or prices will be filed as reference prices for the
continuing connected transaction to ensure that prices
for products and/or services provided to Zhongke Zhengqi
by Zhongke Guangju do not exceed general market price
and prices for identical or similar for products and/or
services provided to other independent third party agents
by Zhongke Guangju;

(i)  The Company's finance department will monitor and
ensure that the continuing connected transaction is
conducted in accordance with the terms of the Agency
Agreement and do not exceed the annual caps of the
continuing connected transaction;

(iii)  The Board will continue to review on a regular basis the
Group's internal control system and its effectiveness; and
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(iv)  The Company will appoint an external auditor pursuant to
the GEM Listing Rules to conduct annual reviews of the
continuing connected transactions and its annual caps.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
aforesaid continuing connected transaction and confirmed that
the transaction has been entered into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(2)  on normal commercial terms or better; and

(3) according to the agreement governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the aforesaid
continuing connected transaction in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised)
"Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to
Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The auditor has issued their unqualified letter containing the
auditor’s findings and conclusions in respect of the aforesaid
continuing connected transaction in accordance with Rule
20.54 of the GEM Listing Rules as follows, a copy of the
auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange:

(1) nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes
them to believe that the continuing connected transaction
has not been approved by the Board;

(2) nothing has come to the auditor's attention that
causes them to believe that the continuing connected
transaction was not entered into, in all material respects,
in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
such transaction; and

(3) nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes
them to believe that the continuing connected transaction
has exceeded the respective maximum aggregate annual
value as set by the Company.
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A copy of the auditor's letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Discloseable Transaction and Connected Transaction
in relation to the Acquisition of the sale equity
in the Target Company and entering into the VIE
Agreements

On 26 November 2019, FIIEBEEEMR AR X(F
fR& %) Shenzhen Fuying Daxin Biotechnology Partnership
(Limited Partnership)* (the “Vendor”), the Company (the
“Purchaser A”) and HFRIAMELEMBRECRIDBR A A
Zhongke Xunda Biotechnology (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.*, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company (the “Purchaser B”), entered
into a sale and purchase agreement (the “Sale and Purchase
Agreement”), pursuant to which the Vendor conditionally
agreed to sell, and the Purchasers conditionally agreed to
acquire the sale equity, including 32% equity interest in &85
SFEAYERI AR AR ("GZRT"), at the aggregated consideration
of HK$28,880,000 (the “Acquisition”).

BERVYKREDMEKAEREE 2 A Guangdong Xtem
Biotechnology Co., Ltd.*, a company established in the PRC with
limited liability (the “Target Company”), GZRT, and the PRC
equity owners (the “PRC Equity Owners”), which consisting of
the Vendor, &Y T 7 5% & E & 12 B PR 2 5] Shenzhen Nanyue
Asset Management Co., Ltd.*(a company established in the
PRC with limited liability) (the “PRC Shareholder A”), J&3IIT1EB
ZMM KSR AR QR Shenzhen Yebao Micro-Nano
Chip Research Institute Co., Ltd.* (@ company established in
the PRC with limited liability) (the “PRC Shareholder B"), &
JTmEMKEEEBRAE, Shenzhen Houpu Investment
Management Co., Ltd.* (@ company established in the PRC
with limited liability) (the “PRC Shareholder C”), and B &5
(Mr. Lan Zhinan) (“Mr. Lan"), will implement a reorganization
and enter into the variable interest entity agreements (the
“VIE Agreements”), pursuant to which GZRT will have effective
control over the finance and operation of the Target Company
and will be entitled to 95% economic interests and benefits
generated by the Target Company.

* for reference only
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Due to the impact of the anomalous coronavirus pneumonia
pandemic, the due diligence workload and the delay in all
other relevant tasks, the Vendor and the Purchasers mutually
agreed not to proceed with the transactions and entered into a
termination agreement on 8 March 2021 to terminate the Sale
and Purchase Agreement with immediate effect, and all relevant
parties shall be released and discharged from their respective
rights and obligations therein. Given that the Sale and Purchase
Agreement will not proceed, the Company will not prepare the
corresponding circular and will not convene an extraordinary
general meeting in approving the agreements. The Board is of
the view that the termination of the S&P Agreement will not
cause material adverse effect on the operation, business and
financial position of the Group.

Further details of this discloseable transaction and connected
transaction are set out in the announcements of the Company
dated 26 November 2019, 16 December 2019, 9 January
2020, 2 March 2020, 9 April 2020, 1 June 2020, 30 June
2020, 3 August 2020, 15 September 2020, 15 October 2020,
20 November 2020, 18 December 2020, 29 January 2021 and
9 March 2021.

Details of related party transactions undertaken in the normal
course of business of the Group during the Year are set out in
note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, all other related party transactions
and balances did not constitute connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions of the Company under
Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules which are required
to comply with any of the reporting, announcement or
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under the
GEM Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF THE
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company was entered into or existed during the Year.
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INTEREST

DIRECTORS’
BUSINESS

IN A COMPETING

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, none
of the Directors, the controlling shareholders of the Company,
or any of their respective close associates (as defined in the GEM
Listing Rules) is interested in a business apart from the Group's
business which competes or is likely to compete, directly or
indirectly, with the businesses of the Group, and is required to
be disclosed pursuant to Rule 11.04 of the GEM Listing Rules.

BANK BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December
2020 are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

Particulars of the retirement schemes of the Group are set out
in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors a written annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules
and considers all the independent non-executive Directors are
independent.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting than
the required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67
of the GEM Listing Rules. Specific enquiry has been made of all
the Directors and the Directors have confirmed that they had
complied with such code of conduct throughout the Year.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the written resolutions of the shareholders of
the Company dated 24 August 2009, a share option scheme
(“Share Option Scheme”) was approved and adopted. The Share
Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years
commencing from the date of adoption of the Share Option
Scheme from 24 August 2009 (the "Date of Adoption”) (that
is from 24 August 2009 to 23 August 2019). The Share Option
Scheme has been expired on 23 August 2019 and so no further
options can be granted but the provisions of the Share Option
Scheme shall remain in full force and effect in all aspect. The
major terms of the Share Option Scheme are summarised as
follows:

(@  The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable
the Company to grant options to eligible participants
who have contributed or may contribute to the Group as
incentive or rewards for their contributions to the Group.

(b)  The participants include (i) any employees; (i) any
executive Directors; (iii) any non-executive Directors
(including, without limitation, independent non-executive
Directors) of the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries;
and (iv) any consultants, advisers, agents, partners or
joint-venture partners of the Company and/or any of
its subsidiaries who, in the absolute discretion of the
Board (the “Eligible Participants”), has contributed or may
contribute to the Group.

(©)  The exercise price of a share option under the Share
Option Scheme will not be less than the highest of (i)
the closing price of the Shares on the Stock Exchange as
shown in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange
on the offer date of the particular option, which must
be a business day; (ii) the average of the closing prices
of the Shares as shown in the daily quotations sheets of
the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the offer date of that particular option; and
(iii) the nominal value of a share on the offer date of the
particular option.
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The maximum number of Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company shall not, in the absence of shareholders’
approval, in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number
of Shares in issue as at the Date of Adoption of the
Share Option Scheme. The Board may seek approval by
the shareholders of the Company at general meeting
to refresh the 10% limit. However, the total number
of Shares available for issue under exercise of options
which may be granted under the Share Option Scheme
in these circumstances must not exceed 10% of the total
number of Shares in issue as at the date of approval of
the refreshment of the 10% limit.

On 27 May 2010, the shareholders of the Company had
approved the refreshment of 10% limit of the grant
of options under the Share Option Scheme. The total
number of Shares available for issue under the Share
Option Scheme is 74,250,000 Shares, representing 10%
of the total number of Shares in issue as at the date of
this annual report.

The maximum number of Shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company shall
not exceed 30% of the total number of Shares in issue
from time to time and the maximum number of Shares in
respect of which options may be granted to each Eligible
Participant shall not exceed 1% of the total number of
Shares in issue for the time being in any 12-month period
up to and including the date of offer of the grant.
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An offer shall be made to Eligible Participants in writing
and shall remain open for acceptance by the Eligible
Participants concerned for a period of 30 days from the
date upon which it is made provided that no such offer
shall be open for acceptance after the 10th anniversary of
the Date of Adoption of the Share Option Scheme or the
termination of the scheme. An offer shall be deemed to
have been accepted by an Eligible Participant concerned
in respect of all Shares which are offered to such
Eligible Participant when the duplicate letter comprising
acceptance of the offer duly signed by the Eligible
Participant, together with a non-refundable remittance in
favour of the Company of HKD10 by way of consideration
for the grant thereof is received by the Company, within
such time as may be specified in the offer (which shall
not be later than 30 days from the date of offer).

The exercisable period of any option granted under the
Share Option Scheme should be determined by the Board
upon grant of the share option but in any event should
not exceed 10 years from the date of grant of the share
option.

An option shall be exercisable in whole or in part in
the circumstances by giving notice in writing to the
Company stating that the option is thereby exercised
and the number of shares in respect of which it is so
exercised. Each such notice must be accompanied by a
non-refundable remittance for the full amount of the
subscription price for shares in respect of which the notice
is given.
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Details of the share options movements during the Year under
the Share Option Scheme are as follows:

WAFEEREA BB T 2 BRER
BmT:

Number of share options

EREYE
Exercise Balance as at  Granted Lapsed Balance as at
Name/category Date of grant price per 1 January during the during the 31 December
of participants of share option Share Exercise period 2020 Year Year 2020
R-B-%f R-BZ%%
=1 -RA-H *EE REAEE +=-A=+-H
SuENE BN BUBRESY fTEE TEHRE ZEH fidin R ZEH
Continuous contract 11 February 2010 HK$1.18 11 August 2010 to 11 February 2020 6,332,000 - 6,332,000 -
employees
BEANER “E-ZF-fA+-H 118E L —E-TFN\A+—-H
Z-_F-TF-A+-H
Consultants 11 February 2010 HK$1.18 11 August 2010 to 11 February 2020 41,900,000 - 41,900,000 -
FE “Z-Z5-RA+-H 18T —E-SFN\A+—H
E-B-TF-A+-H
48,232,000 - 48,232,000 -
For the options granted in 2010, they are exercisable starting HHR_ZT—SFERLZEREMS  H#F

half year from the grant date. The exercisable period is 10 years
from the date of grant of the share option.

During the Year, 48,232,000 share options were lapsed and no
share option was cancelled, exercised and granted.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company'’s total issued share capital was held by the public as
at the date of this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
of Association and the laws of Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing Shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Particulars of the Company’s corporate governance practices
are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 19
to 40 of this annual report.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

During the Year, a permitted indemnity provision that meets
the requirements specified in section 469(2) of the Companies
Ordinance for the benefit of the Directors is in force.

The Articles of Association provides that the Directors shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits
of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which they shall or may incur
or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or
omitted in or about the execution of their duty; provided that
this indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect of any
fraud or dishonesty by any of the Directors.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of legal action against its Directors and officers during
the Year and the indemnity provision and Directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance remains in force as of the date of
this annual report.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

The changes in Directors’ information subsequent to the date
of interim report for the six months ended 30 June 2020, as
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 17.50A(1) of the GEM
Listing Rules, are set out below:

Name of Director Details of Changes

Directors’ Report
EEFWE

& 5F 2 9 15 4% 3C

RAFE ERESHNEZ2FELT 17&1%
F469(2) 1§ BT 3l #7 7€ 0 7/ 5T 2 T B E X
BAEM -

Mm

MBERANRTE EFHEUNARAE
ERNBERBERSE  ITHRARETEHRE
BENTREZBEREMEL - F4AN
ERETERMBRARIHMBFRA
B -WE BX BELAXIE K
ARERETCHEREMEETHRFAT
BHBEENERNER -

ARABERAFEREEERSRAETEA
BREEE 2 A RFREEE 2 RTHE -
BRAFHAH  MEKXREEFRSR
EEABZETXRRHEZES -

ESEHEH

BHE_Z-_ZFANA=ZF+THLEAEAKNE
S REE  EFEHNEE (REGEM
LR AIE17.50AM R E K TR 5 40
T

EEHE 2HFHE
Dr. XU Qiang i. Redesignated from a non-executive Director to an executive
Director on 22 January 2021; and
i. Appointed as a chief executive officer of the Company on 22
January 2021.
Rt . BRI —F AT HAFATEEFAETRAT

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of
the Group for the past five financial years, as extracted from
the audited consolidated financial statements, is set out on
page 220 of this annual report. This summary does not form
part of the audited financial statements.

17
i. RIE-_—F—-A-+_REZEARARFAEFEHIT

EE R
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B E#E

AEEBERAMPRFEZDTIBEEN
MEERBEREWMEBEALEZEZAS
BHRER)E R AFRFE2208 - ZMEIL T
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Directors’ Report
EEEHRE

REVIEW BY AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audited consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the Year have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
The Audit Committee is of the opinion that the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the Year comply with
applicable reporting standards, GEM Listing Rules, and that
adequate disclosures have been made.

AUDITOR

On 15 August 2018, Crowe (HK) CPA Limited resigned as the
auditor of the Company and Elite Partners CPA Limited was
then appointed as the auditor of the Company thereafter.

On 14 December 2020, Elite Partners CPA Limited resigned as
the auditor of the Company and Crowe (HK) CPA Limited was
then appointed as the auditor of the Company thereafter. The
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2019 and 2020 have been audited by Elite Partners
CPA Limited and Crowe (HK) CPA Limited respectively.

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited will retire at the end of the
forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of Crowe
(HK) CPA Limited as auditor of the Company is to be proposed
at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Xu Jianchun
Chairman and Executive Director

16 April 2021
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INndependent Auditor's Report

Crowe

To the shareholders of
Sino-Life Group Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Sino-Life Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
71 to 219, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2020, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2020, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“"HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Az BRD RS

BELE (F%8) SEHEHAERAE
Crowe (HK) CPA Limited

& RS ISRET7R 1SEP0E
9/F Leighton Centre,

77 Leighton Road,

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
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T Nz BED ¥ S

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis of our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2020
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Key audit matter
FgEEFER

Az BRD RS

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BMMEFNTHAREASEETEE

Valuation of freehold land and buildings and investment properties

KAEBRIBREFURREVENGE

We identified the valuation of freehold land and
buildings and investment properties as a key audit
matter due to the inherent level of subjective
judgements and estimates required in determining the
fair values.
BMBERKAERTHWEEBFUARREDENGE
REREFSHERNETATERILEENEZE
) B R A T e

As disclosed in notes 14 and 16 to the consolidated
financial statements, the carrying amounts of freehold
land and buildings and investment properties were
approximately RMB24,516,000 and RMB6,531,000 as at
31 December 2020 respectively. During the year ended
31 December 2020, a revaluation surplus on freehold
land and buildings of approximately RMB279,000 was
recognised in other comprehensive income and a fair
value gain on investment properties of approximately
RMB101,000 was recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

B EMEREMFURIGIBEE R F
FT_A=1T—"RH XAXBLHREFULRKE
Y EMREED BIK /A RK24,516,000T & AR
6,531,000 - HE_ZE_TF+_A=+—HILF
B KAXBRIHWEEBTZENEHERBKOARK
279,000 N EMEH K EANHER - MREMEZR
FHERKZAOAREI0,000t R EaEm R EMER
Wam KRR o

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of
freehold land and buildings and investment
properties included:
BMEBTEKAEZRLMBEEFRREMEZ
S ROREE

o Obtaining an understanding of the
management’s valuation processes and
significant assumptions to assess if these
approaches are in compliance with the
requirements of HKFRSs and industry norms;

. THREEBEBENHRERFREARRE  AFHE
RERFEREREERBMBRELERNITE
R Z K

o Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the Valuer;
. A AEMcER  BEAREEINL:

o Obtaining the detailed work of the Valuer to
evaluate the accuracy and relevance of key
inputs used in the valuation.

o EHREEMNIEFE  UTEGREMBEH
ANBBZERIERAERIKE -

o Evaluating the appropriateness of the valuation
methods used based on our knowledge of the
property markets; and

s REEFFHVERMESNTHRTEHMAERN
HEFENEELE: &

o Assessing the reasonableness of the key inputs
and assumptions, including unit sale rate by
comparing these estimates to entity-specific
information and market data based on our
knowledge of the property markets.

. BREESEHMET SN TE BBAKZEM
STEERBETEMRTISEIEAAL - Ul
AREABBELBRR(ERELEE) NERE
Mo

TEESEEERAR —E-BFFR
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Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
g ETEIR BN ET NI HARETSRETEE

Valuation of freehold land and buildings and investment properties (Continued)

KAEEBIMREFURREMENGEE)

As disclosed in notes 2(g) and 2(f) to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group's freehold land and
buildings and investment properties are stated at
fair value based on the valuations performed by an
independent qualified professional valuer (“Valuer”).
Details of the valuation techniques and key inputs used
in the valuations are disclosed in notes 14 and 16 to
the consolidated financial statements.

WMINGEE M mEM 20 R2()FAKRE © E5EK
AXBELTHWREFREEMEDBREB Y& ERG
BER([fEERDETHEERATESR @A
FTANMEETEZRERBABBZFREERENES
B AW 14516 o

The valuations have been arrived at using direct
comparison method, which are dependent on certain
key inputs and assumptions in respect of prevailing
market conditions such as unit sale rate.
ZEMEDRAEELBEZER  EBURREBER
TRz E THRBABERBER(NELERE) -
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OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2019 were audited by another auditor who
expressed an unmodified opinion to those statements on 22
June 2020.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Az BRD RS
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed
terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2020
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 16 April 2021

Chan Wing Fai
Practising Certificate Number P07327
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive |ncome
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # =

—ERCEFF A=+ —HILFE

2020 2019
—E-¥E S —NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
B 5E ARETR AREEF T
Revenue I &= 4 68,340 66,610
Cost of sales and services rendered 4 & & AR 7% AX 2N (39,173) (34,568)
Gross profit ERH 29,167 32,042
Fair value gain on investment KEMEZ A FERE
properties 16 101 -
Fair value (loss)/gain on financial ~ #EE A AFETAEZR
assets designated at fair value (MR FEFTAEZ D)
through profit or loss (“FVTPL") LHBEEZ
REE(ER), M 19 (32) 3,831
Other income and other net (loss)/ EH il It A & E Aib
gain (BB W=mFE 5 2,314 1,188
Selling expenses HE R X (3.175) (7,169)
Administrative expenses TR (24,922) (28,273)
Reversal of impairment losses/ B 5 Rk HMERFKIE 2
(impairment losses) recognised TEHEEEEERER
under expected credit loss model B T2 B R
on trade and other receivables, VERIEN R AEIR 6(d),
net OR{E R 18) /%5 34(a) 1,226 (1,220)
Other operating expenses Hih &M (679) (36)
Impairment loss on an associate ~ —ME& AR ZBEEIE 18 - (395)
Profit/(loss) from operations EEWE (BB 4,000 (32)
Finance costs ELE= N 6(a) (2,521) (2,791)
Share of losses of associates LB E AR E 1R 18 - (105)
Profit/(loss) before taxation BRBimiM s (B54R) 6 1,479 (2,928)
Income tax expense FriS Bl X 7 (3.421) (1,236)
Loss for the year EEEBE (1,942) (4,164)
Other comprehensive income/ Hit2EI (FX)
(expense)
Item that will not be reclassified to # T & E# 7 2 187
profit or loss: HIEA -
Surplus on revaluation of land THIREFZ
and buildings EHAHK 279 397
Exchange difference arising on BREFMEACER
translation Z (5,187) 2,429
Item that may be reclassified HEAEeEN 7 HE
subsequently to profit or loss: HEamayIEg -
Exchange differences arising BREBINEBFESEZ
on translation of foreign fEHE5
operations 927 1,956
Other comprehensive EEEMZE(FAX)
(expense)/income for the W i
year, net of income tax (IBRFR7BL) 10 (3,981) 4,782
Total comprehensive FE2EFEX) Wi
(expense)/income for the B GORREH)
year, net of income tax (5,923) 618
TEEGEBERAR —Z-TFFR
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meEmkEME EH& 32}

Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-ZE-_EF+-_A=+—HILFE
2020 2019
—EC¥E —ZE-NF
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 AREBTR AR T T
(Loss)/profit for the year LTALTEGEEE
attributable to: (B548), W5 :
Owners of the Company ZIN/NETEZ PN (2,974) (3,804)
Non-controlling interests SEE R ER 1,032 (360)
(1,942) (4,164)
Total comprehensive (expense)/ KL TFATFEERE
income attributable to: (%) WiEaasE:
Owners of the Company KAGHB A (6,759) 710
Non-controlling interests FJEVERRE S 836 (92)
(5,923) 618
Loss per share BiEERE
Basic and diluted HAK #E 11 RMB(0.40) cents RMB(0.51) cents

AE#(0.40)5 ARE051)%

The notes on pages 79 to 219 form part of these consolidated Z5798

E20ECMERZEHRAMBR

financial statements. rKz2—Em -
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

sre ISR IR

As at 31 December 2020 A -_ZE-_ZEF+ -/ =+—H

2020 2019
—E-THE —E-NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 ARETR ARET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS kRBHEE
Property, plant and equipment M- BER&E 14 30,142 32,417
Right-of-use assets FERREEE 27 32,619 36,528
Investment properties wEME 16 6,531 6,622
Intangible assets mEEE 17 2 2
Interests in associates REERFINER 18 - -
Goodwill [EE 20 - -
Other deposits HEMize 23 99 -
Deposits for hire of funeral HAEEEREE
parlours and funeral services i e g
centres 23 1,000 1,000
70,393 76,569
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Financial assets designated at BEREKEAFETA
FVTPL BRsMBEE 19 33,639 38,336
Development and formation costs 5% [ ik 37 Ak 4K 21 4,542 5,292
Inventories & 22 1,546 966
Trade and other receivables B 5N H A fE U k18 23 43,820 52,778
Cash and bank balances REe RIRITESR 24 123,674 119,216
207,221 216,588
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBBE
Trade and other payables 25 & E M e RIE 25 16,876 17,660
Contract liabilities BREE 26 87,994 97,901
Lease liabilities HEBRE 27 4,403 3,796
Bank borrowings RITEE 28 1,138 1,154
Income tax liabilities FriEHasE 29 3,567 4,002
Amounts due to directors JEREE 2 RIA 35(e) 3,660 789
Amount due to a shareholder JE — B R 2 FE 35(f) 10,544 8,664
Provisions B E 30 2,550 3,044
130,732 137,010
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFHE 76,489 79,578
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT (B ERBRIER
LIABILITIES 146,882 156,147
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Amount due to a shareholder BN —2RERZHIE  35¢) 1,677 -
Contract liabilities AWEaE 26 186 199
Lease liabilities HE&aE 27 27,467 31,064
Bank borrowings RITEE 28 5,826 7,235
35,156 38,498
NET ASSETS BEZFE 111,726 117,649
FEEGEEBERLAT —E-ZTEER
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Gonsolidated Statement of Financial Position

Ara MG IRO R

As at 31 December 2020 A -_ZE-_ZEF+ -/ =+—H

2020 2019
- =Bl =3 —E-NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000

Bt 5 ARBFR ARMETTT

EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners AAFHEHAEGELR

of the Company

Share capital fig A& 31 69,218 69,218
Reserves &1 32 50,052 56,811
119,270 126,029

Non-controlling interests =R (7,544) (8,380)
TOTAL EQUITY EREmaE 111,726 117,649

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors HEZEEWN -_ZT-—FW A+ HHER

on 16 April 2021 and are signed on its behalf by: KREEMILAATATIREREE
Xu Jianchun Liu Tien-Tsai
Chairman and Executive Director Executive Director
TEEF 27 B
TEEHTERE HITEFE

~

The notes on pages 79 to 219 form part of these consolidated H$79B E219B 2 M AZE R AU B R
financial statements. RZ—EBD o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

AN

aF

INZAA

—A= N/

V=N
i

% 8 %

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z-_ZT -_FF+_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FATARFAEE
Foreign
Statutory Properties currency Share-based
Share Merger Statutory surplus revaluation translation  compensation
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve Non-
Share capital (Note 32 (b) (Note 32 (b) (Note 32 (b) (Note 32 (b) (Note 32 (b) (Note 32 (b) (Note 32 (b)  Accumulated controlling
(Note 31) (i) ()} (iii)) (iv)) v) (vi)) (vii)) losses Sub-total interests Total
EERE HEER SBER  URHEER
RHER AftERE i34 1] i i [ 1] ZRMER
|23 (W&32() (Hit32(b) (M &32(b) (M &32(b) (W &32(b) (W &32(b) (W&32(b)
(W31 (i) (ii) (iii)) (iv) ) (vi)) (vii) BitBE it FeRER 48
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARBTR ARETTR ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARBTT  ARBTR  ARETRL  ARBTR  ARRTR
At 1 January 2019 R=%¥-n%-A-8 69218 220,633 (16,261) 790 1550 2,601 (19,359) 7007 (160,984) 105,215 (2,406) 102,809
Loss for the year FRER - - - - - - - - (3,804) (3,804) (360) (4,164)
Surplus on revaluation of THREFERRE

land and buildings - - - - - 397 - - - 397 - 397
Exchange differences arising B E SN EHHESE

on translation of foreign LELER

operations - - - - - - an - - an 268 4385
Other comprehensive income £t 2 E M 3 - - - - - 397 4117 - - 4514 268 4,782
Total comprehensive income/ £ F 2 EHE/

(expense) for the year (X488 - - - - - 397 411 - (3.804) 710 92) 618
Recognition of non-controlling 1 5% 1

interests upon partial RAEER

disposal of a subsidiary FElER - - - - - - - - 20,104 20,104 (5.882) 14,222
At 31 December 2019 Ro®-1&

+ZA=t+-8 69,218 220,633 (16,261) 790 1550 2,998 (15,242) 7,007 (144,684) 126,029 (8,380) 117,649
At 1 January 2020 ®=%-%4-A-8 69,218 20633 (16,261) 790 1,550 2,998 (15,242) 7021 (144,684) 126,029 (8,380) 117,649
(Loss)fprofit for the year FR(ER)/ M - - - - - - - - (2,974) (2,974) 1,032 (1,942)
Surplus on revaluation of HiREEEHRRS

land and buildings - - - - - 13 - - - 13 136 pig)
Exchange differences arising BHEL

on translation of foreign ZELER

operations - - - - - - (3,928) - - (3,928) (332) (4,260)
Other comprehensive income/ £ {8 2 B/

(expense) (Bx%) - - - - - 143 (3,928) - - (3,785) (196) (3,981)
Total comprehensive income/  §F 2 EME/

(expense) for the year (B%)eg - - - - - 143 (3,928) - (2,974) (6,759) 836 (5,923)
Transfer to reserves HEEE - - - - 10,508 - - - (10,508) - - -
Lapse of share options BRELR - - - - - - - (7,027 7,027 - - -
At 31 December 2020 ) gt Jut 34

+ZA=t+-8 69,218 220,633 (16,261) 790 12,058 3141 (19,170) - (151,139) 119,270 (7,544) 11,726
. s S M Ak A Len
The notes on pages 79 to 219 form part of these consolidated 25798 £219B 2 Ml AZ S & M5 R

financial statements.

RZ—85 -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
,\\/T\/\Eﬁi /ﬁ%i‘%

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-ZE-_EF+-_A=+—HILFE

76

2020 2019
—¥C¥TE —ZE-NEF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B = ARETR AREEF T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES WEXET
Profit/(loss) before taxation BRE AR (BE) 1,479 (2,928)
Adjustments for: o
Finance costs A& AR 6(a) 2,521 2,791
Depreciation of property, plant - BELREE
and equipment e 6(c) 5,352 2,011
Depreciation of right-of-use CRAEEAERE
assets 6(c) 5,076 4,750
(Reversal of impairment losses)/ B 5 & H A g A
impairment losses recognised ZTEHEEEE
under expected credit loss RAEBE T ZEHER
model on trade and other CREEERE),
receivables, net VRIENSEi-DE -] 6(d) (1,226) 1,220
Over-provision written back for i [21 A 755 B 7S B 5B
cost of service B E 5 (399) -
Reversal of impairment loss on 5] £ 78 < F IR R E
prepayment B 18 5 (784) -
Impairment loss on an associate N—EEERF 2
B & B - 395
Fair value gain on investment KEMEZRTFE
properties g 16 (101) -
Gains on disposal of property, HEWE BER
plant and equipment F A 2 W 5 - (24)
Interest income ) B A 5 (210) (547)
Fair value loss/(gain) on financial ETAEANFE
assets designated at FVTPL AABZE T
BE2NVFE
EE(w) 19 32 (3,831)
Share of losses of associates FE(REEE R 7)@5 B 18 - 105
Net exchange loss/(gain) bE M B 1R(Wa)
P 5 343 (1)
12,083 3,941
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 December 2020 E’ki

/\\/ \

i &

s =
//Ibi%%
T-2E+-A=t-ALEE

2020 2019
—E-FF —NEF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5E AREFTR AR®ETF T
CHANGES IN WORKING CAPITAL 2 EZ &2
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEEgEm, md (640) 126
Decrease/(increase) in trade and B 5 & H e Y5k I8
other receivables (38 ) 8,197 (2,194)
Decrease in financial assets BERERAFEFA
designated at FVTPL Bm 2 MBEERD 3,397 -
Decrease in development and 9 8 K Ak S A AN R
formation costs 419 -
(Decrease)/increase in trade and B 5 N H At e FRE
other payables CRL2) /12 (347) 1,917
Decrease in contract liabilities AHaEmRL (6,432) (598)
Increase in amount due to a B —2RERZ
shareholder FRIBIE N 2,666 4,174
Increase in amounts due to FE A E B RIA N
directors 3,066 49
10,326 3,474
CASH GENERATED FROM HEEMBREE
OPERATIONS 22,409 7,415
Income taxes paid in EXfdHhEAREME
the People’s Republic of China (IREDZFEH
("PRC") 29(a) (4,519) (1,492)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM HEEBHRAEESEH
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 17,890 5,923
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BEEH
Purchases of property, plant and BEWE BEX
equipment B 14 (3,713) (754)
Proceeds from disposal of HEME - BEI&E
property, plant and equipment ZF 1S3 1E - 208
Proceeds from disposal of a & — A W% Al
portion of equity interest in a o Mtz PG EIE
subsidiary - 14,038
Interest received 2 UWF B 210 547
Capital injection into associates 7 35%“73’]& = - (500)
NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED % &;E&I(FTH),~
FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES FiRR&FHE (3,503) 13,539
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEES
Repayment of bank borrowings BEBIIETEE 24(b) (1,166) (1,112)
Interest paid on bank borrowings ~ DATERITEEF & 24(b) (155) (264)
Repayment of lease liabilities, BEHEAREE
including related interests L) 24(b) (6,523) (6,139)
Increase in amount due to a ER—R2KREZ
shareholder HIFE N 24(b) 1,677 -
FEEGEEERAT —ZE-ZTEER
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Gonsolidated Statement of Cash Flows

I\‘/T\ e Eﬁ Nl

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # ZE—

—EFE+ZA=t-HLFE

2020 2019
—EC-EHE —NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AREFx ARETTT
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING RIEFEFARLSESH
ACTIVITIES (6,167) (7,515)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND HE&ERBEE£EEMEM
CASH EQUIVALENTS j 8,220 11,947
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS W—A—BzHR&¢ERB&
AT 1 JANUARY 119,216 103,467
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE (M3 EZREFH 22
RATE CHANGES (3,762) 3,802
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS WR+=-—A=+—HzZzHR&
AT 31 DECEMBER RIREEEY 123,674 119,216
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF RaerkBeEEYMER
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances He NIRRT 24 123,674 119,216

The notes on pages 79 to 219 form part of these consolidated

financial statements.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2020

%795321&2%?%% ERA U BK®R
FKZ2— 8D



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
VESIPAN

e ISR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z-_ZT -_FF+_A=+—HILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Sino-Life Group Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated on 24 February 2005 in the Cayman Islands
as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Cayman Islands Companies Law. Its shares are listed on
GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) on 9 September 2009.

The Company is principally engaged in investment
holding. The subsidiaries are mainly engaged in the
provision of funeral and related services in the PRC,
Taiwan and Hong Kong, sale of burial plots and
tombstones and provision of cemetery maintenance
services in Socialist Republic of Vietnam (“Vietnam”),
and provision of advisory services on stem cells and
immunocytes and sales of advance biotechnical machinery
and other electronic products in Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region, the PRC (“Hong Kong”) and
the PRC. The Company and its subsidiaries are herein
collectively referred to as the “Group”. The addresses
of the Company’s registered office and principal place
of business are The Grand Pavilion Commercial Centre,
Oleander Way, 802 West Bay Road, P.O. Box 32052,
Grand Cayman KY1-1208, Cayman Islands and Unit 601,
6/F., Ovest, No. 77 Wing Lok Street, Sheung Wan, Hong
Kong respectively.

1.

—BR&H

TEREGEEERAR(ARRRDT
RERSBHERAFVER_-_ZETRF -
At EHERSEMAL S —
FERCAREELR  HERORZ
ETNFAANBERT BB ARSM
BERAR (B PT]) GEM ET -

RAREEREREER -HWEB
FiEMHBEEREERS  REEa
FFEHNME(EEDEEEDR
EMRREEREERLE  AER
FEEBRFATHRE(EE])RHEH
2B 40 AR I e % A B A RR AR 75 AT
SmEMBREERIREMEFESD
HEER - ARAIREMBRARRT
X RIANER]  ARE MRS
Bk FEEEMB I DB BThe
Grand Pavilion Commercial Centre,
Oleander Way, 802 West Bay Road,
P.O. Box 32052, Grand Cayman KY1-
1208, Cayman Islands &2 & & 3Rk 44
775 Ovest 612601 -

TEESEEERAR —E-BFFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

T A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # ZE—

R EAE ﬁ

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards ("HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing
Rules”). Significant accounting policies adopted by
the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting period
of the Group. Note 3 provides information on any
changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current
accounting period reflected in the consolidated
financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2020 comprise the Company
and its subsidiaries and the Group’s interests in
associates.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2020

(a)

(b)

“EFT-ASTHLFE
BEEBR

e RE-L)
ZEVHRRERERE G
frg(EEesth gl R

Mz EBREBMBEREE
Al (&AM B®REERD -
BEAE %ZM%E %ﬁ
HAER - FAEEFTEAN(E
AﬁﬁWD&%& BB
%Quﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁmm
BEREMBEE - ZZWHE R
RMEBTFTHIFIGEMEH L™
FEAI(GEM £ 48 8 ) Z @ A
WEGE - AEBEBFREMBE
ZEHREEBREAT -

BAEGIMAGCEMAETE
76 B %5 3 2 A e 2 5T AR (R
AEBZASTHHBEERENR
HAREREA) - M3 HfE
RIERILE RN ER] AN E
Bz RRZEMESHE
K AR ZEFREMBHREP
[ BRIF 1T & 5 B ] B K SR B A
BESR -

ERUYBHRR2BEE

HE-P-2FT-A=T-H
ti&Zﬁé%ﬁﬁ%@%$
NGV ELIT P BT P
8 AR 2 M



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z-_ZT -_FF+_A=+—HILFE

FEFTBRER)

(Continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements (Continued)

ltems included in the financial statements of each
entity in the Group are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (the “functional currency”).
The functional currency of the Company is United
States dollars (“US$"). The functional currencies are
Renminbi (“RMB”), Taiwan dollars (“NTD"), Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$") and Vietnamese dong (“VND")
for subsidiaries incorporated/established in the PRC,
Taiwan, Hong Kong and Vietnam respectively. The
consolidated financial statements are presented
in RMB, rounded to the nearest thousand, except
when otherwise indicated, which is different from
the functional currency of the Company as majority
of the Group’s transactions are denominated in
RMB.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the financial statements is the historical cost basis
except that the following assets are stated at their
fair value as explained in the accounting policies set
out below:

- investment properties;
- freehold land and buildings; and

- financial assets designated at FVTPL.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

(b)

RV BHRR 2EEE)

mff

MB®wEK 2

R AL LT on.
1RO IR

AAREERER
HENERZZ
BeEB(NEEEDAE -
ARBzZNEEEHET(E
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HME M LB AR Z
DREBIRB/ARETAR
¥ ek Haekl) Brx
(B hkwmE(BmEEl -
HRAREEBKRIEDRZHTIAA
REFE WEEMHRET
MARB(RBEARR ZHER
BARD2Y] - BREEHEI
FIEEESNEAAZERER
FALg -

et
R
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=

o & H

\

REMBREEMERZFE
EEDE L RARERE - AT
BEDAEAFEIRGEEAT
XAE e BREMEE)

- REWE:

- KAERBRIHEET R

- EEA/AEAFEARZD
ZMEEE °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

T A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # ZE—
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

R EAE ﬁ

(Continued)

(b)

(o)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements (Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant effect
on the consolidated financial statements and major
sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in
note 43.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash
flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to
the Company, and in respect of which the Group
has not agreed any additional terms with the
holders of those interests which would result in the
Group as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the
definition of a financial liability. For each business
combination, the Group can elect to measure any
non-controlling interests either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of
the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B E-—ZE-_EF+-_A=+—HILFE
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. XET

st BUSR (48)

(Continued)

(c) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (0 KM EBRARIFEIZRKE
(Continued) (#8)
Non-controlling interests are presented in the FERERGEAS BRI
consolidated statement of financial position within KRB BEARFHEBA
equity, separately from equity attributable to the Nﬂ%ﬁam 20 o FFERE
owners of the Company. Non-controlling interests in mAEAEEEE RS
the results of the Group are presented on the face EiFEeER &Eﬁﬁi@%ﬁnﬁ%
of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and PIERIEERER EAR
other comprehensive income as an allocation of the BAEAZENERERE Tam
total profit or loss and total comprehensive income cEWBESFAZEESE o A
or expense for the year between non-controlling FESEHIFERERERE
interests and the owners of the Company. Total A WEBARzZ2ENE=E
comprehensive income or expense of subsidiaries is AT EBENERERQAHE
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the BARFERERZD - REFE
non-controlling interests even if this results in the BESFHEAZEXREHZE
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. REAZEMENEE K4
Loans from holders of non-controlling interests EHBRRAERFREIEBTBE
and other contractual obligations towards these & o
holders are presented as financial liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
Changes in the Group’s interests in existing AEERBEN B L2
subsidiaries n BB

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted
for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments
are made to the amounts of controlling and non-
controlling interests within consolidated equity
to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or
loss is recognised.

fief A &= B 0 P /BB A B) 2 M
Regs AL EEHAEEK
2%%% AABRDIERE 2 X

c EREFERER ISR

ﬁé%\Wﬁ%MﬂW'u
&%ﬁﬁ%\Z%@ e
HEBFELAE T IEER
ER&EE -

TEESEEERAR —E-BFFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4T E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # ZE—

R EAE ﬂ

(Continued)

(o)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing
subsidiaries (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former subsidiary at the date when control is
lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of
a financial asset or, when appropriate, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate
or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses, unless the investment is classified
as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that
is classified as held for sale).

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of

(i)  the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and
the fair value of the Group’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured as at the
acquisition date.

When (i) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a gain
on a bargain purchase.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2020
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FEFTBRER)

(Continued)

(d)

(e)

Goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a business
combination is allocated to each cash-generating
unit (“CGU"), or groups of cash generating units,
that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination and is tested annually for impairment.

On disposal of a CGU during the vyear, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is
included in the calculation of the profit or loss on
disposal.

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or
Company has significant influence, but not control
or joint control, over its management, including
participation in the financial and operating policy
decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in
the consolidated financial statements under the
equity method unless it is classified as held for sale
(or included in a disposal group that is classified
as held for sale). Under the equity method, the
investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for
any excess of the Group’s share of the acquisition-
date fair values of the investee’s identifiable net
assets over the cost of the investment (if any). The
cost of the investment includes purchase price,
other costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of the investment, and any direct investment into
the associate that forms part of the Group’s equity
investment. Thereafter, the investment is adjusted
for the post acquisition change in the Group's share
of the investee’s net assets and any impairment
loss relating to the investment (see note 2(n)). At
each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment
is impaired. Any acquisition-date excess over cost,
the Group's share of the post-acquisition, post-tax
results of the investees and any impairment losses
for the year are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, whereas the Group's
share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of
the investees’ other comprehensive income is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income.

(d)

(e)
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FEETBR(E)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(e)

Associates (Continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its
interest in the associate, the Group's interest is
reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the investee. For
this purpose, the Group's interest is the carrying
amount of the investment under the equity method
together with any other long-term interests that in
substance form part of the Group’s net investment
in the associate (after applying the expected credit
loss (“ECL") model to such other long-term interests
where applicable.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associates
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest
in the investee, except where unrealised losses
provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred, in which case they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture or vice versa, the
retained interest is not remeasured. Instead, the
investment continues to be accounted for under the
equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to
have significant influence over an associate, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former investee at the date when significant
influence is lost is recognised at fair value and
this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(f)

(9)

Investment property

Investment properties are land and/or building
which are owned or held under a leasehold
interest to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. These include land held for a currently
undetermined future use and property that is
being constructed or developed for future use as
investment property.

Investment properties are stated at fair value,
unless they are still in the course of construction
or development at the end of the reporting period
and their fair value cannot be reliably measured at
that time. Any gain or loss arising from a change in
fair value or from the retirement or disposal of an
investment property is recognised in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment
Freehold land and buildings held for own use
are stated at their revalued amount, being their
fair value at the date of the revaluation less any
subsequent accumulated depreciation.

Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity
to ensure that the carrying amount of these assets
does not differ materially from that which would
be determined using fair values at the end of the
reporting period.

The following items of property, plant and
equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see note 2(n)):

—  right-of-use assets arising from leases over
freehold or leasehold properties where the
Group is not the registered owner of the
property interest; and

— items of plant and equipment, including right-
of-use assets arising from leases of underlying
plant and equipment (see note 2(h)).
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # ZE—
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

R EAE ﬂ

(Continued)

(9)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Changes arising on the revaluation of properties
held for own use are generally dealt with in
other comprehensive income and are accumulated
separately in equity in the properties revaluation
reserve. The only exceptions are as follows:

- when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be

charged to profit or loss to the extent that
it exceeds the amount held in the properties
revaluation reserve in respect of that same
asset immediately prior to the revaluation;
and

- when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be

credited to profit or loss to the extent that a
deficit on revaluation in respect of that same
asset had previously been charged to profit
or loss.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or
valuation of items of property, plant and equipment,
less their estimated residual value, if any, using the
straight line method over their estimated useful lives
as follows:

- freehold land is not depreciated;

- buildings situated on freehold land are
depreciated over their estimated useful life,
being no more than 50 years after the date
of completion;
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # =
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(9)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
- The Group’s interests in buildings situated
on leasehold land are depreciated over the
shorter of the unexpired term of lease and
their estimated useful lives, being no more
than 50 years after the date of completion;

- Leasehold
improvements

3 to 10 years or over
the remaining term
of the lease, if shorter

- Furniture, fixtures 2 to 5 years
and office
equipment

- Motor vehicles 3 to 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost or
valuation of the item is allocated on a reasonable
basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an
asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed
annually.

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition and installation of the
items. Cost may also include transfers from equity
of any gains/losses on qualifying cash flow hedges
of foreign currency purchases of property, plant and
equipment.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

R EAE ﬁ

(Continued)

(9)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The item is stated at cost less
impairment until it begins to generate economic
benefits, then the item is subsequently measured
according to the measurement basis of its respective
asset class. All other repairs and maintenance costs
are charged to the profit or loss during the financial
period in which they are incurred or provided for.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement
or disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in profit
or loss on the date of retirement or disposal. Any
related revaluation surplus is transferred from the
properties revaluation reserve to accumulated losses
and is not reclassified to profit or loss.

Properties, plant and equipment in the course
of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Cost includes
professional fees and, for qualifying assets,
borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the
Group's accounting policy. Such properties, plant
and equipment are classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation
of these assets, on the same basis as similar assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
If a property becomes an investment property
because its use has changed as evidenced by end
of owner-occupation, any difference between the
carrying amount and the fair value of that item
(including the relevant leasehold land classified
as right-of-use assets) at the date of transfer is
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in properties revaluation reserve. On
the subsequent sale or retirement of the property,
the relevant revaluation reserve will be transferred
directly to accumulated losses.

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to direct the use of
the identified asset and to obtain substantially all
of the economic benefits from that use.

(i) As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease
component(s) and non-lease component(s),
the Group has elected not to separate non-
lease components and accounts for each lease
component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component for
all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability, except for short-term leases that have
a lease term of 12 months or less and leases
of low-value assets. When the Group enters
into a lease in respect of a low-value asset,
the Group decides whether to capitalise the
lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease
payments associated with those leases which
are not capitalised are recognised as an
expense on a systematic basis over the lease
term.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # ZE—
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(h) Leased assets (Continued)

(i)

As a lessee (Continued)

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease
liability is initially recognised at the present
value of the lease payments payable over the
lease term, discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot
be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial
recognition, the lease liability is measured
at amortised cost and interest expense is
calculated using the effective interest method.
Variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or rate are not included in the
measurement of the lease liability and hence
are charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a
lease is capitalised is initially measured at
cost, which comprises the initial amount of
the lease liability plus any lease payments
made at or before the commencement date,
and any initial direct costs incurred. Where
applicable, the cost of the right-of-use assets
also includes an estimate of costs to dismantle
and remove the underlying asset or to restore
the underlying asset or the site on which it
is located, discounted to their present value,
less any lease incentives received. The right-
of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see notes 2(g) and 2(n)), except for the
following types of right-of-use asset:

— right-of-use assets that meet the
definition of investment properties are
carried at fair value in accordance with
note 2(f); and

—  right-of-use assets related to leasehold
land and buildings where the Group is
the registered owner of the leasehold
interest are carried at fair value in
accordance with note 2(g); and
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FES:TEE(E8)
(Continued)

(h) Leased assets (Continued) (hy HEEE(E)
(i) As a lessee (Continued) (i) /’F?%ﬁﬁ/( (&

—  right-of-use assets related to interests HEETHERE
in leasehold land where the interest in Mo REEE(E
the land is held as inventory are carried Pr 2 ERER
at the lower of cost and net realisable FERA)RKAR
value. AR FECBRIK

e PN

The lease liability is remeasured when there
is a change in future lease payments arising
from a change in an index or rate, or there
is a change in the Group's estimate of the
amount expected to be payable under a
residual value guarantee, or there is a change
arising from the reassessment of whether the
Group will be reasonably certain to exercise
a purchase, extension or termination option.
When the lease liability is remeasured in this
way, a corresponding adjustment is made to
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset,
or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset has been
reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when
there is a change in the scope of a lease
or the consideration for a lease that is not
originally provided for in the lease contract
("lease modification”) that is not accounted
for as a separate lease. In this case the lease
liability is remeasured based on the revised
lease payments and lease term using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the
modification.

In the consolidated statement of financial
position, the current portion of long-term
lease liabilities is determined as the present
value of contractual payments that are due
to be settled within twelve months after the
reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # ZE—

R EAE ﬁ

(Continued)

(h)

(i)

Leased assets (Continued)

(ii) As a lessor
When the Group acts as a lessor, it
determines at lease inception whether each
lease is a finance lease or an operating lease.
A lease is classified as a finance lease if it
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to the ownership of an underlying
assets to the lessee. If this is not the case,
the lease is classified as an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-
lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each
component on a relative stand-alone selling
price basis. The rental income from operating
leases is recognised in accordance with note
2(s).

When the Group is an intermediate lessor,
the sub-leases are classified as a finance lease
or as an operating lease with reference to
the right-of-use asset arising from the head
lease. If the head lease is a short-term lease
to which the Group applies the exemption
described in note 2(h)(i), then the Group
classifies the sub-lease as an operating lease.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position when a group entity becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on
trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the market place.
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FEFTBRER)

(Continued)

(i)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are
initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 15.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at
FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest
income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
and payments (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to hold assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.
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R EAE ﬁ

(Continued)

(i)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

o the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by both
selling and collecting contractual cash flows;
and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently
measured at FVTPL, except that at the date of
initial recognition of a financial asset the Group
may irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in fair value of an equity investment
in other comprehensive income if that equity
investment is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a
business combination to which HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations applies.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio
of identified financial instruments that the
Group manages together and has a recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

4= N
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # =

(Continued)

(i)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate
a financial asset that are required to be measured
at the amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at
FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces
an accounting mismatch.

(1)

Amortised cost and interest income
Interest income is recognised using the
effective interest method for financial assets
measured subsequently at amortised cost and
debt instruments/receivables subsequently
measured at FVTOCI. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset, except for financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-
impaired (see below). For financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost
of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the
financial asset is no longer credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following
the determination that the asset is no longer
credit impaired.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

R EAE ﬁ

(Continued)

(i)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or
designated as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period, with any fair
value gains or losses recognised in profit or loss.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
excludes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset and is included in the “other income
and other net (loss)/gain” line item.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under
ECL model on financial assets (including trade and
other receivables and cash and bank balances)
which are subject to impairment assessment under
HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of
the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12 months ECL
("12m ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL
that is expected to result from default events that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting
date.

Assessment are done based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting date as well as the
forecast of future conditions.
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FEFTBRER)

(Continued)

(i)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, in which case the Group recognises
lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime
ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at
the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at
the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both
guantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue
cost or effort.
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BEETBR(E)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
(Continued)

(i) Financial instruments (Continued) (i)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(i) Significant increase in credit risk
(Continued)
In particular, the following information is
taken into account when assessing whether
credit risk has increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial
instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external
market indicators of credit risk, e.g. a
significant increase in the credit spread,
the credit default swap prices for the
debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes
in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause
a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor; or

o an actual or expected significant
adverse change in the regulatory,
economic, or technological environment
of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition when contractual payments
are more than 30 days past due, unless
the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # &=

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

FTEE

ToTFE+-AS+H-BLFE
at Bk (48)

(Continued)

(i)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(1)

(ir)

(ifi)

Significant increase in credit risk
(Continued)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk
and revises them as appropriate to ensure
that the criteria are capable of identifying
significant increase in credit risk before the

amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the
Group considers an event of default occurs
when information developed internally or
obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking
into account any collaterals held by the
Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial
asset is more than 90 days past due unless
the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one
or more events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of that
financial asset have occurred. Evidence that
a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(@)  significant financial difficulty of the
issuer or the borrower;

(b)  a breach of contract, such as a default
or past due event;
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # ZE—
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

R EAE ﬁ

(Continued)

(i)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i) Credit-impaired financial assets

(Continued)
() the lender(s) of the borrower,

economic or contractual reasons
relating to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the
lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy or other

financial reorganisation; or

(e)  the disappearance of an active market
for that financial asset because of

financial difficulties.

(iv)  Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when
there is information indicating that the
counterparty is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
for example, when the counterparty has
been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case
of trade receivables, when the amounts are
over two years past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets written off may still
be subject to enforcement activities under
the Group's recovery procedures, taking into
account legal advice where appropriate. A
write-off constitutes a derecognition event.
Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in

profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z-_ZT -_FF+_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(i)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL

()

The measurement of ECL is a function of
the probability of default, loss given default
(i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a
default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and
loss given default is based on historical data
and forward-looking information. Estimation
of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-
weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the
weights. The Group uses a practical expedient
in estimating ECL on trade receivables using
a provision matrix taking into consideration
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking information that is available

without undue cost or effect.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and
the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest

rate determined at initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables
are considered on a collective basis taking
into consideration past due information and
relevant credit information such as forward-

looking macroeconomic information.

For collective assessment,

the Group

takes into consideration the following
characteristics when formulating the
grouping;

. Past-due status;

o Nature, size and industry of debtors;

and

o External credit ratings where available.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z-_ZF -_TF+_-_A=+—HILFE
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. XESE:B¥E(E)

(Continued)
(i)  Financial instruments (Continued) (i) BEIAGE)
Financial assets (Continued) BB EE (&)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) B ERE(E)
(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL V) TEREEERNGER
(Continued) ER(E)
The grouping is regularly reviewed by DHEEETEETE MR
management to ensure the constituents of RS HEEKEEER
each group continue to share similar credit FHEUCZEERRER -

risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the FIBWATIRIET B EE
gross carrying amount of the financial asset WAREAZETE - BRIEM
unless the financial asset is credit impaired, in BEEHREEREBE  H
which case interest income is calculated based FEWARZBEBIEE
on amortised cost of the financial asset. EWEEKARTE -

The Group recognises an impairment gain REBERFABEVBIAR
or loss in profit or loss for all financial BAREREERERPE
instruments by adjusting their carrying RBER RN EE - EE
amount, with the exception of trade SIEWGRIA BB B EREE
receivables where the corresponding IR H IR E EITHER
adjustment is recognised through a loss o

allowance account.
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FEFTBRER)

(Continued)

(i)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group recognises
its retained interest in the asset and an associated
liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and
also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the
proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or
loss.

On derecognition of an investment in a debt
instrument classified as at FVTOCI, the cumulative
gain or loss previously accumulated in the FVTOCI
reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity
instrument which the Group has elected on initial
recognition to measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative
gain or loss previously accumulated in the FVTOCI
reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is
transferred to accumulated losses.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # ZE—
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

R EAE ﬁ

(Continued)

(i)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangements and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Perpetual instruments, which include no contractual
obligation for the Group to deliver cash or other
financial assets or the Group has the sole discretion
to defer payment of distribution and redemption of
principal amount indefinitely are classified as equity
instruments.

Repurchase of the Company’'s own equity
instruments is recognised and deducted directly in
equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the
Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method
or at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including bank borrowings, trade
and other payables are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 75 R BT At
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # =
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

)

(k)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that
are acquired separately are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible
assets with finite useful lives is recognised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
The estimated useful life and amortisation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis.

The following intangible assets with finite useful
lives are amortised from the date they are available
for use and their estimated useful lives are as
follows:

- trademark 5 to 10 years

- computer system 2 to 2.5 years

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or
when no future economic benefits are expected
from use or disposal. Gains and losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset, measured
as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset,
are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Development and formation costs

The development and formation costs represent
development costs incurred for a cemetery site
which will be completed for sale and are stated at
the lower of cost and net realisable value.

The development costs comprise specifically
identified cost, including the acquisition cost of
land, aggregate cost of development, materials
and supplies, wages and other direct expenses, an
appropriate proportion of overheads and borrowing
costs capitalised. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price less estimated costs of
completion and costs to be incurred in selling the
burial plots.
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4T E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # ZE—
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

R EAE ﬁ

(Continued)

0

Inventories

Inventories are assets which are held for sale in
the ordinary course of business, in the process of
production for such sale or in the form of materials
or supplies to be consumed in the production
process or in the rendering of services.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost of merchandises for resale and marble stones is
calculated using the weighted average cost formula
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

Cost of burial plots developed for sale is determined
by an apportionment of the total development costs
(see note 2(k)) attributable to completed but unsold
units.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal
of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised
as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 75 R BT At
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # =
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(m)

(n)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management
are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated
statement of cash flows. Cash and cash equivalents
are assessed for ECL in accordance with the policy
set out in note 2(i).

Impairment of non-financial assets

Internal and external sources of information are

reviewed at the end of each reporting period to

identify indications that the following assets may

be impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an

impairment loss previously recognised no longer

exists or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment (other than
properties carried at revalued amounts);

- right-of-use assets;

- intangible assets;

- goodwill;

- deposits and prepayments;

- interests in associates; and

- investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.
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4T E

R EAE ﬁ

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # ZE—

(Continued)

(n)

Impairment of non-financial assets
(Continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill,
intangible assets that are not yet available for
use and intangible assets that have indefinite
useful lives, the recoverable amount is estimated
annually whether or not there is any indication of
impairment.

Calculation of recoverable amount
The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and its value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. Where an
asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (that is a CGU).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss if the carrying amount of an asset,
or the CGU to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of CGUs are allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the CGU (or group
of units) and then, to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata basis, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not
be reduced below its individual fair value less
costs of disposal (if measurable) or value in
use (if determinable).
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z-_ZT -_FF+_A=+—HILFE

(Continued)

(n) Impairment of non-financial assets
(Continued)

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited
to the asset’s carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to profit
or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

Interim financial reporting and
impairment

Under the GEM Listing Rules, the Group is
required to prepare an interim financial report
in compliance with HKAS 34, Interim Financial
Reporting, every three months. At the end
of the interim period, the Group applies the
same impairment testing, recognition, and
reversal criteria as it would at the end of the
financial year.

Impairment losses recognised in an interim
period in respect of goodwill are not reversed
in a subsequent period. This is the case even
if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been
recognised had the impairment been assessed
only at the end of the financial year to which
the interim period relates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRR M nE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-ZE-_EF+-_A=+—HILFE
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EZE:tHK(E)
(Continued)
(0) Employee benefits (o) EERH
(i) Short term employee benefits and () *ElESEFR EEE SR
contributions to defined contribution Rk at & =2 75
retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual e FEHRS - BEHF
leave, contributions to defined contribution R THEHFEKRFTEZ
retirement plans and the cost of non- TR K IEE B R A KR
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in R B 1R AR RE R TS 89 £
which the associated services are rendered by ERNRE o WHETEMNK
employees. Where payment or settlement is IEEEERNEANT
deferred and the effect would be material, 2. AzZEHEeNRE
these amounts are stated at their present HIHER o
values.
(i)  Termination benefits (i) ALE7EF
Termination benefits are recognised at the BIERF AR S B & LR
earlier of when the Group can no longer KEZzERMEEER
withdraw the offer of those benefits and WREMRIERER 2 EH
when it recognises restructuring costs BB (AR & R %) 78
involving the payment of termination o
benefits.
(p) Share-based payments (p) URODABER AR
(i)  Share options granted to employees () RTFESZBKE
The fair value of share options granted to BT REEZEREZRAT
employees is recognised as an employee cost BHERRBEEKA Mk
with a corresponding increase in the share- w2z AR A 2 4
based compensation reserve within equity. BREGETEHEELEN - 2
The fair value is measured at grant date using FEITRETARZIER
the binomial option pricing model, taking HETEREFE  IF
into account the terms and conditions upon R TR R R AR
which the options were granted. Where the "o MEEETNARERK
employees have to meet vesting conditions HHEEE T FER
before becoming unconditionally entitled to B RERERESSS
the share options, the total estimated fair Brrggltik  BEelE
value of the share options is spread over e fEst A FELER
the vesting period, taking into account the EEHASFER -

probability that the options will vest.
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FEFTBRER)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

4o A

W N

(Continued)

(p) Share-based payments (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Share options granted to employees
(Continued)

During the vesting period, the number of
share options expected to vest is reviewed.
Any resulting adjustment to the cumulative
fair value recognised in prior years is charged/
credited to the profit or loss for the year
of the review, unless the original employee
expenses qualify for recognition as an
asset, with a corresponding adjustment to
the share-based compensation reserve. On
vesting date, the amount recognised as an
expense is adjusted to reflect the actual
number of share options that vest (with
a corresponding adjustment to the share-
based compensation reserve) except where
forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting
conditions that relate to the market price of
the Company’s shares. The equity amount is
recognised in the share-based compensation
reserve until either the option is exercised
(when it is transferred to the share premium
account) or the option expires (when it is
released directly to accumulated losses).

Share options granted to non-
employees

Share options issued in exchange for services
are measured at the fair values of the services
received, except where that fair value cannot
be estimated reliably, in which case they
are measured at the fair value of the equity
instruments granted, measured at the date
the counterparty renders the services. The
fair values of services received are recognised
as expenses (unless the services qualify for
recognition as assets).
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T A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # ZE—
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

R EAE ﬁ

(Continued)

(a)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses
and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that
may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of
existing taxable temporary differences, provided
those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as
the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back
or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if
they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.
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FEFTBRER)

(Continued)

(q)

Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from goodwill not deductible
for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit (provided they are not part of a business
combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in
the case of taxable differences, the Group controls
the timing of the reversal and it is probable that
the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future, or in the case of deductible differences,
unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.

Where investment properties are carried at their
fair value in accordance with the accounting policy
set out in note 2(f), the amount of deferred tax
recognised is measured using the tax rates that
would apply on sale of those assets at their carrying
value at the reporting date unless the property is
depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of
the economic benefits embodied in the property
over time, rather than through sale. In all other
cases, the amount of deferred tax recognised
is measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of
the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any
such reduction is reversed to the extent that it
becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when the
liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.
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T A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # ZE—
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

R EAE ﬁ

(Continued)

(q)

(r)

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company
or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and the following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Company or the Group intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in
each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current
tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
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FEFTBRER)

(Continued)

(9]

(s)

Provisions and contingent liabilities
(Continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers
The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to
the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or
service (or a bundle of goods or services) that is
distinct or a series of distinct goods or services that
are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the
Group’s performance as the Group performs;

. the Group's performance creates or enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the
Group performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group
and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

R EAE ﬁ

(Continued)

(s)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct
good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not
yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in
accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is
required before payment of that consideration is
due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for
which the Group has received consideration (or an
amount of consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to
the same contract are accounted for and presented
on a net basis.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods
or services to a customer, the Group determines
whether the nature of its promise is a performance
obligation to provide the specified goods or services
itself (i.e. the Group is a principal) or to arrange
for those goods or services to be provided by the
other party (i.e. the Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified
good or service before that good or service is
transferred to a customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation
is to arrange for the provision of the specified
good or service by another party. In this case,
the Group does not control the specified good or
service provided by another party before that good
or service is transferred to the customer. When the
Group acts as an agent, it recognises revenue in
the amount of any fee or commission to which it
expects to be entitled in exchange for arranging for
the specified goods or services to be provided by
the other party.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2020

(s)

“EFT-ASTHLFE
EETBRR)

Wy 55 #E 52 ()
KEEF &AWz (&)

/

BRI RENEFPESERRE
Th 3 AR 5 1 T HE A B ) RS

RHEERAKERATFE
BASECEENEmIRH
BB B 4 M) (il R B 73 4 M
) - ERBEBEBW B MEER
SFOFRATEIRME - AR - UK
TR 8 7N 5% [ YR B (B A 4R AR 1
Tiéﬂ BIRFRHEBBENRE
BIZBBIHISZAS »

AHRBERAKRENLAKED
feEPUEBRE(REREFR
B)REFBEEMIRENR
fF o

MEERBEZEOHEBNE
Z’JE\FB@%% EEARRZ
bI] o

ZIAAHLEA
ES—AERNEPEHE G
SRS AEEETHARD
MERRRBHIEETE IR
BERENENES (AXEEA

ZEN LRS- RHEZ
EEms iR (A AEE AR E
A) e

WAKBERTFEERML
AR5 2 AT ¥ 36 E B m S RS
AIREBRRTEA

WAKEOBTEBRLES
—HRHEEENRE SRS
AIREBERRIEA ELBER
T ENARIREEBEERTE
Pzal REBFAES ST
REMETHRIRS - EX
SERREAR - B AR
57 &R M1 E B ek
RIGEMBE RGO EAEE
FWMENCEERKE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 75 R BT At
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(Continued)

(s)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Interest income is recognised as it accrues under
the effective interest method using the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to
the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.
For financial assets measured at amortised cost or
FVTOCI (recycling) that are not credit-impaired, the
effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset. For credit-impaired financial
assets, the effective interest rate is applied to the
amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of
loss allowance) of the asset.

Rental income receivable under operating leases
is recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments
over the periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative
of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the
use of the leased asset. Lease incentive, granted are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments receivable. Variable
lease payments that do not depend on an index or
a rate are recognised as income in the accounting
period in which they are earned.

Government grants are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position initially
when there is reasonable assurance that they
will be received and that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching to them. Grants
that compensate the Group for expenses incurred
are recognised as income in profit or loss on a
systematic basis in the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate the
Group for the cost of an asset are deducted from
the carrying amount of the asset and consequently
are effectively recognised in profit or loss over
the useful life of the asset by way of reduced
depreciation expense.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
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(Continued)

(t)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of
the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss, except those arising
from foreign currency borrowings used to hedge
a net investment in a foreign operation which are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. The transaction
date is the date on which the Company initially
recognises such non-monetary assets or liabilities.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the dates the fair value was measured.

The results of non-PRC operations are translated
into RMB at the exchange rates approximating the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Statement of financial position items
are translated into RMB at the closing foreign
exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the foreign
currency translation reserve.

On the disposal of a non-PRC operation the
cumulative amount of the exchange differences
relating to that foreign operation is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss on
disposal is recognised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # =
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(u)

(v)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset which necessarily takes a substantial period of
time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.

Related parties
(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group's
parent.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members
of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others);
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(v) Related parties (Continued)
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (Continued)

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is
a member);

(i) both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity);

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z-_ZT -_FF+_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FES:TEE(E8)
(Continued)

(w) Segment reporting (w) 2 EBHRE

Operating segments, and the amounts of
each segment item reported in the financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Company’s
executive directors, which are the chief operating
decision maker of the Company for the purposes
of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’'s various lines of
business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # ZE—
APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO 3.

3.

R EAE ﬁ

HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework
in HKFRS Standards and the following amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA for the first time, which
are mandatorily effective for the annual period beginning
on or after 1 January 2020 for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

The application of Amendments to References to the
Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards and the
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year had no
material impact on the Group’s financial positions and
performance for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 BEZE—_ZE_ZF+_-_A=+—HIFE
4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Disaggregation of revenue

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers by major products or services lines is as
follows:

Disaggregation of revenue for the year
ended 31 December 2020

4.

I 2 & 53 BB & 4

(@ WEDHF
BREIBEmMmABRBERE DN
KEEFPAEHZBEDFMT :

BE-F_FFI+ZHA=A
— B Ik FE B 28 5 HF

Stem cells and

immunocytes

Funeral and other
services businesses Total

BERER

REAR
EHERE REGER Chy
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB000
ARBFR ARETR ARETR

Major products and services TEERRRE

Funeral services and cremation services provided ASEEE 7 BEERBEERHFL

in funeral parlous and funeral service centres B4 2 BERBR AL RS

under the Group's management 60,961 - 60,961
Funeral arrangement and related consultancy ~ BEZHRIEEZARE
services 2,290 - 2,290
Sales of burial plots and tombstones HERMRER 435 - 435
Provision of advisory service on stem cells and SR & 4 [ % & A I % R
immunocytes - 356 356
Sales of biotechnical machineries and other AW HERRENETFEREE
electronics products - 4,298 4,298
63,686 4,654 68,340
Timing of revenue recognition Wy 5 22 %
At a point in time RE-BHY 4,853 4,298 9,151
Over time REEES 58,833 356 59,189
63,686 4,654 68,340
Primary geographical market TERETS
The PRC i 60,961 356 61,317
Taiwan fig 1,802 - 1,802
Hong Kong EE 488 4,298 4,786
Vietnam i 435 - 435
63,686 4,654 68,340
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-ZE-_EF+-_A=+—HILFE
4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. W5 &% && ¥ (&)
(Continued)
(a) Disaggregation of revenue (Continued) (@) Wamair (&)
Disaggregation of revenue for the year ended BE_E—NFL+ZH=1+
31 December 2019 —H 1F FE A 7 77 77
Stem cells and
immunocytes
Funeral and other
services businesses Total
#EMR
SEAR
BERE  REAMBEH @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ANEBTT ARETT  AREF:R
Major products and services TRERRRE
Funeral services and cremation services provided in funeral 1;&@ EYREER
parlous and funeral service centres under the Group's BRBPORMRL
management Vﬂ?f AR B kAL RS 58,277 - 58,277
Funeral arrangement and related consultancy services BERHR
R 3,058 - 3,058
Sales of burial plots and tombstones HEEWRER 41 - a1
Provision of advisory service on stem cells and immunocytes  FEHE B A & R AR ARE - 1,591 1,591
Sales of biotechnical machineries HEANREES - 3,263 3,263
61,756 4,854 66,610
Timing of revenue recognition Wy 25 7 22 B
At a point in time RE-RBEE a 3,63 3,684
Over time RERED 61,335 1,591 62,926
61,756 4,854 66,610
Primary geographical market TERETHS
The PRC i 58,271 1,591 59,868
Taiwan B 2,58 - 2,258
Hong Kong Bk 800 3,263 4,063
Vietnam ik 0 - o
61,756 4,854 66,610
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z-_ZT -_FF+_A=+—HILFE

I 2 B 53 BB & 4 (4R)

(Continued)

(@)

Disaggregation of revenue (Continued)
Performance obligations for contracts with
customers

Funeral services and cremation services

The Group offers services of planning funeral
arrangement and interment, organising and hosting
of the funeral. Revenue from funeral services is
recognised when services are provided. Except for
sales of prepaid funeral services packages offered
to individuals, payment of the transaction price is
due immediately at the point the funeral services
are provided. Sales of prepaid funeral services
packages is sales of funeral services based on a
contract prior to death occurring. The payment is
due when the contract of prepaid funeral services
packages is signed, which will give rise to contract
liabilities at the inception of a contract, until the
revenue recognised when the funeral service is
offered. Details of the prepaid funeral services
packages contract are disclosed in note 26 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Funeral arrangement and related consultancy
services

Revenue from funeral arrangement and related
consultancy services is recognised when services are
provided. Payment of the transaction price is due
immediately at the point the funeral arrangement
and related consultancy services are provided.

Sales of burial plots and tombstones

Revenue from the sales of burial plots and
tombstones is recognised when the control of
burial plots and tombstones is transferred to the
customer, being when the right to use of burial
plots and tombstones has been passed. Payment
of the transaction price is due immediately at the
point the customer purchases the burial plots and
tombstones.
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. WHERDEIEE (&)
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Disaggregation of revenue (Continued)
Performance obligations for contracts with
customers (Continued)

Provision of advisory service on stem cells and
immunocytes

Revenue from advisory service on stem cells
and immunocytes is recognised when services
are performed. Advisory service on stem cells
and immunocytes is advisory service based on a
contract prior to the advisory service. Payment of
the transaction price is due when the contract of
advisory service is signed, which will give rise to
contract liabilities at the inception of a contract,
until the revenue recognised when the advisory
service is rendered.

Sales of biotechnical machineries and other
electronic products

Revenue from sales of biotechnical machineries
and other electronic products is recognised when
the control of such products is transferred to
the customer, being when the goods have been
delivered to the customer’s specific location.
Following the delivery, the customer has full
discretion over the manner of distribution and price
to sell the goods, has the primary responsibility
when on selling the goods and bears of
obsolescence and loss in relation to the goods. The
normal credit term is 90 days upon delivery.

Segment information

The Group manages its businesses by divisions,
which are organised by a business lines. In a manner
consistent with the way in which information is
reported internally to the executive directors of the
Company (the "Executive Directors”), which are the
chief operating decision maker, for the purposes of
resources allocation and performance assessment.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Executive Directors considered that it is the best
interest of the Company and the shareholders of
the Company to concentrate its resources on the
“funeral services” segment and “stem cells and
immunocytes and other business” segment, and
thus the Executive Directors decided to classify the
“elderly care service” segment as “unallocated” and
applies such change retrospectively.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # =
4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.

(Continued)

(b)

Segment information (Continued)
For the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019,
the Group had below two reportable segments:

(A)

Funeral services: Provision of funeral related
service, including arrangement services and
related consultancy services, provision of
funeral and cremation services and sale of
burial plots and tombstones; and

Stem cells and immunocytes and other
business: Provision of advisory service on
stem cells and immunocytes and sales of
biotechnical machineries and other electronic
products.

The segment information provided
to the Executive Directors for the
reportable segments for the year
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 is
as follows:

Segment results, assets and liabilities
For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources
between segments, the Executive Directors
monitor the results, assets and liabilities
attributable to each reportable segment on
the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible
and, intangible asset and current assets
with the exception of corporate assets.
Segment liabilities include trade and other
payables, contract liabilities, lease liabilities,
amounts due to directors, amount due to
a shareholder, provisions and current tax
liabilities attributable to the activities of the
individual segments and borrowings managed
directly by the segments.

TECRFF A=t —HLFE

I 2 B 53 BB & 4 (4R)

(b)

2 EBE R (E)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # ZE—

—EFE+ZA=t-HLFE

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. WH RS EIEE (&)

(Continued)

(b) Segment information (Continued)
(A) The segment information provided

(b) ZEBEHF(E)

to the Executive Directors for the
reportable segments for the year
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 is

as follows: (Continued)
assets and

Segment results,
(Continued)

liabilities

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the
reportable segments with reference to sales
generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments or which otherwise
arise from the depreciation or amortisation of
assets attributable to those segments.

Segment results represent the earnings and
loss of each segment without allocation of
valuation (loss)/gain on investment properties
and financial assets designated at FVTPL,

impairment loss on an associate,

reversal

of impairment losses/(impairment losses)
recognised under ECL model on financial
assets, share of losses of associates, other
income and other net (loss)/gain, unallocated
head office and corporate expenses, finance
costs and income tax expense. This is the
measure reported to the Executive Directors
for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance.

For the purpose of assessment by the

Executive Directors,

the finance costs on

bank borrowings and lease liabilities were not
included in segment results while the bank
borrowings and lease liabilities have been

included in the segment liabilities.

In addition to receiving segment information

concerning segment results,
Directors are provided with
information concerning revenue,

the Executive

segment
interest

income and expense from cash balances and
borrowings managed directly by the segments,
fair value (loss)/gain on financial assets
designated at FVTPL, reversal of impairment
losses/(impairment losses) recognised under
ECL model on financial assets, depreciation
and amortisation, income tax expenses, and
additions to non-current segment assets used
by the segments in their operations.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B E-—ZE-_EF+-_A=+—HILFE

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. W HE RS EIEE ()
(Continued)

(b) Segment information (Continued) 7 EE R (&)

(b)

(A) The segment information provided

to the Executive Directors for the
reportable segments for the year
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 is
as follows: (Continued)
Segment results, assets and
(Continued)

Information regarding the Group’s reportable
segments as provided to the Executive
Directors for the purposes of resources
allocation and assessment of segment
performance for the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2019 is set out below:

liabilities

(A) BEZZE-ZFFK

—ANF+=ZA=+—H
I FEEBTFHITESE
B & 7 S8 7 &
Al (&)
DEEE - EENAE
(&)
EEREE-_Z_TFY
—E-hAF+ZA=1+—
AIEFEZ2E RS R
GO RREPITESRR
HZAEBARE D2
BRI

Year ended 31 December

BET-A=t-HLEE
2020 2019
zese g
Stem cells and Stem cells and
immunocytes immunocytes
Funeral and other Funeral and other
services business Total services business Total
B4R £ARk
SRR LRAR
BEBRE RAGER 4 BERE  RALER ai
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
ARBTRE  ARETR AREBTR ARMTT ARYTI ARETR
Segment Revenue SR
- Funeral services and cremation - r%@mgz%ﬁg&
services provided in funeral parlous and funeral service BE
centres under the Group's management 60,961 - 60,961 58,277 - 58,277
- Funeral arrangement and related
consultancy services 2,290 - 2,290 3,058 - 3,058
- Sales of burial plots and tombstones -HEEHNRER 435 - 435 an - an
- Provision of advisory service - RERS ﬁ‘i LREAR
on stem cells and immunocytes F - 356 356 - 1,591 1,591
- Sales of biotechnical machineries and other electronics
products - 4,298 4,298 - 3,263 3,263
63,686 4,654 68,340 61,756 4,854 66,610
Segment operating profit/(loss) 9,598 (366) 9,232 3,298 428 3,726
Other items:
Amounts included in the measure of segment operating profit/(loss):
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets 9,462 120 9,582 6,004 - 6,004
Amounts not included in the measure of segment operating profit/
(loss) but regularly reported to Executive Directors:
Interest income 208 1 209 545 2 547
Finance costs 2,502 8 2,510 2,784 - 2,784
Fair value (loss)/gain on financial assets designated as FVTPL
(32) - (32) 3831 - 3,831
Reversal of impairment losses/
(impairment losses) recognised under ECL model on trade and REE
other receivables, net BE/ (REEE 1,242 - 1,242 (1,151 (67) (1,218)
Income tax expense 253 1,875 8 1,883 1,217 19 1,236
Additions to non-current segment assets REERDADEE 3871 879 4,750 754 - 754
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # ZE—

—EFE+ZA=t-HLFE

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. WH RS EIEE (&)

(Continued)

(b) Segment information (Continued) (b)y & *B‘é*«l(,.a)

(A) The segment information provided (A) BZ2-E_ZFFR_F
to the Executive Directors for the - nWF+ZHA=1+—H
reportable segments for the year ILFERBRTHTESE
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 is H) B[R & 7 5819 77 56 &
as follows: (Continued) BT ()

Segment results, assets and liabilities DEEE  BERAR
(Continued) (%;“3)
There are no inter-segment sales during the AEEHMESHHEIESE
year (2019: Nil). —E-NFE) o
The following table presents segment assets T?\%%@W RZZB_TFER
and segment liabilities of the Group's j1¢+ A=+—
reportable segments as at 31 December 2020 H $’§ BRI E S HH D
and 2019: BEERDHE
00 019
ut- Jut 34 “I-0E
Stem cells and Stem cells and
immunocytes Immunocytes
Funeral  and other Funeral and other
services  businesses Total services  businesses Total
EaRR SRR
SRR RN
BERE REMER Bt BERE  RAMER )
RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMBOO0  RWBOOD  RVEODD  RMBO0D
AREFR  AREFR AREFR ARETr ARETR  ARETx
Segment assets PHEE 238,756 5739 244,495 270,638 3,707 274,345
Seqment liabilities PEL 141,836 7,082 148,878 159,767 3,285 163,052
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ARE WM
For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z-_ZT -_FF+_A=+—HILFE

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. W HE RS EIEE ()
(Continued)

(b) Segment information (Continued) (b) o MEFX(E)

(B) Reconciliations of reportable segment B) HWHETH WKz B
revenue, profit or loss, assets, m EE BERAM
liabilities and other items HEZ# K

2020 2019
—ECFE —E-NE
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 ARETR ARETT
Revenue Wi #3
Total reportable segment revenue 7] 3R & 4 #f Ut 25 4258
and consolidated revenue AR 68,340 66,610
Profit or loss iR
Total reportable segment AEENREPEXZ
profit derived from Group's AwmESHafaE
external customers 9,232 3,726
Fair value gain on investment REMEAFERE
properties 16 101 -
Fair value (loss)/gain on financial 1T A& AFEFTA
assets designated at FVTPL BaWBAEN
ATEBR) Wa 19 (32 3,831
Other income and Hn e A R E A
other net (loss)/gain (BB Wa 38 5 2,314 1,188

Reversal of impairment losses/ AR EEZEHEE
(impairment losses) recognised ~ ESEERIF T

under ECL model on ERRREBERE
(REBE)
- Trade receivables - B REWKIE 6(d),
34(a) (7) (383)
- Other receivables - E A EU IR 6(d),
34(a) 1,233 (837)
Impairment loss on an associate —RE & NAZREKE 18 - (395)
Finance costs &M AR 6(a) (2,521) (2,791)
Share of losses of associates iR E AREE 18 - (105)
Unallocated head office and ROMBHBRARRAZ
corporate expenses (8,841) (7162)
Consolidated profit/(loss) before 4R & BB AT M 2/
taxation (E#H) 1,479 (2,928)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-ZE-_EF+-_A=+—HILFE

b | — —
4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. Wz R 9 & # (4F)
(Continued)
(b) Segment information (Continued) (b) 2 EBE R (&)

(B) Reconciliations of reportable segment B) HWHKETEH YUz B
revenue, profit or loss, assets, Fins 15/3 BERAM
liabilities and other items (Continued) IE Bz %Ak (&)

2020 2019
—E°%H T NEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE TR ARETT
Assets BE
Total reportable segment assets ARENHEERE 244,495 274,345
Unallocated head office and AoRBEHRRARIEE
corporate assets B
- Cash and bank balances -Be KBETER 26,571 14,881
- Other deposit and - HEpike KER
prepayments A 3,851 184
~ Others - Hft 2,697 3,747
Consolidated total assets RAEEXE 277,614 293,157
Liabilities BfE
Total reportable segment liabilities 7] 3 &5 7 A B B 42 58 148,878 163,052
Unallocated head office and AoBRLIRATEE
corporate liabilities
- Certain amount due to a -EN—ERE
shareholder ZETHRA 11,701 8,664
- Others - =it 5,309 3,792
Consolidated total liabilities RAEBELRE 165,888 175,508
Other items HIEH
Year ended 31 December
BEtZR=t-BLEE
2020 2019
ot a2 3 Z3-NE
Stem cells and Stem cells and
immunocytes immunocytes
Funeral and other Consolidated Funeral and other Consolidated
services businesses ~ Unallocated total  services businesses  Unallocated total
EEmR S8ER
549K SEAR
RERE  REMER FHE it BERE  RAMEE L1 Eh
RMB'000 RMB‘000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARMTR ARETR ARBTR ARETL  ARETR ARETL ARETR
Other items: HEE:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 9% * BERRER
and right-of-use assets FREEENE 9,462 120 846 10,428 6,004 757 6,761
Interest income W g Lﬁl A 208 1 1 210 545 2 547
Finance costs A 2,502 8 " 2,51 2,784 7 2,791
Fair value (loss)/gain on financial assets
designated as FVTPL
(32) - - (2 383 3831
Reversal of impairment losses/ BORAMEATE RECRER
(impairment losses) recognised under ECL IREEERE/
model on trade and other receivables, net 1282 - (16) 1,226 (1,151) (67) ") (1,220)
Income tax expense B 1,875 8 1,538 342 1217 19 1,236
Additions to non-current segment assets REERDHTEE 3,871 879 144 4,894 754 754
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B 7% 5% BT 5T
For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z-_ZT -_FF+_A=+—HILFE

4., REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.
(Continued)

(@)

4o A

W N

Geographic information

The following is an analysis of geographical location
of (i) the Group's revenue from external customers;
and (ii) the Group’s property, plant and equipment,
investment properties, right-of-use assets,
intangible assets, interests in associates, goodwill,
other deposits and deposits for hire of funeral
parlours and funeral services centres (“Specified
Non-Current Assets”).

The geographical location of customers refers to
the location at which the services were provided
or the goods delivered. The geographical locations
of Specified Non-Current Assets are based on the
physical location of the assets under consideration.
In the case of intangible assets, interests in
associates and goodwill, it is based on the location
of the operation to these assets are allocated.

Revenue from

I 2 B 53 BB & 4 (4R)

(o)

ih &2 & R

AT HhEBAEEREIAR
Pzl RiAEE 2w -
BERRZE BEDE 8
BEE EREE NBLEQ
AMER R HEMELR
HERBGERBEBERERLZ
Be(BEHERDEEN 2
BERD

BEPZFEMR TR HE RS
FEREmIME o FEIFR
DEEZREMRIABBEEE
FTRERUVESEE - HAE
WEE REERAMEsE M
BE RNESIEZFEEZ
EIEE I REE -

Specified

external customers

(by customer location)

Non-Current Assets
(by physical location)

RENRERZKE REXRRDEE
(REFREES) (RBERUEE D)
For the year ended As at

31 December

31 December

BE+-H=+-HL=EE R+ZHA=+-H

2020 2019 2020 2019
Zg-®F  -T-AF  CBI®F  TAS
RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000
ABMFRE ARETL  ARBFR  ARET
The PRC G 61,317 50,868 40,829 45,387
Taiwan =y 2,148 3,645 29,250 30,923
Hong Kong £ 4,440 2,676 203 196
Vietnam fiEs 435 421 111 63
68,340 66,610 70,393 76,569

Information about major customers FTEEFEHN

For the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019,
revenue from any single external customer does not
amount to 10% or more of the Group’s revenue.

BE_Z_ZTEFR-_FT—NF
+ZA=+—HIEFE  BEXK
BEME—IIRER 2T
NEBK2E10%E A | o

TEESEEERAR —E-BFFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-ZE-_EF+-_A=+—HILFE
5. OTHER INCOME AND OTHER NET 5. H{hgARHM(&EE) Ik
(LOSS)/GAIN L g ]
2020 2019
—E_EHE —E-NF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT
Interest income on bank deposits WITFR M B A 210 547
Total interest income on financial assets &R ##pk Kst & 2
measured at amortised cost HBEEZF A
WA 4858 210 547
Sundry income MIEBA 287 350
Rental income from investment "EMEZHSRHA
properties 265 266
Government grants T 76 B 712 -
Gains on disposal of property, plant and HEYE - HE N & E
equipment 2 W= - 24
Over-provision written back for cost of il Bl Ak 7% AX 7~ 18 58 # 5
service (note 30) (F$5£30) 399 -
Reversal of impairment loss on 5] #8 T8 1~ ZOIE BB & B
prepayment 784 =
Net exchange (loss)/gain N (F518), W F58 (343) 1
2,314 1,188
6. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION 6. BaBimisFl (E51E)
Profit/(loss) before taxation is arrived at after charging/ &R R (BB &Mk (5
(crediting) the followings: A)THNIBEEEREE:
2020 2019
—EEHE —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETIT
(a) Finance costs (a) MEBEBREX
Interest on lease liabilities HEBGEZAE 2,366 2,527
Interest on bank borrowings MITEEZFE 155 264
Total interest expenses on financial W IR A FERA
liabilities not at FVTPL BmeWKaE
B X A5 2,521 2,791
(b) Staff costs (including directors’ (b) EIRA (BIFEE
emoluments) FEM)
Salaries, wages and other benefits Fe IENEM
12 H 21,332 18,075
Contributions to defined TERAH KR IRET &l
contribution retirement plans 3R 259 2,274
21,591 20,349
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z-_ZT -_FF+_A=+—HILFE

6. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION 6. B&Bisiii® (EiE)(E)
(Continued)
2020 2019
—EEHE —T—hF
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFR ARETTT
(c) Depreciation (c &
Right-of-use assets EREEE 5,076 4,750
Property, plant and equipment ME - BERZE 5,352 2,011
10,428 6,761
(d) Other items d) H#IEE
Auditors’ remuneration % AN BN &
— audit services - BT R 71 767
Cost of inventories FE KA 10,496 7,456
Rental income from investment HEMEHRSRA
properties less direct outgoing of WEERX
RMB nil (2019: RMB nil) ARBZT
(ZE—N%F:
AREZIT) (265) (266)
Lease payments for property, plant LE = A
and equipment not included in the HEMRE
measurement of lease liabilities: (TRPAHESRE
minimum lease payments ZETE) H’IE
HEN KR 257 255
Impairment losses recognised under B oW RIA 2
ECL model on trade receivables, FEHIEEEIE
net BRIF T2
BRI E
& 8% 7 383
(Reversal of impairment losses)/ H b fE W GRIA 2
impairment losses recognised TEEEEEE
under ECL model on other BRIIE R 2
receivables, net 2R
(Rt B &5 18
B#), B E
& 8% (1,233) 837
(1,226) 1,220

TEESEEERAR —E-BFFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-ZE-_EF+-_A=+—HILFE

GEHEBERZMEH

7. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7.

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

2020 2019
ol o= -3 3 —E-NEF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AREBTR ARBFIT
Current tax BN ER R 18 -
PRC Enterprise Income Tax R EMEH 1,883 1,236
PRC withholding tax FRETEIR 1,538
Total Y 3,421 1,236
Notes: B

(a) On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017
(the “Bill") which introduces the two-tiered profits tax
rates regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 March
2018 and was gazetted on the following day. Under the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million
of profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at
8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at
16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying for
the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to
be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made
as the Group has no assessable profits in Hong Kong for
both years.

(b)  The Group is not subject to any taxation under the
jurisdiction of the Cayman Islands, Independent State of
Samoa (“Samoa”) and the British Virgin Islands (“BVI")
for both years.

(© The subsidiaries operating in the PRC are subject to
Enterprise Income Tax rate at 25% (2019: 25%) in
accordance with the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on Enterprises Income Tax (FFEA R EME D%
Frf5%i’%) except that Chongging Xizhou Funeral Service
Company Limited (“"Chongqging Xizhou”), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, is entitled to
a preferential tax rate of 15% (2019: 15%) in accordance
with 7830 K 5 % 1 ¥ Fri5 B8 &, which is applied to
Chongging Xizhou since January 2011 and, provided that
the conditions precedent to entitlement of preferential
tax rate are fulfilled by Chongging Xizhou in each of
subsequent years, the preferential tax rate can be applied
to Chongging Xizhou up to December 2020. For the year
ended 31 December 2020, Chongqing Xizhou is subject
to enterprise income tax rate at 15% (2019: 15%).

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2020
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z-_ZT -_FF+_A=+—HILFE

7. ZEEBRZAFHE)

IN THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(d)

Reconciliation between

Bau Shan Life Science Technology Co., Ltd. (“Bau Shan”),
a direct subsidiary of the Company, Bao De Life Enterprise
Co., Ltd. (“Bau De") and Bu Lao Lin Limited (“BLL"), both
of which are indirect subsidiaries of the Company, are
subject to Taiwan Enterprise Income Tax at 17% (2019:
17%) on taxable profits determined in accordance with
the Income Tax Act and other relevant laws in Taiwan.
No provision for Taiwan Enterprise Income Tax has been
made as Bau Shan has accumulated tax losses brought
forward which exceed the estimated assessable profits for
the year, and Bau De and BLL have no assessable profits
for both years.

Bao Son Life Company Limited (“Bao Son Life”) and Hoan
Loc Viet Duc Hoa Corporation (“HLV Duc Hoa"), indirect
non-wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company, are
subject to Vietnam Corporate Income Tax at 20% (2019:
20%) on taxable profits determined in accordance with
the relevant laws and regulations in Vietnam. No provision
for Vietnam Corporate Income Tax has been made as Bao
Son Life and HLV Duc Hoa have no assessable profits for
both years.

PRC withholding tax of 10% shall be levied on the
dividends declared by the companies established in the
PRC to their foreign investors out of their profits earned
after 1 January 2008.

income tax expense and

accounting profit/(loss) at applicable tax rates:

B 5

(d

(#%)

AARHEBEWBRGE LA DR
BROBRARTEWDRARRM
MEENEAREEETEERD
BERAR(EZDRTAERBRR
AI([REW])ARESEMER X
K H M FRBRER - R ERT T A
17% (ZE—NF 7% BHaE
EMEH - AR EILAFEAR
WRTHREEEBO B ERY
wH BERRTEMRMNWEFE
HEERTESN  SEReED
ERBRELRE -

AREzHEIEZEBRBHRBR
ABELAESETERAATEL
# &) M Hoan Loc Viet Duc Hoa
Corporation ([HLV Duc Hoal) ZE1R
BUEEREERERET 2 ER
Bt i M 320% (ZF — L6 1 20%)
ZHEHBMBECERSH - AR
| & @ K HLV Duc Hoa A i f 4

EMSHIEHERE -

N lC AV NI B S=2 = )
ERE-ZEZNFE-A—HERRN
S M B BB B 210 % B B3 3 485 A
BRI

RERBRRFAEZMBERAXRE
ks (BB 2 Bk

2020 2019
—E-EFE —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFTR ARETF T
Profit/(loss) before taxation BEE RIS (F1E) 1,479 (2,928)
Notional tax on profit/(loss) before taxation, % #H B8 &% 75 pl A= A
calculated at the rates applicable to loss  J&5 18 i F % = 5t & B Al
in the tax jurisdictions concerned W,/ (BE)FTEZ
BERIA (111) (766)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 7~ AJ 4138 B s 2 71 15 5 28 2,107 2,582
Tax effect of non-taxable income BEGRRBAZHETE (787) (1,120)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised < & 3R %t I8 &5 18 < Tt 7%
a8 674 540
PRC withholding tax R TE AR 1,538 -
Actual tax expense ERBIERZ 3,421 1,236
ELREBARAT —F-EFEFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-ZE-_EF+-_A=+—HILFE
8. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 8. EFH
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 1B 7% &/ B(R BHE B 2383(1) & &
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part ENE (ﬁ??r%%ﬂ*ﬁﬂ)fﬁﬁwgﬁ
2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about 2ESR E AT BEZESTHM T
Benefits of Directors) Regulation is as follows:
2020
k- Jent- 3
Salaries and Retirement
allowances Discretionary benefit scheme
Name of directors EEkE Fees (note i) bonuses  contributions Total
FeRER BRE
e GiE3) BB BER:EA @t
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
MiE ARETRT AR%®FTn ARETR ARETRT ARETR
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai AR KA
("Mr. Liu") (3%=]D) 3,549 929 78 - 4,556
Mr. Xu Jianchun HEELE 1,334 - - - 1,334
Non-executive director HHTEE
Dr. Xu Qiang heEt (ii) 53 - - - 53
Independent non-executive B HHTEE
directors
Mr. Chai Chung Wai ERELE 62 - - - 62
Mr. Sun Fei BREE 53 - - - 53
Mr. Wang Jun FHEE 53 - - - 53
5,104 929 78 - 6,111
2019
ZT-NEF
Salaries and Retirement
allowances  Discretionary  benefit scheme
Name of directors EENE Fees (note i) bonuses contributions Total
HoRoEH RIKER
we (P 231) WL HE L B
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
fMiE ARETT AREFTT ARETH AREFT ARETR
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Liu 2% s 2,003 876 76 - 2,955
Mr. Xu Jianchun TRERE 1,323 - - - 1,323
Non-executive director HHTEE
Dr. Xu Qiang HREEt (ii) 53 - - - 53
Independent non-executive EUHHTEE
directors
Mr. Chai Chung Wai ERELE 62 - - - 62
Mr. Sun Fei BREE 53 - - - 53
Mr. Wang Jun FhHEE 53 - - - 53

3,547 876 76 - 4,499
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VESIPAN

e ISR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z-_ZT -_FF+_A=+—HILFE

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 8. =M (%)

Notes: B 5

(i) Salaries, allowance and benefits in kind paid to the (i) TNRTESHETS  RUREY
executive director are generally emoluments paid or ME— AN ENZEAT
payables in respect of those persons’ other services in HRARFREMBRAANEREER
connection with the management of the affairs of the PRt B RSBV BN &
Company and its subsidiaries.

(i) Appointed on 1 March 2019, and redesignated as iy RZE-—NF=ZA—HEZT-m
executive director and the chief executive officer of the RZZEZ—F—A=Z+=ZA#AFAE
Company on 22 January 2021. RARRITESRERNTE ©

No director of the Company waived or agreed to waive RMEFE  AARMEEERENL

any emoluments and no emoluments were paid or ﬁ«%ﬁy%&ﬁ%w ' ZX%UWEHE

payable by the Group to any of the directors as an Wff\{EJ%%fﬁEX%N%M{FZ%W
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as ARRMARERE G 2 ZE - LER
compensation for loss of office for both years. BEBL A (E -

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the directors did not R-ZB-_FFR-_F-NFT-A=

hold any share options under the Company’s share option +—8 ﬁ$ﬂﬁ%ﬁ$@aﬁ%ﬁ%$§

scheme. The details of the share options are disclosed in RTEIETHEARE - BREZFR

note 41. PP RE41HR BR o

= 2

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 9. RE# AL

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, IEgsHFALEEME(ZZE—N

two (2019: two) are directors of the Company whose FMB)ARAESE  HFMRN M_Jf

emoluments are disclosed in note 8. The aggregate of Egﬁﬁf cHBH=B(ZF-NF =
the emoluments of the remaining three (2019: three) B)ERFATZHMBBENT
individuals are as follows:
2020 2019
i Janl- o3 3 —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTT

Salaries, allowances and other benefits ¥ & 28 K H 18 5 1,014 885

Discretionary bonuses )15 TE 4L 33 30

Contributions to retirement benefit R AKAE A 5T 84 5%

scheme 29 15
1,076 930
hELGKEARAT —E-EEFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-ZE-_EF+-_A=+—HILFE
9. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 9.

(Continued)

The emoluments of the three (2019: three) individuals
with the highest emoluments are within the following

manALT(&)

SRCE-NAFZREBFAL
ZHEMAFFIRE

band:
2020 2019
—E-THE —E-NF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A8 A B
Nil to HK$1,000,000 (equivalent to Z£21,000,0007% JT
approximately RMB889,162 (HERNWARE
(2019: RMB881,955)) 889,1627T
(ZE—NF AR®
881,9557L)) 3 3

No emoluments were paid or payable by the Group to
any of the three (2019: three) highest paid individuals as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office for both years.

10. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (EXPENSE)/INCOME

There was no tax effect on each component of the other
comprehensive (expense)/income for both years.

11. LOSS PER SHARE

(@) Basic loss per share
The calculation of basic loss per share is based on
the loss attributable to owners of the Company
of RMB2,974,000 (2019: RMB3,804,000) and the
weighted average number of 742,500,000 ordinary
shares (2019: 742,500,000 ordinary shares) in issue
during the year.

(b) Diluted loss per share
For the year ended 31 December 2020, there was
no dilutive potential ordinary share outstanding.
Therefore, the diluted loss per share is the same as
the basic loss per share.

No adjustment has been made to the basic loss
per share amounts presented for the year ended 31
December 2019 as the impact of the share options
had anti-dilutive effect on the basic loss per share
amounts presented. Therefore, the diluted loss per
share is the same as the basic loss per share.
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1.

MREERE R - A& B & AT A=
L(CE-NE ZR)BSHEALY
R ARBEEL S HBESMASR
RIMAR £ BB 80 > SiEaBER

B o

Hit 2w (X)W

REEEER - &5 5B mE L2
(X)) WEZHRBRE -

BixEHE

(@ BREXEIE
ERERNBEDIREERARA
AEEBEABEBEBEARYE
2,974,000 (ZE—NF: AR
#3,804,0007T) & F N E # 17
3 J% 00 4 15 #(742,500,000
% (—Z — N4 : 742,500,000 %

TBBR)FTE -

(b) ER#EHEEE
HE-Z-_FTF+-A=+—H
IEFE - WEBITEINDEE
BELTEK At SREE
BB Ty bR A KEIE S
ﬁ °

BE-T-NFt-A=t—H
m&r WEWZtk%$%
BRI EELRAERE  ARE
BEzZZEHREN ZBRE
AEBEERAREENE - F
- SR#EEERDEEER
EXNEEMER -
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12.

13.

4o A

e ISR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z-_ZT -_FF+_A=+—HILFE

DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or proposed for both years ended
31 December 2020 and 2019, nor has any dividend been
proposed since the end of the reporting period.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

Employees of the Group’s PRC and Vietnam subsidiaries
are required to participate in a defined contribution
retirement benefit scheme administrated and operated
by the local municipal government. The Group’s PRC and
Vietnam subsidiaries are required to make contributions
to scheme based on certain percentage of the relevant
portion of the payroll of all qualifying employees in
accordance with the relevant regulations in the PRC and
Vietnam respectively. The contributions are charged to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

The Group is also required to participate in defined
contribution retirement benefit schemes administered
and operated by Bureau of Labour Insurance of Taiwan
for employees employed in Taiwan. Under the scheme,
the employers are required to make contributions to
the scheme at 6% of the employees’ relevant income.
Contributions to the schemes vest immediately.

The Group has arranged its Hong Kong employees to
join the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under
the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance.
The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement
plan managed by independent trustees. Under the
MPF Scheme, each of the Group (the employer) and its
employees makes monthly contributions to the scheme
at 5% of the employees’ earning as defined under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The
contributions from each of the employer and employees
are subject to a cap of HK$1,500 per month and
thereafter contributions are voluntary. Contributions to
the plan vest immediately.

The Group has no other material obligation for the
payment of retirement benefits associated with the
retirement benefit schemes beyond the contribution
described above.

12.

13.

iz B

TERNKEZZFBEE-_ZT_TFR_
T-NFT+ZA=t—"HLEMEFE
e BERmEFURTEZZTARK

1B K 48 P 51 51

AEBETELBEHEARZEER
SEMMTTBRNEERELEZTE
BUBRARBAEE - NEEZHE
KB ARZADRRE P E LB
MAEGRD  RE2HMAERERF
MAEEE sz E T B L EHEIEL
R ZFHRFAUGEEaREMD

EEKSERFME

o 5

AEETARRAERAZEES A
HEEETRERAEEREEZTER
HHRKBATE - RIEFTE - B
TAREERBRA Z6%METEE
K - FTEIH RS RE -

AEBEBZRBREBREBEERM 2FE
BRBERBESERBEDFTEF
Pl EMER B EBREEMAR
SIEAE S E ([ESETE]) - &
et AEREETRAKTE - BB
VEAABHE - BIEARESFE - &
S ABESHEGNEETAREE (B
FIFHEEEGAESAZESBRA
Z5% R ZETEIELHE - BE E
BT AHZKLA,5008 LA LR - 50]
TEEREME - AHEIHFANEES -

B Lt RSN - 2 5 [ A 4 AT ] Eo A
B iR AKAE A R8I 2 BRIKAR
MR ZERNEE -

TEESEEERAR —E-BFFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z-_ZF -_TF+_-_A=+—HILFE
14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(@)

14. Y% - BERRE

(a)
Freehold land
and buildings Furniture,
held for own fixtures
use carried at Leasehold and office Motor  Construction
fair value  improvements equipment vehicles in progress Total
=L
TRAFE
SR 2
YL 52 B RER
RigF HERE BOERE RE EEIR @
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARBTT  AREBTn AREFTT ARETT ARETR
Cost or valuation RAHEE
As at 1 January 2019 RZZ-NE-A-A 24,831 16,086 14,846 5,384 607 61,754
Exchange adjustments EHHE 545 88 80 37 - 750
Additions NE - - 180 - 574 754
Disposals HE - - (17) (975) - (992)
Surplus on revaluation EfFRH 397 - - - - 397
Less: Elimination of accumulated B REIEHE
depreciation (466) - - - - (466)
As at 31 December 2019 R=Z-hE+-A=+-A 25,307 16,174 15,089 4,446 1,181 62,197
Representing: i
Cost A - 16,174 15,089 4,446 1181 36,890
Valuation - 2019 EE-Z3-nE 25,307 - - - - 25,307
25,307 16,174 15,089 4,446 1,181 62,197
As at 1 January 2020 WZZ-%§-A-A 25,307 16,174 15,089 4,446 1,181 62,197
Exchange adjustments ERHE (870) (154) (199) (92) @ (1,319)
Additions RE - 2,342 137 1,089 145 3,713
Transfer from construction in BREERIR
progress - 927 - - (927) -
Disposals HE - - (5 - - ()
Surplus on revaluation BRH 279 - - - - 279
Less: Elimination of accumulated o RHEHE
depreciation (200) - - - - (200)
As at 31 December 2020 RZZZFE+=ZA=+-A 24,516 19,289 15,022 5,443 395 64,665
Representing: B
Cost KA - 19,289 15,022 5,443 395 40,149
Valuation - 2020 fhg-—F-%% 24,516 - - - - 24,516
24,516 19,289 15,022 5,443 395 64,665
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

=IAN
Al

A 75 R R T 5

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z-_ZT -_FF+_A=+—HILFE

14. Y% - BE R E (&)

(Continued)
(@) (Continued) (@ (&)
Freehold land
and buildings Furniture,
held for own fixtures
use carried at Leasehold and office Motor  Construction
fair value improvements equipment vehicles  in progress Total
a1
BHATE
L] ¥4
KA E# G KER
ThREF HEXE BAEREB RE EEIR @zt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBTT ARETR ARETn ARETn ARETn ARETx
Accumulated depreciation and B ERAEGR
impairment losses
As at 1 January 2019 R-B-NF-F-A - 12,732 11,270 4924 - 28926
Exchange adjustments EXAE 3 65 44 29 - 141
Charge for the year REER M 463 m 665 m - 2,01
Elimination on disposals HEBHHE - - (1) (821) - (832)
Elimination on revaluation BiERHH (466) - - - - (466)
As at 31 December 2019 RZZ-NETZA=+-R - 13,569 11,968 4,43 - 29,780
As at 1 January 2020 R-Z-F&-f-H - 13,569 11,968 4,243 - 29,780
Exchange adjustments ERHE - (134) (178) (92) - (404)
Charge for the year REE M 200 3,447 1,659 46 - 5,352
Elimination on disposals HERHE - - (5) - - (5)
Elimination on revaluation EHBHHE (200) - - - - (200)
As at 31 December 2020 R-Z-FF+-A=+-A - 16,882 13,444 4,197 - 34,523
Net book value fREF{E
As at 31 December 2020 RZZ-FE+-A=t-H 24,516 2,407 1,578 1,246 395 30,142
As at 31 December 2019 RZE-NE+ZR=1-8 25,307 2,605 3,121 203 1,181 32,417
(b) Had the revalued freehold land and buildings held (b) MEEGHBIEBRAZKAERE
for own use been carried at cost less accumulated T+ 4 RAEF T PARK AR R FH T
depreciation, the carrying amounts would have EFR - REESWOT:
been:
2020 2019
—®=®E —T NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTT
Freehold land and buildings BIEERZ KA ERE
held for own use T MIEF 21,354 22,537
FEEGEEERAT —ZE-ZTEER
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e M HRR M nE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-ZE-_EF+-_A=+—HILFE

14. YM% - BERHREE)

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

(c) Fair value measurement of properties
(i)  Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of
the Group’s properties measured at the end
of the reporting period on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, fair Value
Measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance
of the inputs used in the valuation technique
as follows:

o Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured
using only Level 1 inputs, that is,
unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities
at the measurement date

o Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs, that is, observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and
not using significant unobservable
inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs
for which market data are not available
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B 75 R BT At

PoEET-ASt-BLEE
14. M%E  WMERBREGE

= A H
RA R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # &=

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

() Fair value measurement of properties
(Continued)
(i) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
o Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured
using significant unobservable inputs

ME 2D FETEGE
(i) RFEERGE

s BDEME:UNEE

SEREES PN
SHEATE

Fair value measurements

as at 31 December 2020 categorised into

RZF-FE+-A=+-HZ

AFEHERER
Fair value at
31 December
2020 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
R-B-EfE
+-HR=+-H
AFE  FE-EBR EZER BB
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR
Recurring fair value measurement EEMYAEENE
Freehold land and buildings KAERLHR
- Taiwan BF-RE 23,124 - - 23,124
Buildings - The PRC BF - 1,392 - - 1,392
24,516 - - 24,516
Fair value measurements
as at 31 December 2019 categorised into
fi@_f NE+ZR=+—-Hz
ATHEFENER
Fair value at
31 December
2019 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
RZE-NF
+-A=+-H
ZATE —Ef EER E-ER
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBEFTT ARETRT ARBTRT ARETR
Recurring fair value measurement KEMATESE
Freehold land and buildings KAERLHR
- Taiwan BF-8E 23,824 - - 23,824
Buildings - The PRC BF-mh 1,483 - - 1,483
25,307 - - 25,307
During the years ended 31 December 2020 REzE— EER-E
and 2019, there were no transfers between *jLEJr_)EJ =+—HIt
level 1 and level 2, or transfers into or out FE F-EHRF_E2

of Level 3. The Group's policy is to recognise
transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy
levels as at the end of the reporting period
in which they occur.

B EeEik - REEAS
“EYAEE=ZEEL - K
SEZHERRBERR
AFEERZEHBRER
FHERERER -

TEESEEERAR —E-BFFR
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R EAE ﬁ

4T E
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-ZE-_EF+-_A=+—HILFE
14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% - B ERRE (&)
(Continued)
(©) Fair value measurement of properties (0 MFEZLAFEFTE(E)
(Continued)
(i)  Fair value hierarchy (Continued) () RFEERGE)
All of the Group's freehold land and buildings RZEBEZEFR=FT—N
held for own use were revalued as at 31 F+ZA=+—H A
December 2020 and 2019. The valuations REBFIEBRZKAE
were carried out by APAC Appraisal and T REFHE B -
Consulting Limited (“APAC”), an independent RBEE_Z_ZTFR_F
qualified professional valuers, for the years —h&E+ZA=+—HBL
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, with FE - HEHYE EREE
recent experience in the location and category Y 2 P 0 J2 KA R B 3T HR
of properties being valued. The Group’s HELR 2 BIEERMG
directors have discussed with APAC on the BRNE NHERERER
valuation assumptions and valuation results AAl([BERDET  EE
when the valuation are performed at each B REEREAME
interim and annual reporting date. THER  AEEESRD
B AR mEERRE R
BHER-
Valuation techniques Unobservable input Range
fH B A TUHRRBAE #E
2020 2019
=g-%5  -T0F
Freehold land and buildings - Taiwan Direct comparison approach Property-specific adjusting rate  (30%) to 18%  (5%) to 10%
KAEKBLHRET - 52 HERELBE NEREHEE (30%)%18% (5% Z10%
Buildings - The PRC Direct comparison approach Property-specific adjusting rate  (5%) to 10%  (25%) to 26%
BT -HE ERLEBE NEEEHEE (5%)E10%  (25%)526%
The fair value of properties held for own use RegkhEFIEERZ
located in Taiwan and the PRC is determined WMEZRNFETERER
using direct comparison approach by LLBOEETE - B2 EA#
reference to the market price of comparable LbRMELTE - W2
properties and adjusted for building quality, ERHZBTEE WX
location of the properties and timing of the R HEELARE o ©¥
reference transactions. There has been no NEE - HEBIT I & E
change on the valuation technique during the B -

year.
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R M IE R M R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # &=

(Continued)

() Fair value measurement of properties (c)
(Continued)
(ii) Information about Level 3 fair value
measurements
The movements during the period in
the balances of these Level 3 fair value
measurements are as follows:

TEHE+-A=1—

HIEFE

14. Y% BERBRE(E

ME 2D FETEGE

(i) BEE=[FLFlEE

ZEH
R FaiE=

BAFME

HEEBEDMT

Freehold
land and
buildings - Buildings -

Taiwan The PRC Total
KR ERE
T REF e
-8% - E @t
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARSETT ARETT ARBTR
At 1 January 2019 RZZE—NF—A—H 23,348 1,483 24,831
Depreciation charge for the year AEEHEMX (169) (297) (466)
Exchange adjustments BE 34, 58 2 545 - 545
Surplus on revaluation ERAEHK
— recognised in other comprehensive - R E {2 M & R
income, included in “properties A EERER]
revaluation reserve” 100 297 397
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NF+ZA=+—H 23,824 1,483 25,307
At 1 January 2020 RZZE-_ZTF—HF—H 23,824 1,483 25,307
Depreciation charge for the year REEHMERS (170) (30) (200)
Exchange adjustments fE R AR (870) - (870)
Surplus on revaluation EfHAHK
- recognised in other comprehensive - REMEZEREER
income, included in “properties A EEGFE]
revaluation reserve” 340 (61) 279
At 31 December 2020 R-ZZE-_ZF+-A=+—H 23,124 1,392 24,516
Effect of foreign currency exchange REBRANYEZIIE

differences of properties held for own use are
recognised in other comprehensive income in
“foreign currency translation reserve”.

EAEENTERER
it ] 2 A 2 D K 25 T

R e

TEETEEERAA

“ERCZERR
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/T\

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # ZE—

R EAE ﬂ

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

(d)

The carrying amount of freehold land and buildings
held for own use pledged as security for the
Group’s bank borrowings was RMB20,394,000
(2019: RMB19,932,000) (note 28) as at 31
December 2020.

(d)

“EFT-ASTHLFE
14. W% - WERHREGE)

R-_ZE-_FTF+-_HA=+—8 "
EEMIEARNEERITEER
WRZHIEFERAMKAERLT
WEREFHEBEAARE
20,394,000 (ZF — L F : A

(e) There was no impairment loss on property, plant (e)
and equipment has been provided for both the years

ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

(f) During the vyear,

the Group’s freehold land (f)
amounting to RMB1,620,000 (2019: RMB1,682,000)

R #19,932,0007T) (K 5£28) -

BE_Z_ZFR-_FT-NEFT
—A=t— EIJtﬁWI¢F 1B
BRME  BEREBIRER
BEE -

RAFEE  AEEREERR
BRAZKAXZELIHBAR

was under trust arrangements. #1,620,000C (= — L+ A
R #1,682,0007T) °
15. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 15. EHHEERFR

RMB’000

AR T T

At 31 December 2018 RZZE—N\F+ZA=+—H 2,804

Reclassified to right-of-use assets upon initial REXEREBUBRS
application of HKFRS 16 HEAERBERSEE

FREEE (2,804)

At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019,
1 January 2020 and 31 December 2020

R—ZE—-—NhF—H—B8"
—E-NE+=A=+—-8"
—E-ETF—-A—BXK
—E-FEF+-_HA=+—H -
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16.

4= AR

V5 R R B R

[0 A S -

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z-_ZT -_FF+_A=+—HILFE

16. HEYE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

2020 2019
—ECEE —E-hE
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETR ARBTT
At fair value
At 1 January 6,622 6,505
Effect of foreign currency exchange NESPE N E R &
differences, included in “foreign (FrATE ZfEHE]D
currency translation reserve” (192) 117
Fair value adjustment to profit or loss FTAEZm 2 A FEHBE 101 -
At 31 December W+=ZA=+—H 6,531 6,622
Fair value measurement of investment REWMEZATFEFE

properties
(i)  Fair value hierarchy

()

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s properties measured at the end of the
reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined
in HKFRS 13, Ffair Value Measurement. The level
into which a fair value measurement is classified
is determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the valuation

technique as follows:

o Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs, that is, unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or

liabilities at the measurement date

o Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs, that is, observable inputs
which fail to meet Level 1, and not using
significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable
inputs are inputs for which market data are

not available

RFEER

TREJNRBEPRREEMN
EREGTENAREYENRF
B BRESBTEMBHHREER
R/ FEFEEEN=R
NTFEER - RFEAERR
MERK2ZHERM+ER
MBAENITBERERERN

EELT:

« F-ERE RAE—E
WAEGEATE B
REERaERTBALE
T BB 45 0 R 8 2 TR B

s HFoEMfE:NAE_EH
AEBMIEEZZTAR
RBABFELAFE"
BHR@m ABEZ TSR A
RWE—EBHAME - T7
BRAE/SLETSH
EAE2EZBAE

TEESEEERAR —E-BFFR
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e M HRR M it

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-ZE-_EF+-_A=+—HILFE
16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Contlnued) 16. IHEYXE(E)

Fair value measurement of investment REWMEZAFETZ(E)
properties (continued)
(i)  Fair value hierarchy (continued) () RXFEERGE)
. Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using . FEZEHEUNEZEENT
significant unobservable inputs AERGAESEATE

Fair value measurements
as at 31 December 2020 categorised into

R-ZE-ZBF+-RA=+-82

AREAENER
Fair value at
31 December
2020 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
R-BZ%E
+ZB=+-H

ZATE F-Ef HFZEBR W %ZER
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTRT ARBTRT ARETR

Recurring fair value measurement E¥MAFETE

Investment properties REME
- Taiwan -4E 4,993 - - 4,993
- The PRC - hE 1,538 - - 1,538
6,531 - - 6,531
Fair value measurements
as at 31 December 2019 categorised into
T-NETZA=+-RAZ
ATEHESER

Fair value at

31 December
2019 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

R=F-NE

TZA=+-8
20FE  F-BR  F-ER  3=ES
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AR®TR ARETT ARETR

Recurring fair value measurement KEMNTENE
Investment properties REME

- Taiwan -RE 5,138 - - 5,138
- The PRC -/ 1,484 - - 1,484

6,622 - - 6,622
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z-_ZT -_FF+_A=+—HILFE
16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair

value measurement of investment

properties (continued)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019, there were no transfers between level 1 and
level 2, or transfers into or out of level 3. The
Group's policy is to recognise transfers between
levels of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of
the reporting period in which they occur.

The Group’s investment properties were revalued
as at 31 December 2020 and 2019. The valuations
for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019
were carried out by APAC, an independent qualified
professional valuers with recent experience in the
location and category of property being valued.
The Group’s directors have discussed with APAC
on the valuation assumptions and valuation results
when the valuation is performed at each interim
and annual reporting date.

Information about Level 3 fair value
measurements

Valuation techniques

B #

16. REWME (&)
RAMEZ AT EFEE

(i)

(i)

Unobservable input

FUBRRGAE

RFEERE)
RBE_ZE-_FEFR-_FT—NF
+-A=t—HIEEE F—E
HE_EoBIEEIR - NE
EAE-EXAE-_E#D -
AEBZBERERARREBRRA
FHEE A 2 A 3R B R
&R -

REBZEREMENR_ZT=_F
FRZE-NF+-A=1+—H
BTEM RBE_ZT-_ZF
kKZZE—NF+ZA=+—H1E
FE - HERBYAERGEAE
B KiETT - H¥ Et(AEYD
¥EFE RERAIBHER
BeoAESEPHERFEREA
HETHER AEEEECD
B K mbERRRHELS
%0

BEHEFE=FELFEITEZE
#

Range

#E
2020 2019
—§-%%  -T 0%

Freehold land - Taiwan Direct comparison approach

KARRELE - A ERIBE
Land and buildings = The PRC Direct comparison approach
THRET - HH HERBE

The fair value of investment properties is
determined using direct comparison approach
by reference to the market price of comparable
properties and adjusted for location and size of the

properties.

During the year, the Group's investment properties
amounting to RMB4,993,000 (2019: RMB5,138,000)
were held under trust arrangements.

Property-specific adjusting rate

NEETHEE

Property-specific adjusting rate

N EEALE

(iii)

(25%) to 10%
(25%) £10%
(5%) to 10%

(5%) £10%

(5%) to 10%
(5%) £10%
(25%) to 26%
(25%) £26%

BREWMEZRAFEDNEAER
LWEZETE  D2EAHER
MEZTE URPEZAHE
b B AR AF SR

RER AEEREBEESETL
ERBBEZ2EREDERBARE
4,993,000 (ZE—NF: AR
#5138,0007T) °

TEESEEERAR —E-BFFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z-_ZF -_TF+_-_A=+—HILFE

154

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

17. BILE&E

Computer
Trademark system Total
B ElRSZ st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T ARBT T
Cost 5%
At 1 January 2019 RZZE—NF—HA—H 20 1,783 1,803
Exchange adjustments PE 38 % - 49 49
At 31 December 2019 and R_ZE—NF
1 January 2020 +ZA=+—BK
I = 20 1,832 1,852
Exchange adjustments ME 3 7 B (1 (47) (48)
At 31 December 2020 RZZTEZZTF
+=-A=+—H 19 1,785 1,804
Accumulated amortisation g
At 1 January 2019 W-ZE—hAF—HA—H 18 1,783 1,801
Exchange adjustments A - 49 49
At 31 December 2019 and RZZE—NF
1 January 2020 +ZA=+—H8kK
—ZEFF—H—A 18 1,832 1,850
Exchange adjustments ME 5, o8 & (1 (47) (48)
At 31 December 2020 RZEZTF
+=-—A=+—8 17 1,785 1,802
Carrying value ARE &
At 31 December 2020 et e 3 3
+-H=+—H 2 - 2
At 31 December 2019 RZZ—NEF
+-A=+—H 2 - 2
18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 18. REIEATIMHER
2020 2019
—EZEHE —E-NF
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AREFTR ARET T
Cost of investment in associates: 1% & P& N BB AN 500 500
Share of losses from associates oA /N = (105) (105)
395 395
Less: Impairment losses on B EERRZREEE
associates (395) (395)
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=IAN
=

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &
18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 18.
The following list contains only the particulars of material

associates, all of which are unlisted corporate entities,
whose quoted market price is not available:

1% 5 2= B 7
B 7% R 2% BT 5%
E-F-TFt-A=+-RALEFE
A B 4 0 B0 HE 25 ()

FRAHS AL TARERA L &
T P PN T

:|»$.
g -

Place of Registered Paid up Group's effective
Name incorporation  capital capital interest Principal activities
ZH HAMmIBE HREX BREF SEERER IEEB
2020 2019
—¥-¥F SE-1E

Guangdong Weixiang PRC RMB24,000,000  N/A (note) 30% 30% Research and development
Biotechnology Co., Ltd.* of cell cultivation
("Guangdong Weixiang")

ERRREVHEFRAR HE ARE TiEA 30% 30% HEAREEE
(BERAR] 24,000,0007T (W 5E)

Guangdong Yashan PRC RMB10,000,000  RMB500,000 20% 20% Research and development
Biotechnology Co., Ltd.* of cell cultivation
("Guangdong Yashan")

ERELEDREERAR HE ARE ARE 20% 20% HEARBEEE
(EREWLD 10,000,0007T 500,0007T

a The English translation of the companies’ names is for a NAIEHHREFEHRS2E  HE

reference only. The official name of these companies are FEBRHBPX -
in Chinese.
Note: Registered capital of the Company was not paid-up as at i RZZE_ZFEF+-_A=+—84A2

31 December 2020.

AEMERE KRR -

All of the above associates are accounted for using the N EFRBEE AR AR ERES
equity method in the consolidated financial statements. g mE AR -
Aggregate information of associates that are not WIEEREREE QAR =BER

individually material:

2020 2019
—EBC-EE —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBT T

Aggregate carrying amount of FREMBmERER
individually immaterial associates FEREE QR Z
in the consolidated financial REE®RE
statements

Aggregate amounts of the Group’s AREEEEZSHE

share of those associates’ NSIECE:

- Loss for the year - FRNEE

— Other comprehensive income - B 2mEIA
- Total comprehensive expense - 2HEMZBE

- (105)

- (105)

TEESEEERAR —E-BFFR
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e M HRR M nE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-ZE-_EF+-_A=+—HILFE
19. FINANCIAL ASSETS DESIGNATED AT 19. EEABKAFEEHITANIEREZ

FVTPL BMBEE
2020 2019
—EZEE —E-NEF
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AREFT AR T T
Mutual funds/unit trusts, BEEHS BEMNEE
at fair value b7 @/NE L[]
Established in Taiwan (note (i) B S (M FE3) 33,639 38,336

According to the Mortuary Service Administration
Act (FBZEEIRIEH]) in Taiwan, which was first
promulgated on 17 July 2002 and further amended
on 1 July 2003 and 4 July 2007, the Group has to
deposit 75% of the gross receipt of each funeral
services deed entered into after 31 July 2003 in
financial institutions in Taiwan as trust monies.

The trust monies have been invested, in mutual funds
and unit trusts in Taiwan, which were managed
by fund managers of these financial institutions in
Taiwan. The mutual funds and unit trusts comprise a
basket of financial assets including local and foreign
currencies bank deposits, bonds and equity securities
listed in Taiwan and other foreign stock markets.

Financial assets at FVTPL are presented within
“operating activities” as part of changes in working
capital in the consolidated statement of cash
flows. The Group has obtained a net realised and
unrealised loss of RMB32,000 for the year ended
31 December 2020 (2019: gain of RMB3,831,000).

The financial assets above offer the Group the
opportunity for return through fair value gain. They
have no fixed maturity and coupon rate.

The fair value of the above financial assets is based
on their current bid prices in an active market.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2020

BER-_ZEZ-_F+A++tH
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ANBE 2 T5%1ERETLS °

EAESCRENRBENERE
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Zui-l

W N

R EE T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z-_ZT -_FF+_A=+—HILFE

20. GOODWILL 20. HE
2020 2019
—E-TE —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFTR ARETF T
Cost: DN

At 1 January m—H—8 19,167 18,729
Exchange adjustments PE X 38 & (718) 438
At 31 December n+-—HA=+—H 18,449 19,167

Accumulated impairment losses: 2EHREBE:
At 1 January Hn—HA—H 19,167 18,729
Exchange adjustments PE X 3 & (718) 438
At 31 December w+=Z—A=+—A” 18,449 19,167
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ZA=+—HZEMmE - -

Goodwill was arising from the Group obtained control
of BLL through the acquisition of 100% equity voting
interests in BLL which is engaged in provision of elderly

care and related consultancy services.

The goodwill was fully impaired prior to year ended 31

December 2019.

AEDREAEEZBRBERESHSE
REEEZRBBAZARS NS EZM
Z100% MBI EEARAEZ + B
1SR EMZ PR HI# -

R-ZE-NE+-_A=+—RHILtEE
ZH BEBETFERERE -

TEESEEERAR —E-BFFR
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/T\

R EAE ﬂ

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # ZE—

—EFE+ZA=t-HLFE

21. DEVELOPMENT AND FORMATION 21. Bi#REIRE
COSTS
2020 2019
—E-FF —T-hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREF T
Development and formation costs il 3% I B S K AR
— burial plots under development - ABEFEEN
for sale 4,542 5,292
The development and formation costs represent REMKIKEAERR -—REBS

development costs incurred for burial plots construction

TRFHEZEM 2 FAERA WK

in a cemetery site which will be completed for sale by A S ] I FEME T 2 RIEET
burial plot and are stated at the lower of cost and net B
realisable value.
22. INVENTORIES 22. B8
2020 2019
—EFEE —E-NEF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETR AREFT
Merchandises for resale BEEm 630 359
Completed burial plots BERIEH 916 607
1,546 966
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z-_ZT -_FF+_A=+—HILFE

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

23. B RHMEBWKRIE

2020 2019
—EZEHE —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR TR AREFIT
Trade receivables B S EWE 996 2,716
Less: Allowance for credit loss B E E R EEE
(note 34(a)) (M 5%34(@)) (377) (383)
Trade receivables, net 5 EINIE  F5
(notes (c) and (d)) (Fff 5% (0) K.(d)) 619 2,333
Prepayments, deposits and other TERRIE ke kHEM
receivables, net (note (e)) JE U 3% 18 % 58 (Bt 33 (e)) 44,300 51,445
44,919 53,778
Representing: =t
Current Bl AR 43,820 52,778
Non-current JEBN HA 1,099 1,000
44,919 53,778

Notes:

B 5

(a) All of the current portion of trade and other receivables
are expected to be recovered within one year and
prepayments are expected to be recognised as expense
within one year or in its normal operating cycle.

(b)  The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables
approximate to their fair values.

(c) Trade receivables with the following aging analysis by age
presented based on the invoice date, net of allowance,

@  PAAE S N E it FE YRR # BN A AP
DEHR —FRWRE - fIRMN A
EHN —FARRIER 2 ER 4%
REBFAX -

() R R 2 EEE R
AFEMBE -

© HATARBERRESEWFHIE G
BREABZREZAMNEI ZKREKD

as at the end of the reporting period: #r -
2020 2019
i g 33 —ZT-hEF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETR AREFTT
0 to 180 days 0£180H 619 1,856
181 to 365 days 181£365H - 9
1 year to 2 years 15 E25F - 468
619 2,333

TEEGEBERAR —Z-TFFR
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/T\

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # ZE—

R EAE ﬁ

—EFE+ZA=t-HLFE

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23. BES RHMEWRIE(4E)
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(@

(Continued)
The average credit period for funeral arrangement services
granted to non-funeral services deed customers is 45 days

(2019: 45 days).

There is no credit period granted to customers for the
other service rendered by the Group.

The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

Further details on the Group's credit policy are set out in
note 34(a).

Trade receivables that are not impaired

At the end of the reporting period, the analysis of trade
receivables that were past due but not impaired, based

B aE: (&)

(0)

(%)

RBEBELTHERE @ MEBRERER
HrBPREZFHEEHR45H
(ZE—NHF:458) -

A& B mpt AR 2 R M
EPRLEESY-

REBTERZS
#‘ﬁlﬂﬂ °

EERRFT B R

ERAKEEERRNE—THIE

R FE34() ©

I 5B 2 B 5 kIR

RIBEMR BRBMERREZE
ZEWFIERBRRBE Z 50

on past due date, are as follows: T
2020
i i 3.3

Expected Gross carrying
loss rate amount Loss allowance
EHEEE R4 {E BIE A
% RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt ARBTR ARBTR
Current (not past due) B ER (R4 HR) 5.1% 652 (33)
1-30 days past due # #31-30H 0% - -
31-90 days past due %1 #331-90H 100% 21 (21)
More than 90 days past due i H3i8iB90H 100% 323 (323)
996 (377)

2019
—h&F

Expected Gross carrying
loss rate amount Loss allowance
TEH BB FRE 4 E BEREE
% RMB’000 RMB'000
Btk ARBEF T ARBEF T
Current (not past due) B HR (R 7@ HB) 0% 430 -
1-30 days past due @1 #11-30H 0% 1,401 -
31-90 days past due #1 #931-90H 0% - -
More than 90 days past due % Hi#8#@90H 43.3% 885 (383)
2,716 (383)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z-_ZT -_FF+_A=+—HILFE

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23. BES R HMEWKERIE ()
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(d)

(Continued)

As at 31 December 2020, included in the Group's trade
receivables are debtors with aggregate carrying amount
of RMB Nil (2019: RMB1,903,000) which are past due as
at the reporting date. Out of the past due balances, RMB
Nil (2019: 502,000) has been past due 90 days or more
and is not considered as in default because of the good
repayment records of those customers and continuous
business relationship with the Group. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.

Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables and
other receivables for the years ended 31 December 2020
and 2019 are set out in note 34.

Included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables
are deposits paid for funeral parlours and funeral services
centre and prepaid agency commission for funeral services
of approximately RMB1,000,000 (2019: RMB1,000,000)
and RMB14,599,000 (2019: RMB19,149,000), respectively.

A commission is paid to the agents when the service
deeds amounts were received by the Group. The
commission is fully refundable according to the agency
agreements if the Group are not required to perform the
funeral.

GEE

(d

(#%)
(%)

RZZEZZEF+ZA=+—H K
SEMNESERKFERELERER
SHEAEAREBEZL(ZE—NF:
A R #1,903,00070) R EHEE
BMERERER - NE M HE
FoAREBZST(ZE—NF AR
#502,0007T) B 78 B90 K sk B & I
M WERERABEYN  FAAZRS
BEEFMERCHRIFARAERS
BEEBHER AEELERZS
EHREBEETMERR -

HE_ZT-_TFRZZT—NF+=
A=+—RHIEFEME S EWIE
K H At EMRIE R E T B ZFE
B HEFE34S -

ETATERIRRIA « 1@ I H A FE R
BADRRABEERBEERSEFO
XftzEeREREERE ZEN
REH S ARE,000000L(=
T—hF : AR¥1,000,0007T) & A
R #14,599,0007T (=T — L& : A
R #19,149,0007T) °

7R E2 B WHR BR 75 22 40 SRR B 8 A X
BxMAe MASEEFRHE
BIRTS - HEAMSRERERHS
2HERE -

TEESEEERAR —E-BFFR
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T A

R EAE ﬂ

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-ZE-_EF+-_A=+—HILFE
24. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

(@)

Cash and bank balances comprise:

24, IR RERITHEER

RBe MRITHEBRETE:

2020 2019
—E-FTHE —E-NF

RMB’000 RMB'000
AREBTR ARET T
Cash at bank and on hand RITMFERS 123,674 119,216
Cash and cash equivalents in the AT ER
consolidated statement of financial %?éﬁim%i%?ﬂﬁ']
position and the consolidated RekReFE
statement of cash flows 123,674 119,216

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based
on daily bank deposit rates.

At 31 December 2020, cash at bank and on
hand of the Group of RMB14,906,000 (2019:
RMB17,238,000) were denominated in RMB and
placed with banks in the PRC. Conversion of
RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the
PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group
performed impairment assessment on bank
balances and concluded that the probability of
defaults of the counterparty banks are insignificant
and accordingly, no allowance for credit loss is
provided.

The carrying amounts of the Group's cash at bank
and on hand are denominated in the following
currencies:

ROTRLBRESARTHERK
HEHE 2 I BHETS -

RZE_ZF+-_A=+—8"
AEBZROIRFBERE A
AR #14,906,0007t(ZZ— A
F: A R #17,238,0007T) © KA
ARBELFHRN AR ZE
17 ARBEHIRINEEIRE S
Bl HNEE B B 16 0 I 45 [ - S &
R EEIRRTET -

RZEZEFR-_ZT—NF+=
A=+—H" $El£ﬁﬁ
BETRENG  YRAHF
MITHE O EEN - BTE
REEBEER®B -

AEBZRIAFERE 2K
mERATIEEEE:

2020 2019

—E-EE —E-NF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AR F T

us$ E7T 13,211 636
HK$ BT 14,074 14,999
RMB AR 14,906 17,238
NTD et 81,348 85,954
VND MEE 135 389
123,674 119,216
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z-_ZT -_FF+_A=+—HILFE
24. CASH AND BANK BALANCES 24. IR RIBITHG(E)

(Continued)

(b)

Reconciliation of

financing activities

liabilities

arising from

Lease liabilities

(b) MEFHFESREHK

Bank borrowings

Amount due to a

shareholder

HEAR RITEE Eft-ZREZRE
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
ZB-%E “T-NF ZBI¥E -“T-NF Z¥IBE -"T-)1%
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT ARETR ARETr AREFIRT ARET:
At 1 January wm—A—A8 34,860 38,472 8,389 9,304 - -
Changes from financing MERERLH
cash flows
Repayment of principal ~ EEREEE
of lease liabilities re#n (4,157) (3,612) - - - -
Repayment of bank BERTEE
borrowings - - (1,166) (1.112) - -
Payment of interest F &R (2,366) (2,527) (155) (264) - -
Advances from B-ZRRMBKFE
a shareholder - - - - 1,677 -
Total changes from REReRZHEE
financing cash flows (6,523) (6,139) (1,321) (1,376) 1,677 -
Finance costs BERK 2,366 2,521 155 264 - -
Addition of right-of-use ~ FEFEREEE
assets 1,181 - - - - -
Exchange adjustments  [E X % (14) - (259) 197 1,677 -
At 31 December “+-A=+-H 31,870 34,860 6,964 8,389 1,677 -
TEEGEBERAR —Z-TFFR
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T A

R EAE ﬁ

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HHE=-ZT-_EF+=-_A=+—

25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

HIEFE

25. BES R H b FE M RRIE

2020 2019
el o 3 —NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBEFTT
Trade payables (note (c)) 5 e RE (K ) 2,217 3,025
Other payables and accruals H & < 3R I8 I & F R IE 14,659 14,635
Financial liabilities measured at REEK AT EZ
amortised cost g atsE 16,876 17,660
Notes: B 3
(@) All of the trade and other payables are expected to be @ FBEEZREMEMREEBHRBER

(0 The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables, © HUTARBRESHRESENRIER
based on the invoice date, at the end of the reporting BEHMBZRE DT
period:

2020 2019

g el 3. 3 ZE-NF

RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARBTT ARBF T

0 to 30 days 0£30H 853 929

31 days to 90 days 31HZE90H 260 257

Over 90 days 90H M E 1,104 1,839

2,217 3,025

settled within one year or are repayable on demand.

The carrying amounts of trade and other payables
approximate to their fair values.

—FNBEIRRAN o

by HEESREMENFBZEAELZR

NFEBE -

BEFmANFHIEEHRA30R (=

The average credit period on purchase of goods is 30 days

(2019: 30 days). The Group has financial risk management T—NF :30H) c REBEEHIE 0
polices in place to ensure that all payables are settled f%ﬂl‘ﬁ%ffi[@(% LA R BT B FE T
within the credit timeframe. REEEEHRAEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z-_ZT -_FF+_A=+—HILFE

26. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

26. EHAEE

2020 2019
s Jaml- o3 3 —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREBTR ARETTT
Funeral services deeds (note (@)  BERKEZ 4 (Mt @) 83,304 93,811
Burial plots under development 72 2 i & B8 (BT 7 (b))
and tombstones (note (b)) 2,348 2,423
Stem cells and immunocytes and % 48 M8 & 6 5 40 B N H fb 275
other businesses (note (c)) (B 5E () 2,528 1,866
88,180 98,100
Analysed as: Pl
Current Bl A 87,994 97,901
Non-current JEENHA 186 199
88,180 98,100

The following table shows how much of the revenue
recognised in the current year relates to carried-forward
contract liabilities.

TRINTAFEMERLGEERD
BEAEMNESEE -

Stem cells and

Funeral  Burial plots under  immunocytes
services development and and other
deeds tombstones business
REBRRE
BERBREY FREFELRER ARREGES
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETT ARETT
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-F-F&E+=H
=+—HLEEE
Revenue recognised that was included FAFTERNAGEARER
in the contract liabilities balance B 1
at the beginning of the year 2,024 99 360

TEESEEERAR —E-BFFR
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T A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # ZE—

= S ¥R P

26. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

“EFT-ASTHLFE
26. BHIREE)

Funeral Burial plots under  Stem cells and
services development and immunocytes and
deeds tombstones other business
BAEBKEE
BERBRLY HAEPEHLER ABRREMES
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFR ARETT ARETT
For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-_Z-N&1+=A
:+ ALEFE
Revenue recognised that was included HAEMENABEERER
in the contract liabilities balance ) i 2
at the beginning of the year 2,503 - -
As at 1 January 2020, contract liabilities amounted to RZEZEF—A—H AHNEEAR

RMB98,100,000. Contract liabilities, that are not expected
to be settled within the Group's normal operating cycles
are classified as current and non-current based on the
Group's earliest obligation to transfer goods or services
to the customers.

Notes:

(a

Bau Shan and Sino-Life (Hong Kong) Limited (“Sino-Life
(HK)"), subsidiaries of the Company, sold funeral services
deeds to customers (“Deed Holders”). The funeral services
deeds are prepaid funeral services packages which mainly
comprise particular types of funeral services at the choice
of the customers to be arranged in future. The Deed
Holders can elect to make payment on a lump sum
basis or settle the outstanding amount of the funeral
services deeds by mutual agreed instalments. The Group
determines the pricing of the funeral services deeds by
adding a margin to the estimated costs of delivering
these services, after having taking into account of major
factors including the timing of the instruction of the Deed
Holders. Amounts received from funeral services deeds
sold are recorded as contract liabilities. When the Deed
Holders have defaulted payment for two months and do
not pay back the defaulted amounts after the Group's
not less than 30-day’s demand notice, the funeral services
deeds would be regarded as lapsed and a minimum of
20% of the total sum of the funeral services deeds or
the instalments paid, whichever is lower, will be forfeited
as income. The Deed Holders can request for funeral
services or terminate the funeral services deeds at any
time after the funeral services deeds are sold. Accordingly,
contract liabilities is classified as current liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z-_ZT -_FF+_A=+—HILFE
26. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

According to the Mortuary Service Administration Act (7&
ZEE K P)) in Taiwan, the Group has to deposit 75%
of the gross receipt of each funeral services deed entered
into after 31 July 2003 in financial institutions in Taiwan
as trust monies. As at 31 December 2020, the Group has
invested trust monies in mutual funds and unit trusts in
Taiwan at a carrying amount of RMB33,639,000 (2019:
RMB38,336,000). Details are disclosed in note 19 to the
consolidated financial statements.

It is principally arising from the sales of burial plots and
tombstones under instalment plans and such amount
will be recognised as revenue when the relevant revenue
recognition criteria are met.

Contract liabilities of stem cells and immunocytes and
other business are arising from the receipt in advances
from customers and such amount will be recognised as
revenue when the relevant revenue recognition criteria
are met.

26. SHARKGER)

Bif - (&)

(a)

(%)

BIEREEZEEREN  NEEA
ERR-—_TEE=FtA=1+—B%
F] 3 2 B 10 T 15 BR 7% 32 49 P L BRIk
AMBEE 2T75%1F 50 B8 2 & mhik
BlEBETESE R-IT_ZTF+—
A=+—H FX&EEBELERERFTS
REENEBRES REMETL &
T E A A R#33,639,0007T (=T —
hF: AR¥38,336,0000T) © 715
RERE B SRR M E199 7% o

MR EREE  MZBEDEL
75 & 1 B8 W 25 0 SR M 1 B B R
AW -

ZRBETEEEADHNKEFET
15
e

4B I % G 28 40 B T A T 0
AWBREEERSHEWRRE T
HOB & RIS 2 AR RN TR B 16
P B3R B U 36 -

TEESEEERAR —E-BFFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE T _ZF+_A=+—HIFE
27. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE 27. FEEERTBEEEE
LIABILITIES
Prepaid Leased
leasehold land properties Total
BEHEELH HEWME @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFTL AREFTL AREFTT
Cost B &

At 31 December 2018 RZE-NE+ZA=1+—H
Impact on initial application ¥ &R ER BB B EERF165%

of HKFRS 16 ok 2,804 38,472 1,276
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NF—A—H 2,804 38,472 41,276
Exchange adjustments BE % - 4 4
At 31 December 2019 and RZZE—-AE+ZA=+—-HE

1 January 2020 “E-TF-f—H 2,804 38,476 41,280
Exchange adjustments R - (36) (36)
Additions ‘\/*FE - 1,181 1,181
At 31 December 2020 RZZE-TF+-A=+—H 2,804 39,621 42,425
Accumulated BitinE

depreciation
At 1 January 2019 RZZE-NF-H—H - - -
Charged for the year FENR 67 4,683 4,750
Exchange adjustments R - 2 2
At 31 December 2019 and RZZE—-AE+-A=+—-HEK

1 January 2020 —ZZ-ZTE5-A-H 67 4,685 4,752
Charged for the year EEMNK 67 5,009 5,076
Exchange adjustments ERSH*& - (22) (22)
At 31 December 2020 RZE-EF+-A=+—H 134 9,672 9,806
Carrying value ﬁEEE
At 31 December 2020 —Z-TF+-A=+—H 2,670 29,949 32,619
At 31 December 2019 RZE-n&+-A=+—8 2,737 33,791 36,528

Nature of leasing activities (in the capacity as
lessee)

The Group leases certain properties in the jurisdictions
from which it operates. Under the property leases, the
periodic rent is fixed over the lease term.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z-_ZT -_FF+_A=+—HILFE
27. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE 27. A SERHEAR

LIABILITIES (Continued) (4&)
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE
The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets REEEENEMNE D2 EREER
by class of underlying asset is as follows: ENREFEINOT:
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
ot Jok -3 —E-NEF
+=-A=+—-8 +=ZA=+—H
RMB’'000 RMB'000

AREFR ARBT T

Ownership interests in leasehold  F & 70 & Hi a0 T B %2 4 4
land carried at amortised cost AR 2HE T i

with remaining lease term of: PR

— Between 10 and 50 years - 102504 2,670 2,737
Leased properties carried at THEWMELRITEKART]

depreciated cost, with remaining  BR B & & 887 0.33

terms between 0.33 and 6.42 26 NF(ZE—N%F:

years (2019: 0.5 and 7.42 years) 0.5%7.42%F) 29,949 33,791

32,619 36,528

TEESEEERAR —E-BFFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-ZE-_EF+-_A=+—HILFE
27. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE 27. fHEEERHEAR
LIABILITIES (Continued) (4&)
Right-of-use assets (Continued) ERAEERE (&)
The analysis of expense items in relation to leases FHERERERZHECZRAXZERS
recognised in profit or loss is as follows: GO
2020 2019
- ek 33 —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARBT T

Depreciation charge of right-of- ZEBEEENE S ZEA
use assets by class of underlying  #EEFEFM L :

asset:
— Ownership interests -MHETHFEREER
in leasehold land 67 67
- Leased properties -HEWHE 5,009 4,683
5,076 4,750
Interest on lease liabilities HEBE2FE (M sE6@)
(note 6(a)) 2,366 2,527
Expense relating to short-term HEBRERERAE VB
leases and other leases with lease 3R 2R 1657 B i #2
terms end within 12 months of REAARNESECEEE
the date of initial application of &AM EEE AR
HKFRS 16 257 255
Cash outflow for leases HERESRE
Amounts included in the consolidated statement of cash FAAGERERERZHESEEE
flows for leases comprise the following: ANRIE
2020 2019
—E-EE —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREBFR AR F T
Within operating cash flows KEBEREN (257) (255)
Within financing cash flows MEREREAN (6,523) (6,139)
(6,780) (6,394)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z-_ZT -_FF+_A=+—HILFE
27. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE 27. A SERHEAR

LIABILITIES (Continued) (#8)
Cash outflow for leases (Continued) HERESRE (&)
These amounts relate to the following: ZEoEENTEIBEER:
2020 2019
—EC¥E —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREBTR ARKET T
Lease rental paid ENHERS 6,780 6,394
Details of maturity of lease liabilities are set out below HEBBE I EFBEENT &M
and in note 34(b). FE34(b) °
Lease liabilities HEEE
Future lease payments are due as follows: RAREAEFRZEBHBERAT :
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
- et 33 —TNF
+=ZA=+—H +=-A=+—H
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AREBTR AREFT
Lease liabilities payable: AR TERE X2
HEAR:
Within one year —FKR 4,403 3,796

Within a period of more than one B8 — G181 B M F

year but not more than two

years 4,549 3,990
Within a period of more than two BB M FETHEEAF

years but not more than five

years 14,840 13,749
More than five years iR AT 8,078 13,325
31,870 34,860
Less: Amounts due for settlement & : 1218 B R Z A& 1 &9
with 12 months shown K\ B ARE
under current liabilities aE) (4,403) (3,796)
Amounts due for settlement after 121# A & B H (& 1 #) 318
12 months shown under (B BIERBEE)
non-current liabilities 27,467 31,064

TEESEEERAR —E-BFFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-ZE-_EF+-_A=+—HILFE
28. BANK BORROWINGS 28. SRITEE
2020 2019
e o 3 —NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR¥ET T
Bank borrowings, secured RITHEE  DER
Current liabilities mE) B &
— Portion of term loans from banks -R—FAIHEED
due for repayment within 1 year RITEHERILS 1,138 1,154
Non-current liabilities ERBAE
— Portion of term loans from banks - R—FRIHAEEN
due for repayment after 1 year RITEHERLD 5,826 7,235
Total Mt 6,964 8,389
At 31 December 2020 and 2019, bank borrowings were RZEZEFR T -NF+A=
due for repayment, which are based on the scheduled +—B - RITBEANTIEME
repayment dates as stipulated in the respective loan DIESEBERBEARNMTENTEE
agreements, as follows: BEAHSTE EE:
2020 2019
—EEE —h&F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR¥ET T
Within 1 year —FR 1,138 1,154
After 1 year but within 2 years N—FRERMEA 1,156 1,175
After 2 years but within 5 years RRFRERAEFR 3,582 3,658
After 5 years RAF#E 1,088 2,402
5,826 7,235
6,964 8,389
All of the Group's banking facilities are subject to the FEAREBRITEEEXRBITHRSE
fulfilment of covenants. If the Group were in breach of iR - WAEEERRZH  E8F
the covenants, the drawn down facilities would become MEEBEERERFER -

repayable on demand.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z-_ZT -_FF+_A=+—HILFE

28. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with
these covenants and is up to date with the scheduled
repayments of the term loans. Further details of the
Group’s liquidity risk are set out in note 34(b). As at 31
December 2020, none of the covenants relating to drawn
down facilities had been breached (2019: nil).

All of the bank borrowings are carried at amortised cost.

None of the bank borrowings due for repayment after one
year contain a repayment on demand clause and hence
these balances are not expected to be settled within one
year and are classified as a non-current liability.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the effective interest
rates of the bank borrowings were as follows:

28. RITIEE (&)

REBTHERRERETZ

MR BTMNBBEETHENR - K
EERHESRRNE - FTHBHR
AHIFE340) c RZZE_FBEE+_F=
+T—H AEEVEEREESAE
BEENRH(ZE—NF &\

PRERITIE B HEHAATIE -
R—FRINNEENRTEEME
BEREBREEGT At Z54E
HREBHR -—FAKRES AR
RIERBDAE -

RZE_ZEFR_FT-NF+-_A=
_El,

+—B - RATEEZRERENT
2020 2019
—®-®E T A%

Variable-rate F B =

1.37%-2.29% 1.62%-2.29%

Bank borrowings of RMB4,846,000 (2019:
RMB5,805,000) denominated in NTD were secured by the
freehold land and buildings in Taiwan with total carrying
amount of RMB20,394,000 (2019: RMB19,932,000) (note
14(d)). The remaining bank borrowings of RMB2,118,000
(2019: RMB2,584,000) (note 35(c)(v)) is guaranteed by Mr.
Liu.

IRITEE ARY4,846,000T(ZF —
NF AR #¥5,805,0007T) h AT &
BEEtE - WAR BB Z KA ERE T i
NEFREEE R ARM20,394,000
T(ZZ—N%F : AR¥19,932,0007T)
TEHIR (M 5E14d) » B TIRITEE
R#2,118,000C (ZE—NF : AR
2,584,0007T) (B 7 35(c)(v)) A1 2 %t &£
BER -

TEESEEERAR —E-BFFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z-_ZF -_TF+_-_A=+—HILFE

EEMBRARAZAEB

=
AR

29.

INCOME TAX

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a)

(b)

IN THE CONSOLIDATED 29.

Current taxation in the consolidated statement of (@) #HmeMBMRAKAZHTIA
financial position represents: 5
2020 2019
—¥-TE —ZET-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBFR AR T T
At 1 January n—H—H 4,002 4,258
Provision for the year FEEE
- PRC Enterprise Income Tax - HPEPEMEH
(note 7) (M 5£7) 1,883 1,236
- PRC withholding tax (note 7) - REFE
(B 5E7) 1,538 -
Income tax paid during the year FANENFAER (4,519) (1,492)
Exchange adjustments E H 663 -
At 31 December W+=—A=+—H 3,567 4,002
Deferred tax liabilities not recognised () RELBRELEHEEE

Under the Enterprise Income Tax Law of PRC,
withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared
in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries
from January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has
not been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of the tax that would be
payable on the distribution of the retained profits
of RMB12,260,000 (2019: RMB50,323,000) as the
Company controls the dividend policy of these
subsidiaries and it has been determined that it is
probable that these profits will not be distributed
in the foreseeable future.

In Taiwan, under Article 42 of the Income Tax Act
of Republic of China, the net dividend or net surplus
earning received by a profit-seeking enterprise
organised as a company from its investment in
another domestic profit-seeking enterprise shall not
be included in its taxable income. Such exemption
is not applicable for investment in foreign profit-
seeking enterprise, which is subject to income tax
at the rate of 17%.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z-_ZT -_FF+_A=+—HILFE

29. HEMBRARPZAESB

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

(b) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

(Continued)

As one of the Group's subsidiaries, being a foreign
profit-seeking enterprise, is directly and wholly
owned by a subsidiary incorporated in Taiwan,
a rate of 17% is applicable to the calculation
of the income tax. Deferred taxation has not
been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of the tax that would be
payable on the distribution of the retained profits
of RMB22,230,000 (2019: RMB17,769,000) as
the Company controls the dividend policy of this
subsidiary and it has been determined that it is
probable that these profits will not be distributed
in the foreseeable future.

In Taiwan, under Article 4 of Standards of
Withholding Rates for Various Incomes issued by
Ministry of Finance of Republic of China, the net
dividends or profit distributed to a profit seeking
enterprise having its head office outside the
territory of the Republic of China from investment
in an enterprise within the territory of the Republic
of China shall be withheld at a rate of 20% of the
amount distributed.

As one of the Group's subsidiaries operates within
the territory of Taiwan having its head office
outside the territory of Taiwan, a rate of 20% is
applicable to the calculation of this withholding
tax. Deferred taxation has not been provided
for in the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 as
the subsidiary has no retained profit that can be
distributed.

(%)

(b)

ABRBERELEH EEE
(#&)

RSB H+A—RHKHEAF
BINEEFITE - YH—BEE
BEFMA OB AR EE
2ERE HEMGSHER
MEE17% - ARADEIEHZ
WMEBARZREKE  WEH#
BTz Sm M N RATRE R Al &R
R WA R R ER A B IS TR
LD IRIR B G AT
ZIEIERLIE A R#22,230,0007T
—ZE—h%F : AR¥17,769,000
TO)E B o

5 REPERBEMBE
BHEOEBAENERFES
A NERFERNTFERE
BN EREEERER P E
RERANDENESHRE
s NF R - AR T 0K R
BEHI20% 1E TR -

ARAEEH+A—RHKHEAF
EEBENEXRBRAREER
REEEN  sTEREBENH
RE AR ERE20% > - AREZE
ZEZEFERZF-NFFTZA
—+—HLEFE WBARY
ma o IRMEREREF - B
AR AVBRERLBELER IR
EH B -

TEESEEERAR —E-BFFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-—ZT-_EF+-A=

29. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has
unused tax losses of RMB25,603,000 (2019:
RMB27,966,000) available for offset against
future profits. Other than tax losses amounting
to RMB16,604,000 (2019: RMB19,103,000) that
would be expiring from 5 years to 10 years
pursuant to the relevant rules and regulations in
the PRC, Vietnam and Taiwan, the remainder at
the end of the reporting period can be carried
forward indefinitely. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of the tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams.

30. PROVISIONS

T—BLEFE

29. ZEMBRARNZHAEH
(%)

AREBERAELEBBEEE
RZEZE2F+-_A=+—H "
AEEZADHBEBBAR
#25,603,0007C (=& — AL F :
A R #27,966,0007T) 7] A3 LA £
HARIOEF o BRIBIEFE -
kA ER BRI &R TS
REE10F R HMHRBEEBAR
#16,604,000C(Z T — hL &F -
A E #19,103,0007T) b + A iR
EHRZF BRI D T ER S
o AR AREF Z KR
TE R - Bt R LR TE B R e
REERBEEE -

30. &%

(c)

2020 2019
—ECEE —NEF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARE TR AR T T
Provision for future costs of REUMBEERBZ
delivering funeral services KB A
At 1 January Rn—HA—H 3,044 2,975
Over-provision written back for cost of  fifl [B AR %5 Ak 7N iR 58 % #5
service (note 5) (Bt 3E5) (399) -
Exchange adjustments P W% (95) 69
At 31 December W+—A=+—8H 2,550 3,044

The Group determines the pricing of the funeral services
deeds by adding a margin to the estimated cost of
delivering funeral services in future, after taking into
account of major factors including the timing of the
instruction of the Deed Holders.

This estimate is based on the sub-contracting fee payable
to the sub-contractor for each funeral service deed
performed, the current market conditions and the price
of deeds. Management reassesses these estimates at the
end of each reporting period to estimate if the contract
liabilities for funeral service deeds can cover the estimated
future costs of delivering funeral services and determine
the need of making a provision in the consolidated
financial statements.
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31.

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # =

AN

W N

B 75 R BT At

—ERCEFF A=+ —HILFE

SHARE CAPITAL 31. lx&
No. of shares Amount
Bz & H &8
RMB'000
AREFT
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each SREEB T 2EBR
At 1 January 2019, 31 December RZE—NF—H—8"
2019, 1 January 2020 and —h&E+=H
31 December 2020 =+—RB ZZEZF
—A—RAR=ZZE=-ZTF
+-—A=+—8H 10,000,000,000 881,541
Ordinary shares issued and EETRYELER:
fully paid:
At 1 January 2019, 31 December RZE—NF—H—8 "
2019, 1 January 2020 and —n¢+— H
31 December 2020 —+ B ZZ2-FF
—A—BRkZZE=F
+ZA=+—H 742,500,000 69,218

The owners of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled

to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All

ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s

residual assets.

BRBREEABREBTEE K Z K
%&ﬁ%#ﬁi/&ﬂﬁﬁiﬁﬁtﬁfﬂx
B—RETRR -FIAE

B AR
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32. RESERVES

TE+-A=+—BILEE
32. %

(@) The reconciliation between the opening and
closing balances of each component of the
Group's consolidated equity is set out in the

(a)

AEERARDZEBDFA
EERES ﬁ%Z%ﬂE%ﬁb”\ﬁéT&
DEBRK - ARFFHEEIED

consolidated statement of changes in equity. ZEVRERZBHFBHT
Details of the changes in the Company’'s LU
individual components of reserves between the
beginning and the end of the year are set out
below:
Foreign
currency  Share-based
Share translation compensation Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
W 1 B 2 B
BRipitE ERfE 2 ZHEEHRE Ritb5E @zt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETR AEBTT ARBTT ARETR
As at 1 January 2019 —2-1%-F-H 220,633 (16,087) 7,027 (187,436) 24,137
Profit for the year KER R - - - 1,600 1,600
Exchange differences on BENBRRELEL
translation of financial ERZEER
statements - 2,429 - - 2,429
Total comprehensive income A FE 2 H N & B 5
for the year - 2,429 - 1,600 4,029
As at 31 December 2019 RZZE-AFE+ZA=+—H 220,633 (13,658) 7,027 (185,836) 28,166
As at 1 January 2020 RZZEZFF-A—H 220,633 (13,658) 7,027 (185,836) 28,166
Loss for the year AEEEAR - - - (5,151) (5,151)
Exchange differences on BENBRRELEL
translation of financial ERER
statements - (5.187) - - (5.187)
Total comprehensive expense A5 E2EH X A%
for the year - (5.187) - (5,151) (10,338)
Lapse of share options BlRExH - - (7,027) 7,027 -
As at 31 December 2020 RZZZZFT-A=1-H 220,633 (18,845) - (183,960) 17,828

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2020
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # =

32. RESERVES (Continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves

()

(i)

(iii)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands, the funds in the Company’s share
premium account are distributable to the
shareholders provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend is
proposed to be distributed, the Company will
be in a position to pay off its debts as they
fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Merger reserve

Merger reserve arose from the business
combination under common control in
relation to the acquisition of Bau Shan during
the group reorganisation in 2007. The merger
reserve of the Group represents the difference
between aggregate net asset value of Bau
Shan acquired and the consideration paid for
the acquisition of Bau Shan pursuant to the
group reorganisation.

Statutory reserve

According to the applicable laws and
regulations in Taiwan, the Group’s Taiwan
subsidiaries are required to transfer 10% of
their net profits after taxation, as determined
under the relevant accounting principles and
financial regulations applicable to companies
established in Taiwan, to a non-distributable
reserve fund until the reserve balance reaches
the registered capital of the respective
enterprises. The transfer to this reserve must
be made before the distribution of a dividend
to owners but after offset the previous years’
losses, if any.

B 75 R BT At

—ERCEFF A=+ —HILFE

32. B (&)
(b) #EMERAR

(i)

(i)

(iii)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-ZE-_EF+-_A=+—HILFE

32. RESERVES (Continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves
(Continued)
(iv) Statutory surplus reserve

Pursuant to applicable PRC regulations,
PRC subsidiaries in the Group are required
to appropriate at least 10% of their profit
after tax, as determined under the relevant
accounting principles and financial regulations
applicable to companies established in the
PRC, to a non-distributable reserve fund until
such reserve reaches 50% of the registered
capital of the respective enterprises. The
transfer to this reserve must be made before
the distribution of dividends to owners. The
non-distributable reserve fund can be used
to offset the previous years' losses, if any,
expand the existing operations or convert into
additional capital of the subsidiaries, provided
that the balance after such issue is not less
than 25% of its registered capital. The non-
distributable reserve fund is non-distributable
other than upon liquidation.

According to the Vietnam Enterprise Law,
Vietnam subsidiaries in the Group can set
their reserve fund according to the respective
Charter. Under the Charter of the Vietnam
subsidiaries, they are required to transfer
5% to 15% of profit after tax to set up the
reserve fund until such reserve reaches 10%
of the registered capital of the respective
enterprises.
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32. B (&)

32. RESERVES (Continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of

reserves

(Continued)

(v)

(vi)

Properties revaluation reserve

The properties revaluation reserve has been
set up and is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policies adopted for freehold
land and buildings held for own use in note
2(g) and is not distributable.

Foreign currency translation reserve
The foreign currency translation reserve
comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial
statements of non-PRC operations. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 2(t).

(vii) Share-based compensation reserve

The share-based compensation reserve
comprises the fair value of the actual or
estimated number of unexercised share
options granted to eligible participants of
the Group recognised in accordance with
accounting policy adopted for share-based
payments in note 2(p).

(b) REBEHEERMZEGE)

()

(vi)

(vii)

TEETEEERAA

WEEL
ARBERIIMEEM R
- WARIE R E2(9) T
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-ZE-_EF+-_A=+—HILFE
32. RESERVES (Continued)

(o)

Capital Management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safequard the Group’'s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for owners and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends
paid to owners, return capital to owners, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with other companies in the industry,
the Group monitors capital on the basis of the
gearing ratio which is total liabilities divided by total
assets. The Group aims to maintain the gearing ratio
at a reasonable level. The gearing ratios as at 31
December 2020 and 2019 were as follows:

(9

32. ﬁgﬁ(nﬁ

EXrEHE
AEEEREAZETREARR
MRNEEEAFELE 1
ﬁ’ﬁ%f‘gﬁ?ﬁtﬁ)\’%X@#&&ﬁ
H Al #E 25 B85 & & KA a8
HEFSIR IR B A AE B LAR A ﬁzli
DN

BERNIABRBERERE K&
lAﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁAiﬁzw
R -RBEATHEREA %
THBROKBEEENRDE
1A o

MEMRAEAR K KAEH
NEERBLERETAEALH
B é%%ﬁtbf&ﬁwf
B?Lxﬁ@éfé cAKBEEHE
BEEEBLX Ehb%éi%;k
FoRZBEEFR-_FTNF
t-RA=t—-BZEEE®EL
e

2020 2019

—¥C-TE —ZET-NF

RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARETR AR T T

Total liabilities BaEE 165,888 175,508

Total assets BEE 277,614 293,157

Gearing ratio BEEAGBLLE 59.75% 59.87%
There were no changes in the Group’s approach to HAAFELER  AEEHE
capital management compared with previous years. REBZARNLEEE - AR
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are A sk H A ] B /& A /) 39 =2 b

subject to externally imposed capital requirements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z-_ZT -_FF+_A=+—HILFE

INSTRUMENTS BY 33. HERESoZHBEITA

CATEGORIES
2020 2019
—E-EHE —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFTR ARETTT
Financial assets BBEE
Financial assets designated at FVTPL EBERERAFEFAER
2B EE 33,639 38,336
Financial assets at amortised cost BN AT E 2 M
BE 127,833 126,064
Financial liabilities MBasE
Amortised cost 9 R AR 71,591 70,362

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

The Group has exposure to the credit risk, liquidity risk
and market risk arising from financial instruments. The
Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risk are described below.

(a)

Credit Risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty
will default on its contractual obligations resulting
in a financial loss to the Group. The Group's credit
risk is primarily attributable to trade receivable,
other receivables and cash and cash equivalents.
Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposure to this credit risk is monitored on an
ongoing basis

Cash and cash equivalents
The Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from
cash and cash equivalents is limited because the
counterparties are banks and financial institutions
with sound credit rating, for which the Group
considers to have low credit risk.

34. MBEBEERMBIAZ

AFAE
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 34. HMEEREERMEIAEZ
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Credit Risk (Continued)

Trade receivables

In respect of trade receivables, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of
making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to
the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. In
respect of trade receivables from funeral services,
the Group generally offer credit period of 45 days
to customers, whereas no credit period is granted to
customers for other services rendered by the Group.
Normally, the Group does not hold any collateral
over trade receivables. At 31 December 2020, the
ECLs for trade receivable were measured and loss
allowance of RMB377,000 was provided (2019:
RMB383,000).

The Group has no significant concentration of credit
risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk without
taking account of any collateral held is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the
consolidated statement of financial position after
deducting any impairment allowance. The Group
does not provide any guarantees which would
expose the Group to credit risk.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
which is calculated using a provision matrix. As
the Group’s historical credit loss experience does
not indicate significantly different loss patterns for
different customer segments, the loss allowance
based on past due status is not further distinguished
between the Group’s different customer bases.

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss
experience over the past one year. These rates are
adjusted to reflect differences between economic
conditions during the period over which the historic
data has been collected, current conditions and
the Group’s view of economic conditions over the
expected lives of the receivables.
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 34.

4o A

W N

AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Credit Risk (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)
Movement in the loss allowance account in respect

AFEE)

(a)

=&’k (&)
EZEWIE (&)
RAFEE EHREREBEZE

of trade receivables during the year is as follows: BREBEREEHNOT:
2020 2019
—E-%H —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBF T
Balance at 1 January R—B—Bz#&#% 383 -
Impairment losses recognised — PAZRFE R ZIF(E EE
during the year 119 383
Reversal of impairment losses W[ #E R 2 W (E &5 18
recognised during the year # [ (112) -
7 383
Exchange adjustments ME 5, 38 B (13) -
Balance at 31 December RTZA=+—HBZ#&&% 377 383
Other receivables Hth FEW 5 E

In respect of other receivables due from third
parties, the Group reviews the exposures and
manages them based on the need of operation.

At each reporting date, the Group measures the
ECLs of other receivables in following ways:

If, at the reporting date, the credit risk on other
receivable has not increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Group measures the loss
allowance for other receivable at an amount equal
to 12m ECL. The Group measures the loss allowance
for other receivables at an amount equal to the
lifetime ECL if the credit risk on other receivable
has increased significantly since initial recognition.

BB I = 5 2 A O
ME AEEERELIRE
FE ML ETEE -

RERSEH AEEZ T
A EE MR IE 2 A
EEEBE:

RERE B fin E b & URIR
ZEER BB TR ARIL
ARIE LT REBZERR
REABMEEBRZ & EA
BHMEYRAZ BEEE -
fie L A & WK TR 2 {5 B R B B
VEERAREKRE LT &
SEZRERNEMERERES
Bre®WstEEMEERFTIAZ
BEEE -
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MR EERMBIAZ

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 34.

AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

AFEE)

Credit Risk (Continued) (@) FERMR(E)
Other receivables (Continued) H 1t g 5% 8 (&)
Movement in the loss allowance account in respect RAEE - At ERHIE ZE
of other receivables during the year is as follows: BREREEREEHNT:
2020 2019
—EB-FF —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR¥ET T
Balance at 1 January R—A—Hz&% 3,993 3,156
Impairment losses recognised — RAARFE R Z FE KB
during the year 174 837
Reversal of impairment losses RN & #E R 2 3 (B 5 18
recognised during the year 5] % (1,407) -
(1,233) 837
Exchange adjustments b 5 3 % (9 -
Balance at 31 December R+—A=+—B2&% 2,751 3,993
Liquidity risk (b) RBEZRAR

Individual operating entities within the Group
are responsible for their own cash management,
including the short-term investment of cash
surpluses and the raising of loans to cover expected
cash demands, subject to approval by the parent
company'’s board. The Group’s policy is to regularly
monitor its liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient amount of cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions
to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.

The following tables set out the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of the reporting
period of the Group’s non-derivative financial
liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if
floating, based on current rates at the end of the
reporting period) and the earliest date the Group
is required to pay.
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 34. fEEREERMEIAEZ
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL AFEE)
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) REBESREMK(E)
The maturity analysis for the bank borrowings is RITEENINEBHBE ST TIETE
prepared based on the scheduled repayment dates. EHREEARER -
2020
contractual undiscounted cash flow
-t -3
BHRERRERE
More than ~ More than Total
1 year but 2 years but contractual
Within  less than ~ less than  More than undiscounted  Carrying
On demand 1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years cash flow amount
Bl-5 REME CREY

BEX  R-Fh BOREE BORIF RBIF RERESE REE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARRTR ARETX

Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ 3E$74 B &

Trade and other payables ZHREMERTEA 16,876 - - - - 16,876 16,876
Amounts due to directors ERESZHE 3,660 - - - - 3,660 3,660
Amount due to a shareholder EN-—ZRRZHE 10,544 - 1,677 - - 12,221 12,221
Bank borrowings ES L - 1,239 1,239 3,718 1,09 7292 6,964
Lease liabiities HERR - 6,482 6304 18119 8,500 39405 31870
31,080 7121 9,220 21,837 9,596 79,454 71,591
2019
contractual undiscounted cash flow
“E-hE
ANAMERETE

More than ~ More than Total

1 year but 2 years but contractual
Within less than less than ~ More than  undiscounted Carrying
On demand 1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years cash flow amount

BE-F BBERF CLESE

BEL R-FR ESRME BIREE  BELF REREAE BEE
RMB'OOO  RMB'00  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARETR ARETT ARETRT ARETT ARETR ARETR

Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ JEATEHBERE

Trade and other payables EHREMERRE 17,660 - - - - 17,660 17,660
Amounts due to directors ERESZZHE 789 - - - - 789 789
Amount due to a shareholder EN-2RE25E 8,664 - - - - 8,664 8,664
Bank borrowings RITEE - 1,297 1,297 3,891 2,445 8930 8,389
Lease liabilties REAR - 6,071 6,000 18,000 14,500 44,571 34,860

27113 7,368 7297 21,891 16,945 80,614 70362
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 34. HMEEREERMEIAEZ
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

AFEE)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (by RBE SRR (E)
The amounts included above for variable interest BB RANRERRE T
rate instruments for non-derivative financial ZIEET R EAE - Eat gt IELT
liabilities are subject to change if changes in variable SHBBRETEEIASAZSE
interest rates differ from those estimates of interest HEgHRE -
rates determined at the end of the reporting period.
(c) Interest rate risk (© F=m=b
The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk AREBEBEAZBNFEEITHE
in relation to bank borrowings at variable rates. The BEZzHReREMNERAR KE
Group is also exposed to fair value interest rate risk @,,J%x BREEHEHEAE
in relation to fixed-rate lease liabilities. The Group NEEFERR - NEB W HE
did not use derivative financial instruments to hedge FRTAMBIT AN hEE
its debt obligations. BEEMT -
Bank balances are carried at low interest rates and WITHEMRIZENEFTE - Bk
the interest income thereon is not significant. EENFBRALTERK -
(i)  The following table details the interest rate () TRHFHAEERHREH
profile of the Group’s borrowings at the end REBEFNENER -
of the reporting period.
2020 2019
ol Jond- o35 “E-NE
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
RMB’000 (%) RMB'000 (%)
ARETRT BBRHE%) ARETT BB Z(%)
Fixed-rate B
Lease liabilities HEAR 31,870 | 6.87%-13.80% 34,860 | 3.88%-6.87%
Variable-rate BR
Bank borrowings RITEE 6,964 | 1.37%-2.29% 8389 | 162%-2.29%
(i) Sensitivity analysis (i) BUEE D

The directors of the Company performed

5 2
KRB EEUBE LA
=

sensitivity analysis with estimation of a _Eé 10018 2 R 2 {5 51
general increase/decrease of 100 basis points. TTHRE S
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)
(ii) Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

At 31 December 2020, it is estimated that a
general increase/decrease of 100 basis points
in interest rates for variable-rate borrowings,
with all other variables held constant,
would have increased/decreased the Group's
loss after tax and accumulated losses by
approximately RMB58,000 (2019: RMB70,000).
Other components of consolidated equity
would not change in response to the general
increase/decrease in interest rates.

The sensitivity analyses above have been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates at the end of the reporting period. The
analysis is prepared assuming the financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the
reporting period were outstanding for the
whole year. A 100 basis points (2019: 100
basis points) increase or decrease is used
when reporting interest rate risk internally to
key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates. The analysis
is performed on the same basis for 2019.

(d) Currency risk
The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy. However, the directors of
the Company monitor the Group’s foreign currency
exposures and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposures should the need arises.

(i)  Exposure to currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk
primarily through bank deposit denominated
in a foreign currency that is a currency other
than the functional currency of the operations
to which they relate. The currencies giving
rise to this risk are US$, RMB and HKS$.
The Group’s policy is to ensure that its net
exposure is kept to an acceptable level by
buying or selling foreign currencies at spot
values when necessary to address short-term
imbalances.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-ZE-_EF+-_A=+—HILFE
34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 34. MBEGEERMBEIAZ
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL AFEE)
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(d) Currency risk (Continued) (d) ErE b (E)
(i)  Exposure to currency risk (Continued) () HE#HzEEERE
The following table details the Group's TR ANEBE R RS H
exposure at the end of the reporting period REAEBEERBIEES
to currency risk arising from recognised assets NN B EZERR
or liabilities denominated in a currency other EERBBEMEACER
than the functional currency of the entity to Bk - gt2EWNE - Bk
which they relate. For presentation purposes, SEIUAREIR  H
the amounts of the exposure are shown in T N 458 2 BIHRBE %
RMB, translated using the spot rate at the BME -

year end date.

Exposure to foreign currencies
(expressed in RMB)
FiE# 2z S E R I (AR FIR)

2020 2019
“ECEE ZE-NE
uss RMB Uss$ RMB
£t ARE ET ARE
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
T Fr T T
Cash and cash equivalents BekReSED 1,459 246 299 449
Net exposure arising from recognised BREEREE
assets and liabilities FELZBRFR 1,459 246 299 449

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2020
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z-_ZT -_FF+_A=+—HILFE

34 MBEMERRMBIRLZ

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s loss
after taxation (and accumulated losses) that
would arise if foreign exchange rates to
which the Group has significant exposure
at the end of the reporting period had
changed at that date, assuming all other risk
variables remained constant. In this respect,
it is assumed that the pegged rate between
the HK$ and the US$ would be materially
unaffected by any changes in movement in
value of the US$ against other currencies.

AFEER)
(d) &#E K (HE)
(ii) &R E 54T
TR A R A

SEEEATEZEEXR
ZAHIHIRECE - ER
R A E A R B B B
TEZBERT  AEEZ
iR EE(RRAER)
BEELZERES - 5t
HmE - 2eRRETHE
TR RERG TG EE
TREMEEZEMNEE
EPIMIBNERTE -

2020 2019
- ot 3.3 —Z-NE

Increase/ Decrease/ Decrease/ Increase/ Decrease/ Decrease/

(decrease) (increase)  (increase) in (decrease) (increase) (increase) in

in foreign  in loss after accumulated in foreign in loss after  accumulated

exchange rates taxation losses exchange rates taxation losses

Ex KREESE At BRE Ex BEESSE By

L#/(TH) @Y /(M) Ed/Em E£7/(F%) BL/08m &b/ (Em

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETRT ARETR ARBTT ARBTT

Us$ e 6.7% 81 81 13% 3 3
(6.7%) (81) (81) (1.3%) ?3) 3)
TELEGEEERAT —E-TEERH

191



192

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M HRR M nE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-ZE-_EF+-_A=+—HILFE

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 34. MERBREERABEIEZ
AFEEE)

AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)

(i)  Sensitivity analysis (Continued)
Results of the analysis as presented in the
above table represent an aggregation of the
instantaneous effects on each of the group
entities’ loss after tax and equity measured
in the respective functional currencies,
translated into RMB at the exchange rate
ruling at the end of the reporting period for
presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined
assuming that the change in foreign exchange
rates had been applied to re-measure these
financial instruments held by the Group which
expose the Group to foreign currency risk at
the end of the reporting period. The analysis
is performed on the same basis for 2019.

(e) Equity price
The Group is exposed to equity price changes
arising from financial assets designated at FVTPL.

The Group’s mutual funds and unit trusts are
established in Taiwan, which principal assets consist
of local and foreign currencies bank deposits, bonds
and equity securities listed in Taiwan and other
foreign stock markets.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2020
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z-_ZT -_FF+_A=+—HILFE

34 MBEMERRMBIRLZ

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(e)

Equity price (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risks at the
end of the reporting period.

If the prices of the financial assets designated
at FVTPL had been 10% (2019: 10%) lower/
higher, loss for the year and accumulated loss
would increase/decrease by RMB1,132,000 (2019:
RMB684,000) for the Group as a result of the
changes in fair value of financial assets designated
at FVTPL.

Financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s financial instruments measured at the
end of the reporting period on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement.
The level into which a fair value measurement
is classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used in
the valuation technique as follows:

o Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date.

J Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs
are inputs for which market data are not
available.

o Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.

ATE(E)
(e) REIER(HE)

ATHREDITREBERRE
IR AR Z#EmERERM
BE -

HIETE AR AFEAARBZRZ
BB E ZEEFD,/EI10%
—E—NF:10%) B KE
ErFAEERZTERBE
R A A R#1,132,0007T (=
T—NnF: AR¥684,0007T) -
AR RIEEBEAFETA
BREZVBEEZ A AFEEZD
Fr 8k o

BRAFESEBZHNBEEER

a1
N T

TREJINBERARZEEE
AEEGFENAEERYFETAN
ANFE GERBEEVBRS
ERFEIBRLFETETEDN
=WRAVEELR XFEFE
BRENERE2E/ERMP
EANBAENAIBRERE
EMHEEWNT:

e FEMEERAFEE
BAEFERFE - BNAE
FAEESLBERTERE
EBRTISNARFHBRE -

s B_EMfE-NAE_E®H
ANE(MIFEZ 2T A &
R ABFELFE"
BlH@ ABEZ R BREA
RIE—EBBAE - TA
B  AERLEMSEH
BRE2EZBAE -

. BSEEE:NEEMT
TERHAGHEAT
A -

TEESEEERAR —E-BFFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # ZE—

R EAE ﬂ

—EFE+ZA=t-HLFE

34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 34. HMEEREERMEIAEZ
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(e)

(f)

(9)

Equity price (Continued)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The Group has a team headed by the financial
controller performing valuations for the financial
instruments. The team reports directly to the
directors of the Company and the audit committee.
A valuation report with analysis of changes in fair
value measurement is prepared by the team at each
interim and annual reporting date, and is reviewed
and approved by the directors of the Company.
Discussion of the valuation process and results
with the directors of the Company and the audit
committee is held quarterly, to coincide with the
reporting dates.

Fair value measurements

Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2020 categorised into
RZB-FE+-A=+-0H

AFEE)

(e)

()

e = EA% ()
BAFETATBZHBEEER

18 (%)
N -

AEBE-—BAaMBKEER
BOEE  BMBTAETR

B ZEFEEAARBES
MREZZBEE®RS - ZBEBER

ERHLFEREAHREEM
BRE  BRATVESAES
ZAM - BEHARRESEH
Rt - BFRARAESFTR
EnZBEeRdEEREFRS

R -BRLEARSHAE -

AV EE

Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2019 categorised into

REB-NFTZA=Z+—HK

AFEFERER ATEFENEA
Fair value at Fair value at
31 December 31 December
2020 Level 1 2019 Level 1
R-B-E& ZZ-NF
+=A=+-H +-A=+-A
WATEE - MLTE £
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR ARETFT ARBFT
Asset BE
Financial assets designated at FVTPL 8T AR AFETA
Ba HBEE 33,639 33,639 38,336 38,336
During the years ended 31 December 2020 and REE_Z_ZEFR_ZT—-NF

2019, there were no transfer between Level 1 and
Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3. The
Group's policy is to recognise transfers between
Levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the
reporting period in which they occur.

Fair value of financial instruments carried
at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at amortised cost were not
materially different from their fair values as at 31
December 2020 and 2019.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2020

(9)

TZA=+—HLEFE £ B
HE_ETAZAYESR
NEBAE-"EBXEE=-EE
HeAEEBZHRRANELE
BMBRERARERRFEER
W

I 3F 12 ¥ F{E 5 Bk
BEzn¥E

R B R E A A BR 2 B RS
TAZEHEHAR-F-F
FRZFT-NF+-A=1+—H
ZARFELESZANDH -

Z T



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

35. MATERIAL

A RAN T

W N

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z-_ZT -_FF+_A=+—HILFE

RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the
Group entered into the following material related party
transactions:

(@)

(b)

Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel of the
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s
directors as disclosed in note 8 and certain of the
highest paid employees as disclosed in note 9, is as
follows:

35. T EFMERRXS

R AMBREREMIEOABRERS
KRN REEFIM AT T2/ E
TR

(@ TEEEAEMS
FEEFTEZEERBAEMESBE
XN FARTESE (G ES
B ETESHREEH
AN F FEORT Y FR) 2 SRIEM T -

2020 2019

g i o3 —E-NF

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AREFR ARBF T

Short-term employee benefits EHEBEF 6,111 5,036
Post-employment benefits Bt B8 42 A - 27
6,111 5,063

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs”.

Remuneration for close family members of
key management personnel

B REmETATBTAA] -

(b) TEEBABABR M=
A

Remuneration for close family members of key AEEFTEZEBABRBR 2B
management personnel of the Group is as follows: carCIINE

2020 2019
) e 33 —ZT-NEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBFT
Short-term employee benefits HHEBRN 192 200
Post-employment benefits BH B3t 4= 7 - -
192 200

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs”.

FMEEAATETRA] -

TEETEEERLAR —EZEERH 195
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # ZE—

35. MATERIAL RELATED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

—EEt-A=+—BLEE
PARTY 35 EHEFRXS(E)

(c) Other related parties transactions (0 HEMBEFIZXRS
() On 15 March 2013, a renewal deed of ) RZTE—Z=F=ZA+1

—~

(ii)

trust (the “Niao Song Deed”) was entered
into between Bau Shan and Ms. Li Pi Hsia
("Ms. Li"), spouse of Mr. Liu, in relation to
the land property situated in Taiwan at No.
943 in Section Linnei, Niao Song Township,
Kaohsiung County, Taiwan (the “Niao Song
Property”). Under the Niao Song Deed, Bau
Shan agreed that the Niao Song Property,
which is owned by Bau Shan, shall be
registered under the name of and held on
trust by Ms. Li for Bau Shan for a term of
ten years commencing on 15 March 2013.
Ms. Li has agreed that she shall act in the
interest of Bau Shan in relation to the Niao
Song Property during the term of the Niao
Song Deed.

On 25 March 2016, a deed of trust (the
“Neimen Deed”) was entered into between
BLL and Mr. Liu in relation to a land property
situated in Taiwan at No.0300-00001 in
Section Laizikeng, Neimen District, Kaohsiung
County, Taiwan (the “Neimen Property”).
Under the Neimen Deed, BLL agreed that the
Neimen Property, which is owned by BLL,
shall be registered under the name of and
held on trust by Mr. Liu for BLL. Mr. Liu has
agreed that he shall act in the interest of BLL
in relation to the Neimen Property.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2020
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35. MATERIAL

4= N

W N

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # =

RELATED

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c) Other

related parties transactions

(Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Mr. Liu signed a tenancy agreement
agreeing the Group to lawfully use the
property situated at unit 1404 on Level 14,
Zhongxing Garden, No. 1 Heping Road,
Chongging City, the PRC at a monthly rent
of RMB6,000 starting from 1 January 2019
to 31 December 2020.

On 1 April 2016, BLL was granted by Mr.
Liu Ting-Hsuan, close family member of Mr.
Liu, on an exclusive basis a licence to use a
number of trademarks in connection with the
elderly care and related consultancy services
of BLL at a consideration of HK$1,000 per
year.

Guarantee for the Group’s bank loan of
RMB2,118,000 (2019: RMB2,584,000) (note
28) is given by Mr. Liu during the year ended
31 December 2020.

On 31 January 2019, Zhongke Guangju Cell
Therapy (Guangdong) Co., Ltd.* (“Zhongke
Guangju”), a company incorporated in the
PRC with limited liability and is indirectly
held as to 30% equity interest by Mr. XU
and his associates through a controlled
company, and Zhongke Zhengi Biotechology
(Hong Kong) Company Limited (“Zhongke
Zhengi”), a subsidiary of the Group, entered
into an agency agreement (the "Agency
Agreement”). Pursuant to the Agency
Agreement, Zhongke Guangju has agreed to
engage Zhongke Zhengi as a tier 1 agent to
represent its sales and/or services of stem cells
and immunocytes in the PRC, Hong Kong and
Macau.

* for reference only

(0 EHEHMEE

(iii)

(iv)

TEETEEERAA

—E-EEt-A=t-—RAILERE
PARTY 35 FEREFRS(E)

B 2XR5 (&)

BEEDEITHERHZ
RERSEAEEFERAM
R EE BT
R EE 1412 1404E 29
¥ BZZ-NF—H—
RE_ZE-TF+=AH=
+—HB  8REEAAR
#6,0007T °

R-ZT—XR"EMA—A -
BIES R (B RENT
) [ A E MR B K EE
AREAE AR ZMEE
RAREEARG AR A
TEE  RE/EHF1,000
BT e

+ E¢¢F£ 2% £ 5
A R #2118,000 (= &
—NnF : AR¥2,584,000
7o) (B 7£28) 2 7N £ & iR
TERIREER -

RZE—NEFE—A=1+—
A #REZAREE
(ER)BRAR(HFRE
Bl —ERA B A
THBERAFR - &EE‘AF?E
E&E BN E R

7Faﬁ?xhﬁﬁ30%ﬂxﬁé)
HAERNFEEEYRE(FE
B)ERAR ([FEZEHED
(REBEZMBAF)E]L
REWHZ(REHZHD -
RBRRIEH % ‘:F‘?Hrm

REZEHREZEEE—
R BERTEH - %5
B NORPIR I % ME &
BEMLZHER SRR
ﬁ%o
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-ZE-_EF+-_A=+—HILFE

35. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 35 XEBEHRS(E)

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c) Other related parties transactions
(Continued)
(vi) (Continued)

Zhongke Guangju, as service provider, will
in addition to providing stem cells and
immunocytes products and/or services, be
responsible for complimentary advisory and
promotional materials. Zhongke Zhenqi,
as agent, will be responsible for market
development, market promotion and
providing market feedback to Zhongke
Guangju. The prices of the products and/or
services provided by Zhongke Guangju were
arrived at after arm’s length negotiations
between both parties and are consistent with
the prices provided by Zhongke Guangju
to existing agents. Zhongke Guangju may
determine at its own discretion the sale prices
of the relevant products and/or services based
on market conditions.

During the vyear, Zhongke Zhengi has

received service fee of RMB356,000 (2019:
RMB1,591,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z-_ZT -_FF+_A=+—HILFE

35. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 35 EREaHIRS(E)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Amounts due from/(to) other related d) EW  (EMEMEBEEHS
parties =g
Particular of amounts due from/(to) other related FEUT (FE) Efth B8 38 5 3k 1B
parties, which are included in trade and other (Gt ANES L HMEWRERZ
receivables or in trade and other payables are SREMEMTIE) NS E
disclosed as follows: m
2020 2019
g et 2 —TNE
RMB'000 RMB'000
Relationship 2R ARETR ARBFT
Ms. Chang KEHZL  Key management FTEZEEAE
Hui-Lan personnel 20 -
Mr. Liu BIEEEE  Close family TEEBABAA
Ting-Hsuan member of key
management
personnel (264) 107
Maximum amount outstanding during the year is FAGRRAEESBEOT:
as follows:
2020 2019
—FEE —E-hE
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARETR ARBTT
Ms. Chang Hui-Lan REBZT 129 13
Mr. Liu Ting-Hsuan 2IFEE L £ N/A
EA 175
The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and THEAERER BEEURER
repayable on demand. FEEE-
Amounts due to directors (e) EFNES=ZMNE

Particular of amounts due to directors are disclosed
as follows:

ENEEFRENFEREN
T

2020 2019

—E_EF —E-NF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR ARBT T

Mr. Liu 25 & 1,143 789
Mr. Xu o 2,517 -
3,660 789

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

TRAEER BEEUANRAR

= i yem
EEEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # ZE—
35. MATERIAL

R EAE ﬂ

RELATED

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(f)

—EEt-A=+—BLEE
PARTY 35 EHEFRXS(E)

Amount due to a shareholder f) ER—BRR=ZMIE
Particular of amount due to a shareholder is FE— 2R RN ENEERE
disclosed as follows: NE
2020 2019
el o 3 —n&F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETR AREF T
Hong Kong Gaogi Biological EEREEDMRE
Technology Company Limited BRAF 12,221 8,664
As at 31 December 2020, the amount due to RZEZ_ZTEF+ZRA=+—
a shareholder classified as current liabilities H ENT-—E2RENSER
amounting to approximately RMB10,024,000 RBEBENREBHNRARK
(2019: RMB8,664,000) are unsecured, interest- 10,024,000 (=T — L F - A
free and repayable on demand, and approximately R ¥8,664,0007T) & £ K 18 -
RMB520,000 (2019: nil) are unsecured, interest- EENAKREBEER  HAR
free and repayable within one year, while the #520,000L(Z & — N F: F
remaining portion of RMB1,677,000 (2019: RMB nil) TL)RERR BB EEAR—F
are unsecured, interest-free and repayable over one NEE MEARLIO/RARE
year. 1,677,000C (ZZ—NF AR
BTT)REER mSAEER
—FIREE -
36. OPERATING LEASES 36. &EEHE
The Group as lessor AEBERAEHAA

At 31 December 2020, the Group had contracted with
tenants in respect of part of its office and investment

R-ZF-_FF+-_A=1t—H &%

E gt o

WNENIEE Y

properties for the following future minimum lease MPEIH AR K EBENRE W
payments: ™

2020 2019
—B-TE —NF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETR AR T T
Within 1 year —FR 212 221
After 1 year but within 5 years —FEEAEFNHN 212 442
424 663

Operating lease receivables represent rentals receivable by
the Group for certain of its investment properties. Leases
are negotiated for terms of 3 years (2019: 3 years). None
of the lease includes contingent rentals.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z-_ZT -_FF+_A=+—HILFE

37.

38.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2020
not provided for in the financial statements are as follows:

37. EXHEE

RUBBEARBEZIR T _ZF
T-A=+t—"HRKRBEITZEAREKE

R
2020 2019
—E-FxE —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AREFR ARET T
Capital expenditure contracted but EZAE KR IEBE 2

not provided for: BARX:
— Investments in associates - WEBZ AT 8,700,000 8,700,000
— Investment in a joint venture -R—HEEELEZKRE 6,500,000 6,500,000
15,200,000 15,200,000

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2020, bank borrowings of the
Group were secured by land and buildings with an
aggregate carrying amount of RMB20,394,000 (2019:
RMB19,932,000) (notes 14(d) and 28).

38. K EE

R-ZTE-_ZEF+_-_A=+—H" K
EERTEEHREREARARKE
20,394,000 (ZE—NF AR
19,932,0007T) Z * b I 1 F & K 4
(M 5E14(d) K. 28) »

TEESEEERAR —E-BFFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-ZE-_EF+-_A=+—HILFE

39. B AT

39. SUBSIDIARIES

(@) Details of the Company’s subsidiaries, which are (a)

private companies or,

if established/incorporated

outside Hong Kong, have substantially the same
characteristic as a Hong Kong private company, as
at 31 December 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

RoB-BER-T—

A=+—RH"

NE+=
ARBZHEBAR

(BFRARB (R FEE I

Wi/aiﬂ%ﬁ)@i)

LA EF B

RAIRNBBRZEFE) ZF 1B

Zzu Ik
Place and date of Authorised ordinary Issued and fully paid-
incorporation/ share capital/ up ordinary share or Attributable Principal activities/place of
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital registered capital equity interest operation
R/ EELERE/ ERTRARLER
WEATER RItHREH ghEx EEiAIE 4134 TEEHR/BERY
2020 2019
2888 3 0f
Directly held
E&RF
Bau Shan Taiwan NTD70,452,000 NTD70,452,000 60% 60% Provision of funeral services, sale
29 December 1998 (2019: NTD70,452,000) (2019: NTD70,452,000) of funeral services deeds and
investment holding/Taiwan
2l 8 70,452,000% &% 70,452,000% &% RERGRY  HERERE
“AANETZAZTAR (ZR-AF:70452000  (ZF-AF:70452,000 RORRELR /BB
F48) F48)
Full Spread (China) Limited Hong Kong N/A HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding/Hong Kong
5 October 2007 (2019: N/A) (2019: HK$1)
WA (RE)ERAT £ TER 137 RARK/EE
“ERLEARA (Z2-NE:FER) (ZZ-n%&:187)
Allied Smart Development Limited ~ Hong Kong N/A HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding/Hong Kong
1 April 2010 (2019: N/A) (2019: HK$1)
RERRERLA R TER 137 REBR/EE
ZF-ZEMA-A (Z2-hE:TER) (ZE-hE:1ET)
Sino-Life (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong N/A HK$1 100% 100%  Provision of funeral services and sale of
9 August 2010 (2019: N/A) (2019: HKS1) funeral services deeds/Hong Kong
AL (FR)ERAA j TER 137 REBERBREERERY
“2-2£/AAE (CE-hE:FEA)  (CF-hEER) 26/5%
Dayrise Enterprises Limited BVI U5$50,000 Us$t 100% 100%  Investment holding/BVI
13 September 2010 (2019: US$50,000) (2019: US$1)
AREEARAA ABERER 50,000% T E RERK/ZBRRES
“Z-ZERATER (ZF-A%F 50,000 S-NEET)
%)
Jing Run Limited BVI US$1,000,000 US$1,000,000 55% 55%  Inactive/BVI
12 February 2010 (2019: US$1,000,000) (2019: US$1,000,000)
REBRLA EERAHS 1,000,000% 7T 1,000,000% T TER/RBERES
“Z-ZE-ATCE (ZZ-1%F:1,000000  (ZZ—A%:1,000,000
) )
Timeless Surplus (Hong Kong) Hong Kong N/A HK$1 100% 100%  Inactive/Hong Kong
Limited 17 April 2012 (2019: N/A) (2019: HKS1)
BHER ARLA £ TER 137 TER/BE
“R-"HMATLA (Z2-nE:TER) (ZE-N%:1ET)
Ban Shan Consulting Limited Samoa U5950,000 Us$t 60% 60%  Inactive/Taiwan
14 November 2013 (2019: US$50,000) (2019: US$1)
EED 50,000% T £ TER/BE
ZZ-ZEt-ATRE E-nE: 50,000 Z-NEET)
*7)
Indirectly held
BERE
Chongqing Xibao* The PRC US$8,000,000 US$8,000,000 100% 100%  Provision of funeral services and
19 March 2007 (2019: US$8,000,000) (2019: US$8,000,000) investment holding/The PRC
ERHE: e 8,000,000% 8,000,000% RERBRBRAERR /TR
ZERLEZRTAR (ZZ-N%:8000000  (ZF—71%:8,000,000
E) E)
Chongqing Xizhou** The PRC RMB300,000 RMB300,000 100% 100%  Provision of funeral services/The PRC
25 October 2006 (2019: RMB300,000) (2019: RMB300,000)
ERER AR#300,0007 AE%300,0007 REBSRE/ T
g TSR (CE-RE:ARE  (CE-RFARK
300,0007z) 300,0007z)
Sino-Life Eternities Limited BVI US$50,000 US$10,000 78.75% 78.75%  Investment holding/BVI
15 April 2010 (2019: US$50,000) (2019: US$10,000)
HEFERERAA KERAES 50,000% T 10,0005 70 RERR/ABELXES
“F-REMATEA (ZR-AF:50000 (ZF-AF:10000%T)

1)
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39. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(a

4n Al

W N

-

39. ME 2B (&)

“EETZAST-AILFE

(Continued) (a) (#)
Place and date of Authorised ordinary Issued and fully paid-
incorporation/ share capital/ up ordlnary share or Attributable Principal activities/place of
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital istered capnal equity interest operation
ERiL) kreuns, i dxtl
HEASER RIHREH gREE $ Tt i IRER/BERY
2020 2019
ZBC¥E SINF
Indirectly held (Continued)
HERE(&)
Sino-Life Eternities Services Limited Hong Kong N/A HK$1 78.75% 78.75%  Not yet commenced business/
20 April 2010 (2019: N/A) (2019: HK$1) Hon
SEFLHRHRRLA s ot vEn ure/ B
Z2-Z¥MAZFA T-NE:TER) T-NE BT
Jinhao Enterprises Limited BVI U5$50,000 Us$t 100% 100%  Investment holding/BVI
13 September 2010 (2019: US$50,000) (2019: US$1)
SRLEERLA ABRRES 50000% 10 E3 RELRK/ ZERRES
—F-TEAATER (ZZ—-NE:50,000 (ZE-nEF:1ET)
1)
Sino-Departures Limited Hong Kong N/A HKSS 100% 100%  Not yet commenced business/
5 December 2011 (2019: N/A) (2019: HK$5) Hon
RERTERRAA TER SETL ENCE /’g%
“2-—%tZAIR (ZE-NE:FER) Z-NE:5ET)
Bao Son Life Vietnam U5$200,000 15200,000 80% 80%  Investment holding/Vietnam
20 June 2012 (2019: US$200,000) (2019: US$200,000)
BlED i 200,000% 7T 200,000% T RERR/ B
“F-ZERAZTA (ZZ-N%:200000 (ZF-A%:200000%7)
ES)
HLV Duc Hoa (note (b)) Vietnam VND50,000,000,000 VND39,750,000,000 - = Sale of burial plots and provision
22 June 2012 (2019 (2019: VND39,750,000,000) of cemetery maintenance
VND50,000,000,000) services/\Vietnam
HLV Duc Hoa (i (o)) ik soooooooooom,ﬁ 39,750,000 ooomfé HELWRRUERALERE/
ZE-ZERAZTCH -NE (ZZ-0% et
50,000,000 ooom ) 3975000000085 %)
BLL Taiwan NTD15,000,000 NTD15,000,000 60% 60% Provision of elderly care and related
12 October 2015 (2019: NTD15,000,000) (2019: NTD15,000,000) consultancy services/Taiwan
TEH 15,000,000% & % 15,000,000% & % REEZRERE ARG/
BETATZE (ZE-RE015000000  (ZF-A%:15000,000
EEE)) ek
Chongqmg Shouen Elderly Care Services  The PRC RMB1,000,000 RMB1,000,000 100% 100%  Not yet commenced business/
Lim 27 September 2016 (2019: RVIB1,000,000) (2019: RMB1,000,000) The PRC
T é% BHEARAA A&éﬂoooooon NE1,000,0007 HARE /P8
ZE-REAAZTLR N5 AE% (Z2-NE:ARE
1,000,00070) 1,000,0007T)
Chongging Yongxinshuo Enterprises The PRC RMB1,000,000 RMB1,000,000 N/A¥** 100%  Not yet commenced business/
Management Consultancy Limited** 7 January 2016 (2019: RMB1,000,000) (2019: RMB1,000,000) The PRC
ERAMALFEREN AE%1,000,00070 ARWOOOOOOE R 100% WAEE/FE
BRAR “B-RE-ATLR (ZE-NFARK (ZE2-NEARK
1,000,0007c) 1,000,0007)
PREEEDRR(ER) The PRC RMB10,000,000 RMB10,000,000 100% 100%  Research and testing development/
BRAR™ 29 November 2018 (2019: RMB10,000,000) (2019 RMB10,000,000) The PRC
a A& #10,000,0007T AWwooooooﬁ RENARRE/PE
2 \Et-AZthBE (CE-NECARE (ZE-nE:A
10,000,0007) 10,000, 0007@
Zhongke Zhengi Biotechnology Hong Kong N/A HK$1,000,000 100% 100%  Sales of biotechnica\ machineries/
(Hong Kong) Company L\mned 9 April 2019 (201 9 N/A) (2019: HK$1,000,000)
EFH%MWH ERERD 1,000,000 1 MH?& EEHE/ TR
“R-NENANE (Z2-N%: Tmﬁ (ZF—71% 1,000,000
E7)
Zhongke Life Holding Co., Limited Hong Kong N/A HK$1,000,000 100% 100%  Not yet commenced business/
22 July 2019 (2019: N/A) (2019: HK$1,000,000) Hon
wRESERERAR ¥ TER 1,000,000 7 ESE /éfg’é
SE-AELASTZR (ZR-AETER) (SF-AF 01,000,000
E7)
PRAEENBRERINERAT*  The PRC RMB40,000,000 RMB40,000,000 100% 100%  Not yet commenced business/
17 September 2019 (2019: RMB40,000,000) (2019: RMB40,000,000) The PRC
A5 %40,0000007T AR 40,000,000 WRRE/PE
ZE-AEAATLE (ZE-NE:ARE (Z2-NE:ARE
40,000,0007T) 40,000,0007T)
Zhongke Zhenhui (Guangdong) Medical  The PRC RMB10,000,000 RMB10,000,000 59% N/A Biomedical techno\ogy research/
Techno\ogy Company Limited** 19 May 2020 (2019: N/A) (2019: N/A) The PR
PHEZ(ER)ERRAARAR  hE A& 10,000,000 £%10,000,0007C 59% TR $7§§,’§Tﬂ /48
ZZIZERATAR (ZZ-hF:PER) ? nE: A ER)
* A wholly-foreign-owned enterprise * INEEE

*x A limited liability company

* kK

Deregistered during 2020

w  HRELAR
*kx AT T — TGN

TEETEEERLAR —EZEERH
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-ZE-_EF+-_A=+—HILFE
39. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

39. MIEB 2B (&)

(b)  The Group does not hold any ownership interests by ZAEEITEZFBEZTEHLY Duc
in the entity, HLV Duc Hoa. However, based Hoaz fEfAIFTE Mz - A -
on the terms of the contract under which HLV R AE AN 52 BE DARK 37 R 28 I HLY
Duc Hoa was established and controlled by the Duc HoaZ #Z &R 2G5 + A&
Group, the Group receives substantially all of the ] Y EY 485 2 20 R 2 B HLY
variable returns related to the involvement in HLV Duc Hoa%n‘“Z—J """"" @#&&ﬁ*ﬁ
Duc Hoa's operations and net assets and has the E - UARAR BHZEE
ability to direct HLV Duc Hoa's activities that most i&ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ“ZHw Duc Hoa%
significantly affect those returns. 1% o

() The following tables list out the information of (0 THREINAEEZHWERT (E
the Group’s subsidiaries which has material non- ﬁﬁﬁ#? i ([ AR e
controlling interest (“NCI”). The summarised WmIBMER - TN E2WMUH
financial information presented below represents ERBMERRETEMARM
the amounts before any inter-company elimination. HIHAIZ &5 °

2020 2019
k- - -3 —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT
Bau Shan and Bau Shan and
its subsidiary, Bao Son its subsidiary, Bao Son
BLL and Ban Life and its BLL and Ban Life and its
Shan Consulting subsidiary, Shan Consulting subsidiary,
Limited HLV Duc Hoa Limited ~ HLV Duc Hoa
BILR 2R
EMBAT HB AR
TERE REMK
Bao Shan BLEGR Bao Shan ETES
Consulting EMBATF - Consulting  EMEAE
Limited HLV Duc Hoa Limited ~ HLV Duc Hoa
NCI percentage FERERBEOL 40% 20% 40% 20%
Current assets MEEE 185,023 14,555 169,844 12,007
Non-current assets ERBEE 29,246 19 30,923 63
Current liabilities TEAE (217,579) (45,582) (208,036) (44,244
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (5,826) (186) (7,092) (199)
Net liabilities BREFE (9,136) (31,094) (14,361) (32,373)
Carrying amount of NCI FEREEEREE (3,654) (6,219) (5,744) (6,475)
Revenue U 25 1,802 434 2,257 421
Profit/(loss) for the year FEWE/(B#8) 5,184 (817) (1,343) (1,065)
Total comprehensive 2EME/ (A BE
income/(expense) 1,067 (1,412) (480) (151)
Profit/(loss) attributable to NCI JEIRFRER B/ 2
Wia/(B8) 2,074 (163) (755) (213)
Total comprehensive income/ FEREREMLL
(expense) attributable to NCI 2ENE/(BX) 88 427 (282) (947) (30)
Net cash inflows/(outflows) from i‘“%/ﬁéfﬁﬁﬁmﬂ\/
operating activities (i) 38 1,533 2,110 (4,453) (1,208)
Net cash inflows/(outflows) from R EEERELHEA
investing activities (i) F8E 5 (135) 1 (99)
Net cash outflows from financing B & EB) R &R FHE
activities (1,300) - (1,273) -

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2020
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41.

4o A

7AT &+ 2
e SRR M T
For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z-_ZT -_FF+_A=+—HILFE
40. CHANGE IN OWNERSHIP INTEREST IN A 40. gm%&ﬁlﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁiﬁﬁ

SUBSIDIARY

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
disposed of 40% of its interest into Bau Shan, reduced
its continuing interest to 60%. The proceeds on disposal
of RMB14,038,000 were received in cash. An amount
of RMB5,882,000 (being the proportionate share of
the carrying amount of the net liabilities of Bau Shan)
has been transferred to non-controlling interests. The
difference of RMB19,920,000 between the increase in the
non-controlling interests and the consideration received
has been credited to accumulated losses.

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to the written resolutions of the shareholders
of the Company dated 24 August 2009, a share option
scheme (“Share Option Scheme”) was approved and
adopted. The major terms of the Share Option Scheme
are summarised as follows:

(@) The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is
to enable the Company to grant options to
eligible participants who have contributed or may
contribute to the Group as incentive or rewards for
their contributions to the Group.

(b) The eligible participants include (i) any employee or
proposed employee of the Company and/or any of
its subsidiaries or any entity (“Invested Entity”) in
which the Group holds an equity interest, including
any executive directors and any non-executive
directors (including independent non-executive
directors) of the Company, any of such subsidiaries
or any Invested Entity; and (i) any consultants,
advisers, agents, partners or joint-venture partners
of the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries.

(c) The exercise price of a share option under the Share
Option Scheme will not be less than the highest
of (i) the closing price of the shares on the Stock
Exchange as shown in the daily quotations sheet
of the Stock Exchange on the offer date of the
particular option, which must be a business day; (ii)
the average of the closing prices of the shares as
shown in the daily quotations sheets of the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the offer date of that particular option;
and (iii) the nominal value of a share on the offer
date of the particular option.

41.

REE-_ZE—-hhF+-_A=+—801t
FE - AEEHNEERE LN40%E
oA ERFEREEE60% o HEFT
BIH & AR%14,038,000T - —E %
%5 A R#5,882,0007T (BG & 1%
BEREENLAEEBREIEER
oo EEREEMIZINED KR
B 2 B =% AR%19,920,000LE
FTARETEE °

UREESHEROAERZ
X5

BREARBDBRA-_ZZAFNRZ
TOEMEREERZESR  CHER
R RERT 8 (TRERUERTE)) - BB
PRt &I/ = RARKBA T

(a) BEEGFEZENERART
() 5 7% 5= @ 2 4 o ok A] BE 1
BERMAERSEERIBR
B FRRFHAKEFLE
BRI Bk 2 By -

(b) AEBR2EERE()ARANR,
S EAAKMIE AR AEEF
BERAEENENERB(RE
ERDNEAEENETES -
BEARE  EEAKE QR
HEMEEERBNEAANITE
EREMIERTES (BREBL
FERITES)  R(i)AREI RS
ok H A {a] Y B 2 B &9 E 7] 7% 56
AER KRB -2BAZE

BEBLE

() BRESSHETEERENTTE
BTN TNI&ESE (IR
FEBRENZEORR(LAS
BERB)BRMDNBR TS HERE
R EBREBXAAKHE:
(WEZEZBEBBRENENA
B AEERBRONERAA
BHBEXR LBRTOFHRT
B RGOS EBRER
MBMMEE -
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41. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 41. LREZEEREBEE 2
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(d)

(e)

(f)

The total number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all share options to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes must not in aggregate exceed 10%
of the shares in issue (“General Scheme Limit").

The Share Option Scheme was expired during the
year ended 31 December 2019.

Unless approved by the Company’s shareholders,
the total number of shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted to any
participants in any twelve-month period must not
exceed 1% of the shares in issue at the date of the
grant of the options.

An offer shall be made to eligible participants in
writing and shall remain open for acceptance by the
eligible participants concerned for a period of 30
days from the date upon which it is made provided
that no such offer shall be open for acceptance
after the 10th anniversary of the adoption date
of the Share Option Scheme or the termination
of the scheme. An offer shall be deemed to have
been accepted by the eligible participant concerned
in respect of all shares which are offered to such
participant when the duplicate letter comprising
acceptance of the offer duly signed by the eligible
participant, together with a non-refundable
remittance in favour of the Company of HK$10
by way of consideration for the grant thereof is
received by the Company, within such time as may
be specified in the offer.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2020
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # &=
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41. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 4. URBR#EZEERBR O BEEE 2
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(9)

(h)

For the options granted in 2010, they are
exercisable starting half year from the grant date.
The exercisable period should be determined by the
board of directors upon grant of the share option
but in any event should not exceed 10 years from
the date of grant of the share option.

An option shall be exercisable in whole or in part
in the circumstances by giving notice in writing to
the Company stating that the option is thereby
exercised and the number of shares in respect of
which it is so exercised. Each such notice must be
accompanied by a non-refundable remittance for
the full amount of the subscription price for shares
in respect of which the notice is given.

The terms and conditions of the options granted
are as follows:

Number of
shares issuable
under options

X5 (&)

(9)

(h)

RRZE—ZFRE 2 ERE
s & SRR BEI A E
FRAWRITE - A TITFEEME
EZHESERNELBREZ
BRET HERNATEER

BB B B HA B ET 104 -

EBEANARRAARRZELER
BARNBRATEE LI HITE
AR - RBAZERERE
TR ST AT R BB IRE P %
NERMHER SE@EBALY
AKRMTAREER €8A
BEHMBARRMIRBER
MREE -

B B AR 2 5 R R A 1 40
T

Contractual life of

granted Life of period options
B2 ERE
ETRHBHE FREY BRESHEY
Options granted in 2010:
RIE-REREZBHRE:
Options granted to directors:
RYEszBikiE:
- on 11 February 2010 6,420,000 11 August 2010 to 11 February 2020 10 years

-RZE-ZF-A+-H

Options granted to employees:
RTEEZBRE:
-on 11 February 2010
-RZZ-TF_A+-H

Options granted to consultants:

BYEAzBRE:

“F-TF/\At-A

11,680,000 11 August 2010 to 11 February 2020

“E-ZENAT-HE-EZ

2-ZT-T€-A+-H 105

10 years

“T-TH-fA+—H 104

-on 11 February 2010 41,900,000 11 August 2010 to 11 February 2020 10 years
-RZE-ZF_At+-H “Z-ZENA+-AE-Z-FF-A+—H 104

Total share options

BRERH

60,000,000

The method of settlement for the options granted is
by equity. The closing price of the Company’s shares
immediately before 11 February 2010, the date on
which the options were granted, was HK$1.16.

REvEREDRAERES
FRe AR BRONREE T
—ZEF_A+—HENEREE
BHzBH) A2 WTED R A
11678 7T ©

TEESEEERAR —E-BFFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-ZE-_EF+-_A=+—HILFE
41. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 41. l«lﬂﬂg%ﬁﬂaﬁﬁ%aﬁﬁz
TRANSACTIONS (Continued) X5 (&)
(j)  The particulars of outstanding options at the end (j) REmEERZ ®ARITEERE
of the reporting period as follows: HBHT
2020 2019
- el 33 “T-NEF
Weighted Number of Weighted Number of
average shares issuable average  shares issuable
exercise  under options exercise under options
price granted price granted
HEHZ REEZ
MEFEY  BRETIEST O METH BRETESD
fTEE k& &E T E Btn & B
Outstanding at the beginning & ] 14 A 17 8 HK$1.18 48,232,000 HK$1.18 48,232,000
of the year 118% T 11858 T
Lapsed during the year FREERM HK$1.18 (48,232,000) HK$1.18 -
118 T 1188 T
Outstanding at the end FRMKTE N/A - HK$1.18 48,232,000
of the year THER 1188 T
Exercisable at the end FRATIIR N/A - HK$1.18 48,232,000
of the year TEH 1188 T
Terms of unexpired and unexercised share options P HA R 2 i R JE O B R
at the end of the reporting period are as follows: TR EARERR T
Number of shares
issuable under Exercise
31 December 2019 options granted Vesting period Exercisable period price
BB ERE
—¥-rE+ZA=t+-H qETRHEE BEY T e
Options granted to employees:
R¥EECRBRE:
- On 11 February 2010 6,332,000 11 February 2010 to 10 August 2010 11 August 2010 to 11 February 2020 HK$1.18
-RZE-%2F-A+-H ZZ3-ZF-f+-AE-Z-SFN\AtR ZZ-ZENA+-HE-Z-ZF-At+-H 118 7T
Options granted to consultants:
E¥BEBRE
- On 11 February 2010 41,900,000 11 February 2010 to 10 August 2010 11 August 2010 to 11 February 2020 HK$1.18
-RZE-ZF-A+-H —“Z3-ZF-A+-AE-Z-SEN\AtA ZZF-ZENA+-HE-Z-ZF-At+-H 1185 T
Total share opmons outstanding 48,232,000

HMATTRBRELH
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41. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 4. URBR#EZEERBR O BEEE 2
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(i

(k)

(Continued)

The share options outstanding at 31 December
2019 had exercise price of HK$1.18 and a weighted
average remaining contractual life of 0.1 year.

The options granted on 11 February 2010
expire ten years from the date of grant. As at
31 December 2019, 29,072,000 of 48,232,000
options were exercisable in the same year of the
date of grant with 50% each of the options granted
exercisable at six months and at the end of the
year from the date of grant and 19,160,000 of
48,232,000 options are exercisable over five years
from the date of grant, with 20% each of the
options granted exercisable at six months, and first
calendar date of following four years from the date
of grant. All of the options were lapsed during the
year ended 31 December 2020.

Fair value of

assumptions

(i)  Granted to director and employees
The fair value of services received in return
for share options granted is measured by
reference to the fair value of share options
granted. The estimate of the fair value of
the share options granted is measured based
on the Binomial Option Pricing Model. The
contractual life of the share option is used as
an input into this model.

share options and

The expected volatility is based on the
historic volatility (calculated based on the
weighted average remaining life of the share
options), adjusted for any expected changes
to future volatility based on publicly available
information. Expected dividends are based on
historical dividends. Changes in the subjective
input assumptions could materially affect the
fair value estimate.

X5 (&)

9)

(k)

(&)

R-EBE—NF+-_A=+—HMH
RITE 2 BREZTHEER118
BT MEFHIFRBENFR
BOIE -

hER-_Z—TF - A+—AFK
o EBREER BB+
FEgEm o RNZZE—NE+=H
=+ — 8 - 48,232,000 & A%
R 229,072,000/0 Al A H A
Bz RFITE - R E AR
ANE AR R FIRAETE50%
< B R - 48,232, ooo
5 BE R R 219,160,000 17 7]
BREBHEAAFRITE E
RHBERNEARREE
EEEEBRETH20%2
EEREERE FTEBERER
HE-_ZT-_FF+=-A=+—H
IEFER -

BREZATFERREBR

(i) RTFEFRES
7R % [ DA TR o P RO T 2
BZRBzAFELER
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-ZE-_EF+-_A=+—HILFE
41. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 41. LR EGEROABERZ
TRANSACTIONS (Continued) X5 (48)
(k) Fair value of share options and k) BREZAFEERRBRR
assumptions (Continued) (%)
(i) Granted to consultants (i) BTEE
The fair value for share options granted is FrxtEREs A TETD

measured using the market-based approach,
by reference to the discounted cash flows
to estimate the fair value of the professional
fees that should have been paid. The value
was developed by discounting future cash
flows from the services to be provided by
the consultants, taking into account the
uniqueness of the services provided by the
consultants, the historical monthly payments
to similar services provided by the consultants
and the service period, along with other out
of pocket expenses.

Up to 31 December 2019, 41,900,000 share
options under the Share Option Scheme are
granted by the Company to the consultants of
the Group which entitles the holder thereof
to subscribe for an aggregate of 41,900,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each in the capital
of the Company with an exercise price of
HK$1.18 per share during the exercisable
period from 11 August 2010 to 11 February
2020. During the year ended 31 December
2020, all of such share options were lapsed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
4T A B S R R B G

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z-_ZT -_FF+_A=+—HILFE

42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

42. BB RAR

2020 2019
—EZEHE —E-NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR Fx ARETTT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBHEE
Investments in subsidiaries RBARINIKE 39 14,805 13,966
Intangible assets mEEE 2 2
14,807 13,968
CURRENT ASSETS MENEE
Other receivables E b e W 5RIE 102,425 110,182
Cash and cash equivalents ReERREEFEY 13,545 14,659
115,970 124,841
CURRENT LIABILITIES RB&EERE
Other payables E b & < 5K 1B 43,731 | | 41,425
(43,731) (41,425)
NET ASSETS FEE 87,046 97,384
EQUITY ]
Share capital % s 31 69,218 69,218
Reserves 1% 32 17,828 28,166
TOTAL EQUITY iS4 87,046 97,384

TEESEEERAR —E-BFFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-ZE-_EF+-_A=+—HILFE

=T F B R fh 5t

43. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 43.

ESTIMATES

(@) Critical accounting judgements in applying
the Group’s accounting policies
In the process of applying the Group's accounting,
management has made the following judgement:

(i)  Consolidation of an entity in which
the Group does not hold any equity
interests
The Group does not hold any ownership
interests in the entity, HLV Duc Hoa. However,
based on the terms of the contract under
which HLV Duc Hoa was established and
controlled by the Group, the Group receives
substantially all of the variable returns
related to involvement in HLV Duc Hoa's
operations and net assets and has the ability
to direct HLV Duc Hoa’s activities that most
significantly affect those returns. The directors
of the Company considered that the Group
has maintained de facto control in HLV Duc
Hoa and the Group continues to report it as
a subsidiary.

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The following are the key assumptions concerning
the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period,
that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B 7% 5% BT 5T
For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z-_ZT -_FF+_A=+—HILFE

43. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 43. &t H BT R &5t (8&)
ESTIMATES (Continued)

4o A

W N

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(i)

(i)

Impairment of non-financial assets
(including property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets,
intangible assets, interest in
associates, goodwill, deposits and
prepayments)

The Group assesses whether there are
any indicators of impairment for all non-
financial assets at the end of each reporting
period. Non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that
the carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
An impairment exists when the carrying value
of an asset or a CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value
less costs of disposal and its value in use.
The calculation of the fair value less costs
of disposal is based on available data from
binding sales transactions in an arm’s length
transaction of similar assets or observable
market prices less incremental costs for
disposing of the asset. When value in use
calculations are undertaken, management
must estimate the expected future cash flows
from the asset or CGU and choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows.

Provision of ECLs for trade receivables

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate
ECLs for the trade receivables. The provision
rates are based on internal credit ratings as
groupings of various debtors that have similar
loss patterns. The provision matrix is based on
the Group's historical default rates taking into
consideration forward-looking information
that is reasonable and supportable available
without undue costs or effort. At every
reporting date, the historical observed default
rates are reassessed and changes in the
forward-looking information are considered.
In addition, trade receivables with credit-
impaired are assessed for ECLs individually.

(b) HEFTHBERZEZRIR

(&

(i)

(ii)

)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-ZE-_EF+-_A=+—HILFE
43. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 43.

ESTIMATES (Continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(Continued)

(iii) Net realisable value of inventories
and development and formation costs
of burial plots
Net realisable value of inventories is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business, less estimated cost of completion
and estimated cost to make the sale. These
estimates are based on the current market
conditions and the historical experience of
selling products of similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of changes
in customer preferences and competitor
actions in response to severe industry cycles.
Management reassesses these estimates at
the end of each reporting period.

The Group writes down development and
formation costs of graves to net realisable
value based on assessment of the realisability
of the development and formation costs of
burial plots which takes into account costs
to completion based on management’s
experience and net sales value based on
prevailing market conditions. If there is an
increase in cost to completion or a decrease
in net sales value, the net realisable value will
decrease which may result in writing down
development and formation costs of burial
plots to net realisable value. Write-downs
are recorded where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may
not be realised. The identification of write-
downs requires the use of judgement and
estimates. Where the expectation is different
from the original estimate, the carrying value
of development and formation costs of burial
plots is adjusted in the period in which such
estimate is changed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B 7% 5% BT 5T
For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z-_ZT -_FF+_A=+—HILFE

43. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 43. &t H BT R &5t (8&)
ESTIMATES (Continued)

4o A

W N

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Depreciation and amortisation

The management reviews the estimated
useful lives of the assets regularly in order to
determine the amount of depreciation and
amortisation charge for the year.

This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of assets
of similar nature and functions and taking into
account anticipated technological changes.
The depreciation and amortisation expenses
for future periods are adjusted if there are
significant changes from previous estimates.

Income tax

The subsidiaries of the Company are subject
to income taxes in Hong Kong, the PRC,
Vietnam and Taiwan. Significant judgement
is required in determining the provision
for income taxes. There are transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the current tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which
such determination is made.

Provision on funeral services deeds
The Group determines the pricing of the
funeral services deeds by adding a margin
to the estimated cost of delivering funeral
services in future, after taking into account
of major factors including the timing of the
instruction of the Deed Holders.

(b) HEFTHBERZEZRIR
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # ZE—
43. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 43.

ESTIMATES (Continued)

(b) Key

sources of estimation uncertainty

(Continued)

(vi)

(vii)

Provision on funeral services deeds
(Continued)

This estimate is based on the sub-contracting
fee payable to the sub-contractor for each
funeral service deed performed, the current
market conditions and the price of deeds from
sub-contractors. Management reassesses
these estimates at the end of each reporting
period to estimate if the receipts in advance
for funeral service deeds can cover the
estimated future costs of delivering funeral
services and determine the need of making
a provision in the consolidated financial
statements.

Fair values of freehold land and
buildings held for own use and
investment properties

The freehold land and buildings held for own
use and investment properties of the Group
were revalued at each reporting date during
the year based on the appraised market
value provided by independent qualified
professional valuers. Such valuations were
based on certain assumptions, which are
subject to uncertainty and might materially
differ from the actual results. In making the
estimation, the Group considers information
from current prices in an active market for
similar properties and uses assumptions
that are mainly based on market conditions
existing at each reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
ARE WM
For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z-_ZT -_FF+_A=+—HILFE

43. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 43. &t H BT R &5t (8&)
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (b) FEFTHARZEZETERIR
(Continued) (#&)
(viii) Estimation of incremental borrowing (viii) 15 EIZEEEFE

rate

The Group cannot readily determine the
interest rate implicit in a lease, and therefore,
it uses an incremental borrowing rate (“IBR")
to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate
of interest that the Group would have to pay
to borrow over a similar term, and with a
similar security, the funds necessary to obtain
an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use
asset in a similar economic environment. The
IBR therefore reflects what the Group “would
have to pay”, which requires estimation when
no observable rates are available (such as for
subsidiaries that do not enter into financing
transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted
to reflect the terms and conditions of the
lease (for example, when leases are not in the
subsidiary’s functional currency). The Group
estimates the IBR using observable inputs
(such as market interest rates) when available
and is required to make certain entity-specific
estimates (such as the subsidiary’s stand-alone
credit rating).
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-ZE-_EF+-_A=+—HILFE

44. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS
AND NEW STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2020

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs and interpretation that have been
issued but are not yet effective:

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

HKFRS 17, Insurance Contracts 1 January 2023
and the related Amendments

Amendments to HKFRS 16, 1 June 2020
COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions

Amendments to HKFRS 3, 1 January 2022
Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

Amendments to HKFRS 9, 1 January 2021
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4
and HKFRS 16, Interest Rate
Benchmark Reform —
Phase 2

Amendments to HKFRS 10 To be determined
and HKAS 28, Sale or
Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associates or Joint Venture

Amendments to HKAS 1, 1 January 2023
Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-Current and
related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)

Amendments to 1 January 2022
HKFRS 16, Property, Plant
and Equipment — Proceeds
before Intended Use

Amendments to HKAS 37, 1 January 2022
Onerous Contracts — Cost
of Fulfilling a Contract

Amendments to HKFRSs, 1 January 2022

Annual Improvement to
HKFRSs 2018-2020
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44,

45.

46.

4o A

e ISR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z-_ZT -_FF+_A=+—HILFE

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2020 (Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these developments is expected to be
in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded
that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

On 26 November 2019, the Group entered into the sale
and purchase agreement (“Acquisition Agreement”) with
a company of which Mr. Xu is a shareholder who owns
33% interests in a company incorporated in the PRC (the
“Vendor”), pursuant to which the Vendor conditionally
agreed to sell, and the Group agreed to acquire, the
equity interests of a target company (the “Target
Company”), whereas the equity interests represents 32%
equity interest in the Target Company and through the
variable interest entity agreements which in substance
represents 30.4% equity interests in the Target Company,
at an aggregated consideration of HK$28,880,000.

Subsequent in March 2021, the Acquisition Agreement
was terminated, and all relevant parties shall be
released and discharged from their respective rights and
obligations under the Acquisition Agreement.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified confirm
with the current year’s presentation.
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Five Years Financial Summary
hFETBHFERRE

A summary of results and of the assets and liabilities of the ANEBERBEREFHRFEEZ£E L E
Group for the last five financial years is set out as follows: RBENRBEHIWOT :
Results E
For the year ended 31 December
BEE+-A=+—-HILEE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
“EZgEE —T-NF —E-N\F ZE—tF ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFRE ARETIT ARETIT ARETIT ARETX
(Restated)
(E5)
Revenue I &= 68,340 66,610 62,667 60,709 57,342
Gross profit EF 29,167 32,042 27,889 30,598 22,193
Loss for the year FEER (1,942) (4,164) (8,523) (20,794) (34,626)
Loss attributable to owners ARAGHEAE A
of the Company JE1L 48 (2,974) (3,804) (8,352) (19,334) (31,520)
Basic loss per share FREXEE
(RMB cents) (AR 5) (0.40) (0.51) (1.12) (2.60) (4.25)
Assets and liabilities EERERE
As at 31 December
R+=-ZHA=+-—H
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
“E-%FE —T-NF T N\F ZT—tF ZT—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBFT ARETI ARETRI ARETIT ARETR
Non-current assets ERBEE 70,393 76,569 43,072 48,004 52,691
Current assets TEEE 207,221 216,588 193,481 184,327 199,879
Current liabilities mEBBE 130,732 137,010 125,510 111,022 109,875
Non-current liabilities ERnBEE 35,156 38,498 8,234 9,220 10,077
Net assets EEFE 111,726 117,649 102,809 112,089 132,618
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